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fVW ltem 21 November 2017

'M
BUNDABERG
Item Number: File Number: Part:
E1l ) FINANCE

Portfolio:

Organisational Services

Subject:

Final Management Report for 2016/2017 Financial Audit
Report Author:

Anthony Keleher, Chief Financial Officer
Authorised by:
Stuart Randle, General Manager Organisational Services

Link to Corporate Plan:

Our People, Our Business - 3.1 A sustainable financial position.

Background:

As part of the annual financial audit, Council’s external auditors provide a Final
Management Letter summarising the findings of the Audit. Council again received
unmodified audit opinions. There were no high risk matters raised. The matters raised
will be added to the Finance Risk Register for action and monitored through reports to
the Audit & Risk Committee.

Associated Person/Organization:

Pitcher Partners
Consultation:

Audit & Risk Committee
Legal Implications:

Report required to be presented to Council in accordance with Section 213 of the Local
Government Regulation 2012.

Policy Implications:

There appear to be no policy implications.
Financial and Resource Implications:

Audit costs are provided in the 2017/2018 Budget.
Risk Management Implications:

The items identified in the final management letter will added to the Finance Risk
Register for action.

Meeting held: 21 November 2017
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Communications Strategy:

Communications Team consulted.

] Yes
No
Attachments:

41  Final Management Letter

Recommendation:

That the Final Management Letter for the 2016/17 Financial Audit, be noted by
Council.

Meeting held: 21 November 2017
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Q AC) PITCHER PARTNERS

Queensland Audit Office
better public services

3rishane Br

Queensland 4000  Queensland 4001

Tel: 07322 1 pitcher.com.al
Fax: 073221 7779  info@pitcherpartners.com.al

26 October 2017 Pitcher Partners is an :

Brisbane |V

of independent firms
rth|Adelaide | Newcastle

The Mayor

Bundaberg Regional Council
PO Box 3130

BUNDABERG QLD 4670

Dear Councillor Dempsey
Final Management Report for Bundaberg Regional Council
The 2016-17 audit for Bundaberg Regional Council has now been completed.

QAO issued unmodified audit opinions on both your financial statements and your current
year financial sustainability statement. Consistent with prior years and all other councils, we
included an emphasis of matter paragraph in our audit report on your current year financial
sustainability statement to highlight the use of the special purpose basis of accounting.
These reports were returned to you by letter dated 19 October 2017.

The purpose of this letter is to provide the council with details of significant audit matters and
other important information related to the audited financial statements. Our closing report
was presented to the audit committee on 24 October 2017. All significant matters related to
the audit were included in the closing report.

For your information, Appendix A provides you with details of all audit issues we have raised
with management.

Report to parliament

Each year we report the results of all financial audits and significant issues to parliament. In
this report, we will comment on the results of the audit of your financial report, financial
performance and position and sustainability matters, and any significant control issues we
identified, together with our audit recommendations.

You and the chief executive officer will be given an opportunity to comment and those
comments will be reflected in the report.

Audit fees
The final audit fee for this year is $155,000 (prior year $155,000).
We would like to thank you and your staff for the assistance provided to us during the audit.

If you would like to discuss these issues or any matters regarding the audit process, please
feel free to contact me an (07) 3222 8440.

Yours sincerely

Lo

Jason Evans
As Delegate of the Auditor-General

BAKER TILLY

INTERNATIONAL

Attachment 1 - Final Management Letter
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Appendix A

Issues formally reported to management

This table provides you with a summary of issues that we have formally reported to management related to internal control deficiencies and
financial reporting issues we identified through our audit process. Refer to Appendix B for further information on our rating categories.

Internal control deficiencies

Component Rating Our recommendation Management Response
and Status

Control Type: Control Environment Deficiency It was recommended that Council implement a Status: Work in Progress
Financial year first raised: 2016 policy for testing the disaster recovery planona  Response:

Issue: regular basis, and that testing be carried out in Updated management
Council’s disaster recovery plan was noted as having accordance with the policy. This should ensure  raqponse to be provided for
not been tested within the last two years. that Council i1s satisfied as to the ability of the FY18 interim management
Implication: plan and those charged with its implementation letter where this issue

1o operate effectively in the event of a disaster remains Unresolved.

Council plan may not be appropriately addressing its .
P y pprop y 9 occurring.

system recovery and business continuity requirements
in the event of unforeseeable disaster events occurring
This may result in an extended period of downtime for
Council and could limit the ability to continue necessary
operalions.

Financial reporting issues

Component Rating QOur recommendation Management Response
and Status

Property, Issue: Medium It i1s recommended that Council review the rates ~ Status: Work in Progress
Plant and Council's asset valuations for water and wastewater adopted across all asset classes to confirm Response:
Equipment infrastructure (passive assets) have historically been these are consistent, both across asset classes

determined on a “Greenfields” basis, which is
inconsistent with Council's asset capitalisation policy
which provides for recognition of assets on a
“Brownfields” basis

In the current (FY17) audit we observed that the
comprehensive valuation for active water and
wastewater assels was also prepared using Greenfields
rates.

and with the internal capitalisation policy.

Attachment 1 - Final Management Letter
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Component Rating Our recommendation Management Response
and Status

Landfill
Restoration
Provision

Implication:
There is a risk that asset values may be misstated due
to the inconsistency.

Issue:

Our review of the landiill restoration provision indicated
that there is prevailing uncertainty as to how provisions
relating to landfills on Council owned land should be
accounted for. No exercise has been undertaken to
determine the fair value of the restoration asset
recognised.

Implication:

There is a nisk that land assets impacted by
rehabilitation provisions may be incorrectly valued, and
(noting that the revaluation reserve for land has been
exhausted) that net result in any given period may be
materially misstated.

Medium

It is recommended that management review the
fair value of the land asset/s used as landfill
sites (incorporating the fair value of the landfill
restoration asset), to evaluate whether these
differ materially from their fair value.

We understand from review of the current year
land valuation that landfill sites are valued on a
net basis that is, taking into account the negative
impact of the sites’ current status as waste
management locations.

In our view, the assets should rather be valued
on an “as if" fully restored basis, with the
difference effectively being the fair value of the
restoration asset.

We consider that the maximum value of the
restoration asset would be equal to the current
value of the restoration provision, which for
landfills on Council owned land is $3.312m. After
factoring in the current period impact of
revaluation adjustments made by Council to the
landfill restoration assets (decrement of $1.6m),
and the WDV of landfill restoration assets
($0.403m), the maximum potential error in the
current year is therefore considered to be
$1.310m, which is not material.

Management will consider
revising the valuation
methodology for all asset
classes presently valued
using greenfield rates at
this time of the next
scheduled comprehensive
valuation. For passive
water and wastewater
assets, this will be 30 June
2019.

Status: Work in Progress
Response:

Management will consult
with external audit during
FY18 in order to ensure
that the accounting for
landfill provisions on
Council owned land is
consistent with the
requirement of applicable
accounting standards and
interpretations.

Attachment 1 - Final Management Letter
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Component Rating Our recommendation Management Response
and Status

Property,
Plant &
Equipment

Issue:

When completing partial disposals of infrastructure
assets (i.e. where a portion of a segment is renewed),
the disposal amount is determined by reference to the
apparent condition of the portion replaced, rather than
the actual recorded condition of the segment as a
whole). As a result of this practice, the disposal
recorded is inconsistent with the written-down value of
the asset that has been replaced.

Further, we identified a lack of documentation regarding
the write-off condition assessment and calculation for
assets accounted for on this basis.

Implication:

The above treatment is not strictly compliant with the
accounting standards, which require that the carrying
amount of the asset disposed be written off. As a result,
losses on disposal may be misstated in any given
period. In the current year we have estimated the
potential misstatement to be $0.352m, which is not
material.

Medium

In view of the value of the estimated current
period error, and the resegmentation exercises
conducted on major asset classes during the
year, we do not consider it necessary for Council
to implement a change to the currently adopted
policy.

The resegmentation of major asset classes
should result in condition data maintained within
the asset management system being more
representative of the actual condition across an
entire segment, rather than an average
condition.

Notwithstanding this, it is recommended that
management monitor the difference arising from
maintaining the current policy and, in periods
where the impact is significant, consider the
need to revise the methodology applied in order
to align with the accounting standard
requirements.

It 1s further recommended that where judgement
is applied in determining the amount of asset
write-offs, as is typically the case under the
policy applied by Council, such judgement be
appropriately documented and maintained as
part of the asset capitalisation process.

Status  Work in Progress
Response:

Management confirmed
that the current policy will
be maintained, but
acknowledges the need to
ensure that judgements
and other considerations
made in determining the
write-off amount for partial
disposals are adequately
documented and available
for audit in future periods.

Attachment 1 - Final Management Letter
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Appendix B

B1 Our rating of internal control deficiencies

We have assessed all internal control deficiencies in this report based on their potential to cause a material misstatement in the financial
statements. The risk assessment categories are as follows:

s category e o
action

Deficiency A deficiency arises when internal controls are ineffective or missing, and are unable to prevent, or We expect management action will
detect and correct, misstatements in the financial statements. A deficiency may also result in be taken in a timely manner to
non-compliance with policies and applicable laws and regulations and/or inappropriate use of public resolve deficiencies.
resources.

Significant deficiency A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control that requires This requires immediate
immediate remedial action. management action fo resolve.

Also, we increase the rating from a deficiency to a significant deficiency based on:

the risk of material misstatement in the financial statements

the risk to reputation

the significance of non-compliance with policies and applicable laws and regulations
the potential to cause financial loss including fraud

where management has not taken appropriate timely action to resolve the deficiency.

Other matter Another matter is expected to improve the efficiency and / or effectiveness of internal controls, but Our recommendation may be
does not constitute a deficiency in internal controls. If another matter is not resolved, we do not implemented at management's
consider that it will result in a misstatement in the financial statements or non-compliance with discretion.
legislative requirements.

Attachment 1 - Final Management Letter



Attachment 1 Page 10

B2 Our rating of financial reporting issues

We have assessed all financial reporting issues in this report based on their potential to cause a material misstatement in the financial statements. The
assessed risk ratings are as follows

Risk rating Potential effect on the financial statements Prioritisation of remedial action

High We assess that there is a high likelihood of this causing a material This requires immediate management action to resolve.
misstatement in one or more components (iransactions, balances and

disclosures) of the financial statements, or there is the potential for

financial loss including fraud.

Medium We assess that there 1s a medium likelihood of this causing a material  We expect management action will be taken in a timely manner.
misstatement in one or more components of the financial statements.

We assess that there is a low likelihood of this causing a material We recommend management action to resolve; however, a decision
misstatement in one or more components of the financial statements. on whether any action is taken is at management’s discretion.

Attachment 1 - Final Management Letter
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fVW ltem 21 November 2017

'M
BUNDABERG
Item Number: File Number: Part:
E2 ) FINANCE
Portfolio:

Organisational Services

Subject:

Financial Summary as at 1 November 2017
Report Author:

Anthony Keleher, Chief Financial Officer
Authorised by:
Stuart Randle, General Manager Organisational Services

Link to Corporate Plan:

Our People, Our Business - 3.1 A sustainable financial position.

Background:

In accordance with Section 204 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 a Financial
Report must be presented to Council on a monthly basis. The attached Financial
Report contains the Financial Summary and associated commentary as at 1
November 2017.

Consultation:

Financial Services Team
Legal Implications:

There appear to be no legal implications.
Policy Implications:

There appear to be no policy implications.
Financial and Resource Implications:

There appear to be no financial or resource implications.
Risk Management Implications:

There appears to be no risk management implications.
Communications Strateqy:

Communications Team consulted. A Communication Strategy is:
Not required
] Required

Meeting held: 21 November 2017
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Attachments:

01  Financial Summary as at 1 November 2017

Recommendation:

That the Financial Summary as at 1 November 2017 (as detailed on the 13 pages
appended to this report) — be noted by Council.

Meeting held: 21 November 2017
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Financial Summary
as at 01 Nov 2017

Council General Waste astewater Water
Adopted Adopted Adopted * Adopted % Adopted
Progress check - 34% Actual YTD Budget  ActBud ACUAIYTD Budget  Act Bud ~ctual YTD Budget Act/Bug ACUAYTD Budget  Actpug ACtUAITD Budget  Act/ Bud
Recurrent Activities
Revenue
General Rates and Utility Charges 74167953 152,204430  49% 39,047,657  83,517.400 47% 7,236,487 14369000  50% 13,714,015 27,435,750 50% 14,169,794 26,672,280 53%
Less: Discounts and pensioner remissions (4,143571)  (8,327.900)  50% (3,866,649)  (7.739.900)  50% (94,570) (200,000)  47% (103,192) (216,500)  47% (79,160) (169,500}  47%
70,024,382 143,966,530 49% 35,181,008 75,177,500 46% 7,141,917 14,169,000  50% 13,610,823 27,217,250 50% 14,090,634 26,802,780 53%
Fees and Charges 8675056 24,500,418 35% 6243935  18,147.870 34% 1,490,299 4308348 35% 410,289 1,027,500 40% 530533 1,016,700 52%
Interest Revenue 739,105 3,839,129 19% 132,439 2123529 6% 100,485 153,000  66% 120,138 551,600 22% 386,043 1,111,000 35%
Grants, Subsidies & Donations 2769780 7,531,291 7% 2760145 7,530,791 7% 4,487 500  B97% 5148 - - -
Sale of Developed Land Inventory 91,120 - 91,120 - - - - - - -
Total Recurrent Revenue 82,299,443 179,937,368  46% 44,408,647 103,579,600 43% 8,737,188 18,630,848  47% 14,146,398 28,796,350 49% 15,007,210 28,930,480 52%
55 Expenses
Employee Costs 19,085,809 67,676,867 28% 15,018,873 53,873,536 28% 1,537,748 5046201  30% 1,413,110 4,858,050 29% 1116078 3,899,080 29%
Materials and Services 18,396,407 56,675,878  32% 11818737 31142752 38% 2649420 10834833  24% 1,623,828 7,060,539 23% 2304422 7637754 30%
Finance Costs 845868 4027933  21% 402845 2,086,043 19% 152,251 342,430 4d% 246,145 1,287,860 19% 44,627 311,600 14%
Depreciation 16,804,503 44,079,053 38% 12,805,869 32,313529 40% 392,631 047516 4% 1,862, 460 5,587,379 33% 1743543 5230629 33%
Total Recurrent Expenditure 55,132,587 172,459,731 32% 40,046,324 119,415,860 34% 4,732,050 17,170,980 28% 5,145,543 18,793,828 2% 5,208,670 17,079,063 30%
Operating Surplus 27,166,856 7,477,637 4,362,923 (15,836,170} 4,005,138 1,450,868 0,000,855 10,002,522 0,798,540 11,851,417
%55 Transfers to
Restricted Gapital Gash - 3,363,603 0% - - - - - 3,363,603 0% - -
NCF Transfers - - (4,404,197)  (13,212591)  33% (660,753)  (1,982.258)  33% 2,212,944 6,638,829 33% 2,852,006 8,556,020 33%
Total Transfers - 3,363,693 0% (4,408,197) (13,212,581)  33% (660,753)  (1,982,258)  33% 221294 10,002,522 22% 2,852,006 8,556,020 33%
Movement in Unallocated Surplus 27,166,856 4,113,944 8,766,520  (2,623,579) 4,665,891 3,442,126 6,787,911 - 5,046,534 3,295,397
::f;';cfgf‘:eixg“s (Defict) brought forvrard 15525263 15525263  100%  (4379.923) (4,379923) 100% 5852178 5652178 100% - - 14.253,006 14,253,008  100%
Unallocated Surplus (Deficit) 42,692,119 19,639,207 4,386,507 (7,003,502) 10,318,069 9,094,304 6,787,911 - 21,199,542 17,548,405
Capital Activities
Council's Capital Expenditure (Excludes Donared Assels)
Council Expenditure on Non-Current Assets | 27,937,866 131,542,636 1% 15,358,968 86,160,135 18% 1,051,893 5,013,550  21% 10,783,078 33,135,178 33% 743927 1,232,513 10%
Loan Redemption 1,477,498 5978420  25% 930,952 3,881,024 24% 124,445 479522 26% 344,110 1,333,219 26% 77,991 284,655 27%
Total Capital Expenditure 29,415,364 137,521,056 21% 16,269,920 90,041,759 18% 1,176,338 5403,012 1% 11,127,188 34,468,097 32% 821918 7,517,228 1%
Cash opening balance (incl. investments) 106,021,236 106,021,236
Cash closing balance (incl. investments) 124,448,941 80,226,859

Attachment 1 - Financial Summary as at 1 November 2017
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Further to the Financial Summary Report as at 1 November 2017, the following key features are highlighted.
The following figures are based on the 1*' Quarter Amended Budget.

Recurrent Revenue

* Rates have been levied for the 1% half of the year and revenue is around 48% of budget. This will
increase to 50% as prepaid rates are received in the lead up to the 2" half year levy.

Interest Revenue — The significant investments made when rates revenue was received, were for
longer terms. Therefore, these will mature in the coming months and the revenue will be recognised at

this time.
s After the adoption of the 1% Quarter Amended Budget, all other recurrent revenue is tracking as
expected.
2017-2018 Recurrent Revenue - Budget v Actual
Water  Adopted Budget
52
V:va:l:l- ok =¥TD Budget 34%
Waste 47% mactual
General 4%
- 10 20 30 40 50 &0 0 80 an 100 110 Millions [5)

Attachment 1 - Financial Summary as at 1 November 2017
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Recurrent Expenditure

e Employee costs are tracking slightly lower than budget when compared to the number of pay periods

processed to date (31%). The 1°' Quarter Amended Budget shows an increase in employee costs
driven largely by an anticipated rise in staffing levels. This will be monitored with the continued
appointment of officers in vacant positions, with further analysis being performed in early December.

e Overall, finance costs are tracking below budget. However, once the 2™ quarter loan repayment is

made in December, these figures will normalise.

« The budgeted depreciation expenditure is apportioned evenly across the 12 months of the year and is

processed every month. The actual depreciation amount is based on the original budget. The 1%
Quarter Amended Budget has decreased significantly from the original budget due to revaluations

performed at end of the 2017 financial year.

2017-2018 Recurrent Expenditure - Budget v Actual

Water 0%
Waste-

Water %
‘Waste 8%
General

34%

= Adopled Budget

#YTD Budget 34%

w Actual

10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100 110

120

130 Millions ()

Attachment 1 - Financial Summary as at 1 November 2017
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Capital Expenditure

« Capital Expenditure is tracking lower than the budget forecast due to the rescheduling of work
associated with the Rubyanna Wastewater Treatment Plant and various street revitalisation projects.

« Council is yet to take delivery of a number of fleet replacement items where orders have been placed.

Therefore, there are no actual costs at this stage.

¢ The 1% Quarter Amended Budget shows an increase of $13 million for capital expenditure_ This is
primarily due to previously approved projects being carried over from the previous financial year.

2017-2018 Capital Expenditure - Budget v Actual

140,000,000
120,000,000
100,000,000
80,000,000
60,000,000
40,000,000

20,000,000 21%

Jul Aug Sep Oet Mov Dec Jan Feb WMar Apr

For more details regarding Capital Expenditure projects please refer to the summary of capital projects below.

Attachment 1 - Financial Summary as at 1 November 2017
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Revenue Statistics
Rates Debtor

e The current rates levy totalling $82.5 million was raised in July. At 31 October 2017, the rates debtor
balance was $6.8 million, compared to $7.9 million at 31 October 2016. Due to improved debt
collection processes, the rates outstanding have reduced from 10.3% last year to 8.2% this year.

Rates Debtor Balance
80,000,000
70,000,000
60,000,000
50,000,000
40,000,000 e 2015-2016
—a—2016-2017
2017-2018
30,000,000
20,000,000
\.
10,000,000
]
& 5 A & & & i) &
S A S T R R A
L o e@“f 4 ¥ «‘*’@ ¥

Attachment 1 - Financial Summary as at 1 November 2017
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Cash Flow

* The cash balance as at 31 October 2017 was $124.4 million, a decrease of $12.2 million from 30
September 2017.

» QOverall, the current cash balance is $10.9 million more than forecasted, as the financial year to date
capital expenditure is not as much as anticipated.

« No short-term liquidity issues are foreseeable.

Budget vs Actuals - Cashflow Analysis 2017 - 2018

140,000,000
120,000,000
100,000,000

80,000,000

Minimum Cash Requirement

e ztual
80,000,000
—e—Sudget

40,000,000

20,000,000

¥

Attachment 1 - Financial Summary as at 1 November 2017
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Moderate + High Governance Projects as at 2 November 2017

Projects with a budget exceeding $500,000 over the life of the works

and scope ks contingent upen the outcome
of grant applications

Life to Date Financial Year 2018
. . % = -
RECIssDEsCcHpron Complete LD (R ) P Adopted  LTDActuals  EstFinal |Adopted 2018 FY2018YTD (o0 Loy oo EstFinal Cost Budget
! Budget (3] (s Cost(s) | Budget(s)  Actuals () P 2018 (3)  Variance ($)
Estimate ($)
Major Projects
lMulti-Use Sport and Community Centre 95% Costs associated with the finalisation of 374,611 100,205 374,611 350,000 75,595 - 22% 350,000 -
iMultiplex) Stage 1 Finalisation Costs Stage 1 Contractor's Contract Sum
Multi-Use Sport and Community Centre 85% Project currently under construction. Main 12,500,000 12,609,162 8,495,799 12,609,162 9,400,000 5,286 638 790 56% 9,400,000 -
(Multiplex) Stage 2 stiuctural frame work and roof are o
complete. Internal fit out is underway.
Project due to be completed in mid
November.
Demolition of Skating Rink and Lessee 0% Demolitien to occur 2017/2018 250,000 250,000 2,349 250,000 250,000 2,349 - 1% 250,000 -
(Compensation
internal Roads and Intersections 100% Costs have been finalised 3,115,118 3115118 3115118 3115118 - - - 0% - -
Multi-Use Sport and Community Centre 100% Costs have been finahsed 9,500,000 15,622,817 15,622,817 15622817 - - - 0% - -
(Multiplex) Stage 1
Cost to Councill 25,365,118 31,871,707 27,336,289 31,971,707 10,000,000 5,364,582 780 79% 10,000,000 -
|Eurdabera CBO Revitalisation 5% Hassell Lid is progressing with the desian 16,064,181 135818 15,941,370 8,000,000 71638 - 1% TEFTAB9 (122.811)
and doc ion. Design is currently
15% complete. 30% hold point due &
December 2017 16.000.000
Bundaberg CBD Streetscape Work is ongoing. ' : 279,254 288,893 302,066 100,000 209 638 13,173 210% 222811 122,811
Revitalisation - Mon-Capital Costs Revised Budget Revision to be submitted
o increase current financial year budget,
To be funded from project work arder
Cost to Council 16,000,000 16,343,435 424,712 16,243 435 8,100,000 281,277 13173 211% 8,100,000 o
Mount Perry Fleod Evacuation Route 100% Costs have been finalised. 8,758,570 4,663,944 4,688,260 4,688,280 - 24318 - 0% 24316 24,316
Upgrade Revised Budget Request to be submitted
to increase current budget
lMount Perry Flood Evacuation Route 100%  Costs have been finalised - 1,273 584 1,273,584 1,273,584 - - - 0% - -
Upgrade Complementary Waorks
including Retaining Wall, Open Drain
Ectanic Gardens Pit and Water Main
Cosf to Council 8,738,370 5,937,528 5,961,844 5,961,844 - 24,316 - 0% 24,316 24316
Burnett Heads CED Revitalisation 5% Contract has been awarded to Devcon. 3259707 4,962 003 366,566 4,962,003 4,800,000 204, 583 38,545 4% 4,800,000 -
Construction o commence in mid
November. Design of addilional Stage 2
works in progress.
Burnett Heads CBD Sewerage 5% Contract has been awarded to Devecon. 2,100,000 2,100,099 591 2,100,099 2,100,000 493 - 0% 2,100,000 -
Infrastructure Construction to commence in mid
November
Cost to Council| 5,359,707 7,062,102 367157 7,062,102 6,900,000 205,055 38 545 4% 6,900,000 -
|5t Accommodation Strategy 2% Contract for Design is going out for Tender 5,200,000 200,000 1,178 6,200,000 200,000 1,179 - 1% 200,000 -
in November 2017
East Bundaberg Tourism Precinct 2% Concept design is complete. Final design 457,000 1,005,652 21,642 1,005,652 1,000,000 15,990 - 2% 1,000,000 -

Attachment 1 - Financial Summary as at 1 November 2017
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Moderate + High Governance Projects as at 2 November 2017

Projects with a budget exceeding $500,000 over the life of the works

to reprovision funds from proegram work
order to project work crder.

Life to Date Financial Year 2018
. % = ot
"
Projsct Description Stats®  complete DU L g:':g’: Adopted  LTDActals  EstFinal |Adopted 2018 FY2018YTD (o W00, o EstFinal Cost  Budget
Estimate ($) Budget ($) %) Cost (§) Budget (S) Actuals (5) 2018 (3) Variance ($)
Corporate Applications
Core System Replacement Program - 15% Focus is now on redeveloping the ariginal 1,286,033 1.068 642 1,286,033 277 588 60,197 60,227 22% 277.588 -
Intial Product Scepe and Product Core Systems Program Business Case
Selection with key stakeholders to confirm the
Core System Replacement Program investment and expected outcomes to - - - - - - - - -
v suppeort the future change program
4,500,000
Rugged Tablets - Proof of Concept - 100%  Costs have been finalised 10,000 10,000 10,000 - - - 0% - -
Software Programs - 100%  Costs have been finalised 22277 22277 22277 - - - 0% - -
Cost to Council 4,500,000 1,318,310 1,100,919 1,318,310 277,588 60,197 60227 22% 277,588 -
|Aiports and Tourism
Aviation Precinct - Construction of Stage v 2% Project is currently being designed 1,000,000 1,438,675 - 1,438,675 1,438,675 - - 0% 1,438,675 -
3
Awlation Precinet - Construet Taxiway 2% Project is currently being designed 420,000 2,270,300 2,270,300 2,270,300 0% 2,270,300
Alpha & Adjacent Aircraft Aprons v
Cost to Counell 1,420,000 3,708,575 - 3708575 3,708975 - 0% 3,708,575 -
(Waste Disposal Facilities
|Eundaberg Regional Landfill - (Cedars 20%  Currently under construction, miner delays 4,294,000 4,366,808 1,099,937 4,366,808 4,294,000 1,027,129 158 626 24% 4,294,000
Road) - Cell 3 v in sourcing some materials, project
expected fo be completed by end of
January 2018.
(Qunaba Landfil Phytocapping Stage 1 5% Project Manager is developing a Business 802,500 802,500 277 802,500 &02,500 277 - 0% 802,500 -
Scuthern and Western Batters v Case in line with the Project Decision
Framewark
Roads and Drainage
Baldwin Swamp Multi Modal Pathways - 2% ‘Currently negotiating final land 1,000,000 1,016,641 257381 1,468,641 1,000,000 9,140 - 1% 1,000,000 -
(Que Hee Street to Bundaberg Ring v resumptions. Project is currently being
Road designed
|Eprayed Biumen Resurfacing Program 5%  Construction will commence in November 1,470,000 1.470,000 21,713 1,470,000 T.470,000 21713 N 1% 1,470,000 N
v 2017 and is due to be completed in
December
Willis Street, Sharen - Burneft Downs 2% Project is currently being designed 650,000 650,000 7,805 650,000 650,000 7,805 - 1% 650,000 -
Estate - Upgrade Drainage Work v
Pine Creek Road - Roads Rehabiltation 20% Project is being delivered as part of the 591,000 591,000 10,987 591,000 591,000 10,987 2% 591,000
Program v Roads Rehabilitation Program. Program is
currently being delivered, to be completed
by December.
|Ecotiand Street and Eastgate Street - 0% Construction activities are complete. Third 360,000 621,348 467,872 621,348 580,000 426 524 152,206 T4% 580,000 -
Intersection Safety Improvements v party service relocations (NBN) still to be
(BLACKSPOT) undertaken
Avoca StreetBranyan Drive - Provision 100% Project is Practically Complete awating 700,000 700,000 281,482 311,866 558,740 140,222 30385 25% 170607 (388,133)
and Upgrade of On-Road Cycle Facilities financial completion.
- Stage 2A o Revised Budget Request to be submitted

Attachment 1 - Financial Summary as at 1 November 2017



Attachment 1

Page 21

Moderate + High Governance Projects as at 2 November 2017

Projects with a budget exceeding $500,000 over the life of the works

Life to Date Financial Year 2018
. % = et
"
RECIESDsCHpon Status*® . plets LD (R ) g:':g’: Adopted  LTDActuals  EstFinal |Adopted 2018 FY2018YTD (oL oy oo EstFinal Cost Budget
Estimate ($) Budget ($) s) Cost (§) Budget (5) Actuals (5) 2018 (5) Variance ($)
Avoca Slreel/Branyan Drive - Provision 5% Project will be constructed by day labour 388,133 0% 388,133 388133
and Upgrade of On-Road Cycle Facilities which is currently scheduled for December,
- Stage 2B ° Revised Budget Request to be submitted
to reprovision funds from program work
order to project work crder.
Cost to Counell 700,000 700,000 281 482 700,000 558 740 140,222 30,385 25% 58,740 -
Asphalt Rejuvenation Pregram 5% Contract for construction is going out for 500,000 515,000 1.211 515,000 515,000 1,211 - 0% 515,000 -
v tender in Movember 2017
Eggmolesse Street - Upgrade fo Sealed 20% Project is currently under construction 4,200,000 2965249 2,442 504 2965249 789 141 266 496 - 34% 785,141 -
Standard (Johanna Boulevard End) v Due to be completed December 2017.
Filzgeralkl Streel/ Eggmolesse Steet, 60%  Constuclion is underway due to be 1,400,000 1,400,000 800,171 1,400,000 1,292 B6B 693,039 345,188 54% 1,292 868
Morville - Construction of Reundabout v campleted mid January 2017, Schedule
Warks for Queensland Round 1 delays due to wet weather events and third
party service relocations (NBN).
[Johnston Street, Avoca - Upgrade 2% Project is currenily being designed 995,015 650,000 16,326 650,000 650,000 16,326 8,980 3% 650,000 -
v Drainage easement negotiations are
continuing
Thabeban Stormwater Drainage - 2% Project is currently being designed 1,308,000 3,700,000 64,660 3,700,000 3,648,123 12,783 57 450 0% 3,648 123 -
Scheme - Stage 3
Thabeban Stormwater Drainage 100%  Costs have been finalised - 446,697 446,697 446,697 - - - 0% - -
Scheme - Stage 2 w
Thabeban Stormwater Drainage 100%  Costs have been finalised - 574,896 574,896 574,896 - - - 0% - -
Scheme - Stage 1B *
Cost to Council 1,308,000 4,721,593 1,086,253 4,721,593 12,783 57,450 0% 3,648,123 -
Monduran Bridge 95%  Project is Practically Complete awaiting 3,300,000 2,210,159 2,210,061 2210159 3,000 2,902 1,400 97% 3,000
v financial completion
Monduran Road Approach Road on East 95% Project is Practically Complete awaiting - 11,012 601,225 611,012 150,000 140,214 13,322 93% 150,000 -
Side of Kolan River v financial completion
Cost to Councif 3,300,000 2,821,171 2,811,287 2,821,171 153,000 143,116 14,722 190% 153,000
Ten Mile Read, Sharon - Upgrade and 2% Detailed design is being undertaken 2,650,000 2,650,000 10,287 2,650,000 2,650,000 10287 3377 0% 2,650,000 -
Widen v Project will be delivered under Roads

Rehabilitation Program 2. Confract for
tender to be advertised in November
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Moderate + High Governance Projects as at 2 November 2017

Projects with a budget exceeding $500,000 over the life of the works

Life to Date Financial Year 2018
. . % = -
"
(bl i i Status® o plets AL B ] P Adopted  LTD Actuals EstFinal |Adopted 2018 FY2018YTD (L0 o oo EstFinal Cost Budget
! Budget (3] (s Cost(s) | Budget(s)  Actuals () P 2018 (3)  Variance ($)
Estimate ($)
Projects C
East Bundaberg Bio Hub Pipeline - 2% Currently assessing the Head Agreement 500,000 500,000 1,433 500,000 500,000 1,433 - 0% 500,000 -
for the Project
Community Development
Marville Pool Wet Edge - Waorks Tor - 95%  Project Practically Complete awaiting 1,027,500 1,177,501 993,963 1177501 1,032,707 849,169 - B2% 1,032,707 -
Queensland financial completion
Parks, Sportand Natural Areas
Matural Themed Playground Botanic v 0% Contract for construction is going out for 350,000 500,000 - 500,000 500,000 - - 0% 500,000 -
Gardens tender in December 2017
Manning Garden Upgrade 70% Construction commenced in February 1,189,098 1,188,098 914,580 1,189,098 824118 549 600 3,000 67% 824,118 -
2017. Project completion date is now end
v of December. Project has been delayed
due to rain event in April and some material
shipment delays.
[Water and Wastewater
|Smart Meter Trial 5%  Councll has endorsed the Project Plan 8,000,000 3,000,000 49,253 8,000,000 1,299,544 48,797 - % 1,299 544 .
v Tender for installation of the Pilot will be
advertised in December.
Heaps Street Mew Roof Structure 10% Project is currently being constructed. Due 800,000 800,000 - 800,000 00,000 4874 3120 1% 800,000 -
v to be completed in December 2017
Gregary VWater Treatment Plant Upgrade v 5% Design is 30% complete. 16,200,000 7,682,847 234,273 7.582847 572,608 124,034 505,103 22% 572,608 -
Kalkie Water Treatment Plant Quality v 5% Design is 30% complete 3,100,000 8,000,000 163,462 8,000,000 572,699 126,181 495 683 22% 672,689 -
Upgrade
Innes Park Dry Sewers 50% Phase one has been completed. Phase 600,000 601,387 86,740 501,387 600,000 85353 19,110 14% 600,000 -
v two commenced with rectification of
defects, to be completed by December.
Eranyan WTP Clear Water Storage - 5% Design has been completed. Project to go 500,000 500,000 812 500,000 500,000 &12 16,570 0% 500,000 -
Mew Roof Structure v out to tender January 2018
Waoodgate Vacuum Sewer Extension 15%  Design has been d. Pr ent 1,500,000 2,100,000 236,013 2100000 2,064,797 200810 202,371 10% 2,064,797 -
of equipment currently underway. Contract
v for construction of pump station building is
currently out to tender.
Belle Eden Gravity Main Construction 0% Timelines are contingent upon Developer. 1,000,000 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 1,000,000 - - 0% 1,000,000 -
x Council Officers have received no further
infarmation at this time.
Port Sewerage Infrastructure - 70% Equipment has been procured and will be 780,000 506,378 256,319 508,378 280,000 25941 - 1% 280,000 -
Installation of Gravity Reticulation v installed after consultation with property
System VNers,
(Coral Cove Sewer - Pebble Beach Drive 90% Pump testing is outstanding. 950,000 866,333 845,266 866,333 142,592 121,525 14,611 85% 142,592 -
Mew Pump Station, Rising Main and v
Gravity Main
Coral Cove Sewer - Easement Project is complete 17,251 17,251 17,251 - - 0% -
Megotiations and Compensation *
(Coral Cove Sewer - Pebble Beach Drive Project is complete - 43667 43667 43,667 - - - 0% - -
Mew Pump Station. Rising Main and *
Gravity Main Mon Capital Costs
Cost to Councill 950,000 327 251 506,184 927,251 142 552 121,525 14611 85% 142,592 -
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Moderate + High Governance Projects as at 2 November 2017

Projects with a budget exceeding $500,000 over the life of the works

Flease note that completed projects may stil have cutstanding costs

Life to Date Financial Year 2018
. o % B -
"
BECIEstDsCHpon Status® o plets LD (R ) P Adopted  LTDActuals  EstFinal |Adopted 2018 FY2018YTD (0L oy <o EstFinal Cost Budget
! Budget (3] (s Cost(s) | Budget(s)  Actuals () P 2018 (3)  Variance ($)
Estimate ($)
[Rubyanna sTP - Design and 0% . The water retaining structures are 62927378 39,424,394 52,927,198 22835778 8,827,892 11,204 43% 22835778 -
(Construction of Plant complete. Regional Pump Station
v structures are 50% complete. The
i llation of hanical tis 70%
complete. Electrical installation is 70%
complete
Project Administration and Contral (All Work is ongoing 1,005,000 842176 1,005,000 109,593 11,826 44778 M% 109,593 -
Stages) v
Mon Capital Costs for Design and Work is ongoing 234373 234 554 234 554 - 181 - 0% 121 181
Caonstruction of Plant °
Decommissioning of Bundaberg East 5% Initial decommissioning works will 1,800,000 12,991 1,800,000 500,000 4574 - 1% 500,000 -
WWTP commence in November to seed
v Rubyanna WWTP. Further activities will be
undertaken to decontaminate East WWTP
once Rubyanna WWTP comes online 92,726,237
Purchase of Land - 100%  Cosfs have been finalised 2,667,537 2,667,537 2,867,537 - - - 0% - -
Rubyanna STP Concept Study - 100%  Costs have been finalised 53,700 53,700 53,700 - - - 0% -
Rubyanna STP - Trunk Pipelines 100% Costs have been finalised 7,057,331 7,057,331 7,057,331 - - - 0% - -
(Concept Design and Survey *
Rubyanna WWTP River Qutfall - 100%  Cosls have been finalised 4,495,809 4495808 4,495,809 - - - 0% -
Rubyanna WWTP Pipelines - Springhill 100%  Costs have been finalised 487 880 487 880 487 880 - - - 0% - -
Road to RWWTP *
Rubyanna WWTP Pipelines - Darnell 100%  Costs have been finalised 321,020 321,020 321,020 - - - 0% - -
Street Sewerage Cutting *
Cosf to Council 92,726,237 71,050,028 55,597,391 71,050,028 23,445,371 9,844,473 55,983 55% 23,445,552 187
Status Indicator Meaning
On ftrack ' Initiative is proceeding to plan with no indication of future impediments
Completed w Initiative has been completed
Progress is net as expected but action is being/has been taken and i1s expected to be an track within the next
Monitor (-] quarter or financial year
Action Progress is significantly behind schedule or is rated ‘closely monitor’. Decisive action is required to get back on
Required x track
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Capital Grants - Life to Date as at 2 November 2017

Street/Branyan Drive

Government Grants Program

LTD Grant Funding
Total Approved  LTD Grant Percentage  [Total Approved Percentage  [Approved Cost  Current Actual
Project Description Funding Name Funding Income Actuals Received Expenditure 5:::;::'“" Spend to Council Cost to Council g:::platlun (Comments
[Community Development
B R O Final Milestene has been submitted and is
Precinct - Construction of New 2016-17 Grants and 144,000 43,200 30% 240,000 340,095 142% 96,000 296,885  21/10/2017 [cumently being assessed, Payment due in
Amenilies Subsisidies Program November 2017
Disaster Management
o " . - Final Milestone has been submitled and is
[Childers SES Shed for Flood  Mational Disaster Resilience 12,000 10,800 90% 20,000 18,400 92% 8,000 7600 24/11/2017 |currently being assessed. Payment due in
Boat Program Movember 2017,
- " . o Final Milestone has been submitled and is
Bundaberg SES Installtions - Hatlonal Disaster Resilionce 15,000 13,500 90% 25,000 18,545 78% 10,000 6045 2411172017 [currently being assessed. Payment due in
of Solar Panels rogram MNovember 2017,
Major Projects
Iilestone 3 will be submitted in M
Building Our Regions 5,000,000 2,000,000 0% 2017. Payment due In December 2017
Multi-Use Sports and
Community Centre - Stage 2 12,260,000 8,485 799 69%, 2,260,000 3995789 4020018 TP
Community Development Grant 5,000,000 2,500,000 50% 2017. Payment due in January 2018.
[Wastewater
Final claim will be submitted for payment
on completion of the project
?:;‘:::’r: ﬁfa‘::'age Building Our Regions 5,000,000 4,250,000 85% 62,050,000 39,424,394 64% 57,050,000 35174394 30/07/2018|Please note that total approved
lexpenditure refers to the minimum
expenditure required by the Grant funding.
Roads and Drainage
Heavy Vehicle Safety and Heavy Vehicle Safety and Productivity
Productivity Programme Round 1,407,166 985016 70% Programme Round Five final claim to be
Five [submitted and paid in December 2017,
Kay MeDulf Drive 2,766,657 2,481,699 90%, - 516275 310072017
Further TIDS funding approved for 18/19
TIDS 1,359,491 980 408 T2% Financial Year.
Bridges Renewal Programme final claim fo
be submitted in December 2017. Payment
Bridges Renewal Programme 1,580,000 1,200,000 75% due in January 2018
e Ma Bridge aver 3,253 471 2,811,287 86%, - 207,950 31/08/2017 |Project savings have resulted in a
Kolan River
reduction in revenue.
TIDS 1663471 1,403 357 84%
Y Further TIDS funding approved for 18/19
and 1920 Financial ear.
Mext Milestone payment due in January
x X 2018,
Street - Upgrade TIDS 258,407 258,407 100%
gas;ea\edm ':mn;l d (Joh, 3,516,814 2,442,604 69% 258 407 (626,037) 300612018 |Fyrther TIDS funding approved for 18/19
ouleval
! Roads to Recovary 3,000,000 2810234 94% and 19120 Financial Year
|50% funding received at executien of
On-Road Cycle Facilities Cyele Metwork Local 1 has been 0
(PCMP) on Avoca A 392,500 294375 5% 884,500 281482 2% 492,000 (12,893}  28/02/2018 |and the final claim will be submitted for

payment on completion of the project.
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Capital Grants - Life to Date as at 2 November 2017

LTD Grant Funding
Total Approved  LTD Grant Percentage  |Total Approved Percentage  [Approved Cost  Current Actual
Project Deacription Funding Name Funding Income Actuals Received Expenditure 5:::;::'“" Spend to Council Cost to Council g:::platlun [Comments
[Final Milestane has been suomited and &
Branyan Drive Gulvert o ;;';:I:D'm"' Resilience 181,560 163404 90% 302,600 482179 146% 121,040 278775 24/1142017GuTetly eing assessed. Paymert due n
Mileslone 4 has been submitted and is
Mational Disaster Resili currently being assessed. Council will
[Windermere Road Culvert P?o;::n isaster Resilience 327,600 276,296 84% 546,000 696,436 128% 218,400 422140 24/11/2017 |receive the funds when this process is
Final to be i
in November 2017,
|50% funding received al execution of
Scotland Street/Eastgate :ﬁ'z:m:;l;‘hzlmzl jr?)gc‘;ﬂ" be received
Street - Intersection Safely  BLACKSPOT 630,000 205,000 33% 630,000 467 872 T4%, - 262872 30/06/2017 :
Imprevements Total Approved Funding has been
increased from $410,000.
Funding is received progressively during
:f“h":;“ g“” Hee Streetlo o1 praying Plus 739,900 - 0% 1,479,800 25,781 2% 739,900 25781 30/09/2018[construction. First Milestone payment due
ing Roa December 2017
50% funding received al execution of
|Quay Street East/Scotland Cyele Network Local agreement. A further 25% will be received
Stieet - Pathwiay Principal /o8 el LoeA 151,374 75687 50% 302,746 1,059 0% 151,374 (T4.628) 3010612015 upon commencement of the project. The
Cyche Network Plan vemment Srants Frogram final 25% will be received at project
lcompletion.
[Woondosma StreetTantitha 50% funding received at executicn of
Streel - Infersection Safety BLACKSPOT 334,000 167,000 50% 334 000 5818 2%, . (161,182} 30/06/2018 |agreement. The final 50% will be received
Improvements on completion of the project
[Woendooma StreetTargo 50% funding received at execution of
Street - Intersection Safety  BLACKSPOT 291,500 145750 50% 291,500 5,105 2% - (140,645)  30/06/2018 |agreement. The final 50% will be received
Improvements on completion of the project.
Payne Street\Warrell Street - 50% funding received at execution of
Intersection Safety BLACKSPOT 142,500 71.250 50% 142,500 4,373 3% - (66,877} 30/06/2018 |agreement. The final 50% will be received
Improvements on completion of the project
orks for Queensland
Final Mileslene 1o be submiled and paid in
December 2017
[Works for Queensland Variation Request for Extensien of Time
Round 1 - Works for Queensland 10,676,000 9,608 400 0% 10,676,000 B,638 357 81% (970,043} 31/12/2017 |has been submitted for
Fitzgerald/E lesse Street Roundabout
due 1o wel weather events and third party
service relocations (NBN).
[50% funding received at execution of
b orks for Qi Jand agreement. A further 40% will be received
RD"H b 2°r ueensland - Works for Gueensland 10,573 000 5286 500 50% 10,573,000 5656 0% - (5280,844)  30/06/2019 |upan expending the intial allacation The

final 10% will be received on complefion of
the project.
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fv ltem 21 November 2017

e ——
BUNDABERG
Item Number: File Number: Part:
F1 ) GOVERNANCE &
COMMUNICATIONS

Portfolio:

Organisational Services
Subject:

2016-2017 Annual Report
Report Author:

Kresha Hodges, Coordinator Corporate Planning & Performance Management
Authorised by:
Stuart Randle, General Manager Organisational Services

Link to Corporate Plan:

Our People, Our Business - 3.6 Responsible and ethical leadership and governance.

Background:

The Local Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012 require
Council to prepare an Annual Report for each financial year.

The Annual Report must be adopted within one (1) month after the day the auditor-
general gives the auditor-general’s report about Council’s financial statement for the
financial year to Council. The auditor-general’s report was received on 26 October
2017 and has provided Council with an unmodified audit opinion.

Attached for Council’s consideration is the 2016-2017 Annual Report that also
contains the 2016-2017 Financial Statements.

Associated Person/Organization:

External Auditors.
Consultation:

General Managers, Councillors, Audit & Risk Committee
Legal Implications:

This report satisfies Council’s legal obligations under Section 182(2) of the Local
Government Regulation 2012, requiring Council to adopt the Annual Report within one
(1) month of receiving the auditor-general’s report relating to the audit of Council’s
annual financial statements.

Policy Implications:

Complies with Section 201 of the Local Government Act 2009 and Section 181-190 of
the Local Government Regulation 2012

Meeting held: 21 November 2017
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Financial and Resource Implications:

There appear to be no financial or resource implications.
Risk Management Implications:

There appears to be no risk management implications.
Communications Strateqy:

Communications Team consulted. A Communication Strategy is:
] Not required
Required

Attachments:
41  Annual Report 2016-2017

Recommendation:
That:
1. the 2016-2017 Annual Report be adopted; and

2. acopy ofthe 2016-2017 Annual Report be provided to the Minister for Local
Government.

Meeting held: 21 November 2017
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1. Chief Executive Officer’'s Report

Our region is showing the green shoots of emerging prosperity.

Strateqgic alignment and partnerships between Council, State and Federal Governments, our community and
business sectors remain the drivers for the stimulation of the regional economy.

These arrangements provide Council with the planning, support and the momentum to produce outcomes
ensuring the region is on track to fulfil its potential.

To achieve these outcomes, Council continues to operate within the parameters of its core documents
including the Corporate Plan, Economic Development Strategy and annual Budget.

The financial year July 1 2016 to June 30 2017 has resulted in notable outcomes and announcements for the
Bundaberg Region.

A $89 million Capital Works program allowed Council to target its stated aim of providing infrastructure to
meet current and future community needs while sustaining the local business economy and creating jobs.

Council remains committed to providing its ratepayers with a team focussed on efficient and cost-effective
delivery of services, transparent interaction with the community and a vision that is both achievable and
affordable.

The community can take pride in the commitment Council has made through proactive engagement in
environmentally sustainable programs. Council has, through its own resources and in partnerships with
organisations like Greenfleet, undertaken to plant tens of thousands of trees across the region. That
environmental commitment is supported by Council's engagement with renewable energy and the continuing
rollout of solar energy and other energy efficiency measures across many Council assets.

Our focus in ensuring we have a prepared and resilient community continues to be achieved through our
development of in-house designed technology as demonstrated through Council's nationally recognised and
awarded Burnett River Flood Action Plan. The annual Get Ready program also heightens awareness for our
community during storm season

Major investment in projects like the Rubyanna Wastewater Treatment Plant and the Multiplex facility means
Council is delivering on a vision for the future of the region while financing projects that impact positively on
our construction and business sectors.

Right across the Bundaberg Region programs continue to be supported that offer assistance to the
disadvantaged or the remote, notably through our Neighbourhood Centres. Council's progress and
achievement are carefully benchmarked through a required Performance Report spanning all areas of
Council's operational capability.

Council will continue to engage with its community in an open, respectful and transparent manner. The social
and service obligations that are pivotal to the enjoyment of a lifestyle evident within the Bundaberg Region
will continue to be delivered by a Council team committed to best practice.

Stephen Johnston
Chief Executive Officer

Bundaberg Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17 1
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2. Community Finance Report

The Community Finance Report is prepared to provide residents, businesses and other stakeholders with an
understanding of Council's financial performance and position for the 2016-17 financial year. It aims to give
the reader a summary of Council’s financial statements along with key financial statistics and ratios.

Financial Statements are an audited formal record of the performance and position of Council. There are
four financial statements and three sustainability ratios that assist in providing a high level picture of Council
finances for 2016-17. These are described as:

2.1 Statement of Comprehensive Income - revenue and expenses in the past 12 months.

2.2 Statement of Financial Position - assets owned and liabilities owed at 30 June 2017.

2.3 Statement of Cashflows - shows the affect of revenue and expenses, assets and liabilities on cash and
investments.

2.4 Statement of Changes in Equity - movement in the community’s net wealth during the year.
2.5 Financial Sustainability Ratios - for reviewing Council performance and sustainability

(a) Operating Surplus

(b) Net financial liabilities

(c) Asset sustainability.

2.1 Statement of Comprehensive Income

The Operating Surplus is calculated by subtracting the Recurrent Expenses of $161.8 million from the
Recurrent Revenue of $179.9 million. This shows Council has made a surplus from recurrent activities of
$18.1 million. This surplus is consistent with Council’s objective of financial sustainability and affords Council
the ability to invest in the outcomes of the Community Plan Bundaberg Region 2031.

Total Income $213 million - where did this revenue come from?

Recurrent Revenue

Bundaberg Regional Council has an estimated resident population of 94,453 (Queensland Government
Statisticians Office, 2016) and 44,570 rateable properties. Ratepayers contribute 75% of Council’'s recurrent
revenue through rates and charges. Other major sources of recurrent revenue include fees and charges
(11%) and grants, subsidies, contributions and donations (9%)

Recurrent Revenue Sources

B Rates, Levies & Charges (§134.8m)
Recurrent M Fees & Charges (519.4m)

Revenue

m Sales of Goods & Recoverable Works (§6m)
W Recurrent Grants & Subsidies ($15.8m)
$1 79.9m Interest & Other Income ($3.8m)

2 Bundaberg Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17
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Why are rates, levies and charges a significant portion of revenue?

Recurrent revenue is essential for improving services and for the maintenance, renewal and development
of Council assets. To achieve these objectives, Council endeavours to raise their own sources of income, to
prevent reliance on volatile funding from the State and Federal government

Capital Revenue

Council actively pursues capital revenue ($33.8 million) through infrastructure charges and applying for
available grants and subsidies offered by the State and Federal government. This income is utilised on
capital projects during the year or is held as restricted cash for future capital projects.

Total Expenses $189 million - what was this spent on?

Recurrent Expenses

A major component of Council's recurrent expenses is Employee Benefits, representing 38%. Employee
Benefits include employee salaries and wages, councillor’s remuneration and superannuation (Employee
Benefits exclude $3.7 million in wages capitalised on asset construction).

Materials and services account for a large portion of Council's recurrent expenses, representing 31%. These
costs include repairs and maintenance on Council assets; electricity; fleet operating costs, external plant hire;
insurance premiums; consultants; raw water acquisitions, and licences.

Council's depreciation expense is in excess of $45 million. This equates to approximately $1,000 per rate
assessment, per annum. Assets wear out, are consumed and/or become obsolete over their lifetime, and
depreciation is used to record this consumption by allocating the asset's value over its useful life.

Capital Expenses

Capital expenses, totalling $27.2 million are not reflected in the operating surplus. However, they do
represent a decrease in the asset base, through loss on disposal and a decrease through revaluations.
They do not represent the expenditure on our assets for the year.

Recurrent Expense Categories

B Employee Benefits ($61.6m)
Recurrent B Materials & Services (549.6m)
W Finance Costs (34.7m)
Expenses m  Depreciation & Amortisation (545.8m)
$161.8m
Bundaberg Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17 3
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2.2 Statement of Financial Position

The Statement of Financial Position records the communily's asselts and liabilities at the end of the financial
year. The result of these two components determines the net worth of Council.

Assets $2.1 billion -
what Council owned at 30 June 2017

The major investment for Council is in assets which
provide essential services for a growing community,
namely property, plant and equipment, which has
net value of over $2 billion. Cash represents 5% of
net assets and consists predominantly of restricted
cash for future capital expenditure.

The bulk of Council's net assets are in the form of
roads, footpaths and bridges, totalling $1 billion
or 47%, while Water and Sewerage Infrastructure
account for 24% of Council's assets.

Assets
15% &

Total
Assets
$2.1 billion

Cash & Other Current Assets ($122.1m)
Land & Improvements ($74.3m)
Buildings & Structures (3175.4m)

Plant & Equipment ($40.9m)

Roads, Feotpaths & Bridges ($1b)
Stormwater Drainage (5194 4m)
Sewerage Infrastructure ($310.4m)
Water Infrastructure {$206 5m)

4 Bundaberg Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17

Liabilities $111 million -
what Council owed at 30 June 2017

The majority of Council's liabilities consist of
borrowings (52%), provisions (26%/) and trade and
other payables (21%). Provisions consist of long
service leave payable to employees at 30 June
2017 ($12.7 million), and costs that are expected
to be incurred in restoring and monitoring of landfill
sites administered by Council ($16.3 million).

Trade and other payables are made up of day-
to-day Creditors ($17.8 million), for the purchase

of items ranging from bitumen to stationery, and
Employee Entitlements ($5.3 million). Employee
entitlements consist of annual leave, wages,
superannuation and other leave amounts (excluding
long service leave) payable to employees at 30
June 2017.

Liabilities

Total
Liabilities

%111 million

Trade and Other payables {($23.1m)
Borrowings {$58.3m)

Provisions ($29.1m)

Unearned Revenue ($0.6m)
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Why are borrowings so high?

Borrowings enable Council to provide timely essential services, whilst sharing the costs over the generations
that benefit. Examples include the construction of the new Rubyanna Wastewater Treatment Plant and the
Multi-Use Sport and Community Centre. Debt per capita has remained fairly constant, as indicated by the
trend line in the graph below:

Debt Per Capita

5800

5743

5600 4565

5400

5300

2012/2013 2013/2014 2014/2015 2015/2016 J016/2017

2.3 Statement of Cashflows

This statement records the movement in cash holdings during the year. In 2017 the cash balance increased
by $11.7 million from $94.3 million to a closing balance of $106 million at year end.

Council's cash is represented by Internally Restricted Cash (Reserves) of $47.9 million, Externally Restricted
Capital Cash (unspent grants and infrastructure charges) of $23.8 million and Unrestricted Cash of $34.4
million.

Council's cashflow from operating activities remains positive, with surplus operating cash of $73 million

available for investing in assets and for the repayment of loans. Council invested $85 milliion in assets this
financial year, which was funded by capital revenue and cash from operating activities forementioned.

Council's minimum cash requirement at 30 June 2017 was estimated to be $30 million. By maintaining this
balance, possible shocks in the areas of Accounts Receivable and Accounts Payable can be accommodated
and significant capital expenditure outlays covered, which allows sufficient cash to be available between
rating periods.

Cashflow Balances

$120

e

$100
$80 NN

-
\\/\

360 ~——

Millions

$40 Total Cash

/ ~ Restricled Cash

. _/\/ unrestrictea Casn

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

IMinimum Cash
requirement
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2.4 Statement of Changes in Equity

The Statement of Changes in Equity determines the net wealth of Council, and therefore the community and
includes the asset revaluation surplus, retained surplus and capital. The statement explains the change in
the community’s retained earnings over the reporting period.

The Asset Revaluation Surplus consists of $461 million in asset revaluation increases.

Retained Surplus of $87.1 million represents restricted cash and the unallocated surplus/(deficit). At 30 June
2017 there was an unallocated surplus of $15.5 million. An unallocated surplus represents the accumulative
amount available to Council, that may be used to offset against expenditure in the following year.

Capital represents the net investment of Council funds in assets purchased to deliver future services to the
community.

2.5 Financial Sustainability Ratios

The Financial Sustainability of Council 1s now a cornerstone of the Local Government Act 2009 and a core
responsibility of Councils across Queensland.

A financially sustainable Local Government is able to maintain its financial capital by achieving an operating
surplus, ensuring it has sufficient working capital and providing the funding required for asset renewals over
the long term.

The Local Government Regulation 2012 requires Council to publish Financial Sustainability measures.

The Department of Infrastructure, Local Government and Planning has set Targets for each measure in the
Financial Management Sustainability Guideline 2013. Council does not use these measures of sustainability
as targets that must be met at the end of each financial year. Instead, the anticipated long-term results from
these measures are considered as planning tools lo assess the current sustainability strategy. This feedback
enables Council to adjust its respective strategies to produce the desired outcomes over the long-term. This
may involve amendments to adopted policies, and/or changes to the desired service levels or proposed
capital expenditure programs, which in turn, inform revisions to the budget and long-term financial forecast.

6 Bundaberg Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17
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(a) Operating Surplus Ratio
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INDICATOR
Operating Surplus Ratio (Financial)

DESCRIPTION

Indicates the extent to which operating revenues are available
to help fund proposed capital expenditure. If not required within
the year, a surplus could be held for future capital expenditure
(Reserves), to adjust working capital cash or used to reduce
current debt levels

MEASURE
Met Operating Surplus divided by Total Operating Revenue

TARGET
Between 0% and 10%

Commentary

Council has consistently achieved an operating surplus result for all but the 2014 financial year. In 2014
the operating deficit occurred due to changes in the timing of the Federal Assistance Grants and revised
methodology for calculating depreciation.

Two quarterly Federal Assistance Grant payments were received in advance for the 2018 financial year,
totalling $3.96 million. This contributed to the higher surplus achieved in 2017.

A positive ratio is essential for a growing community to assist in the funding of the proposed capital
expenditure. Council aims to maintain its long term sustainability through a positive operating surplus over
the 10 year budget forecast.

Bundaberg Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17 7
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(b) Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
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INDICATOR
Net Financial Liabilities Ratia (Financial}

DESCRIPTION

Indicates the extent to which the net financial liabilities can be
serviced by [ts operaling revenue. A value less than 60% indicates
the capacity to fund existing liabilities. A value greater than 60%
indicates limited capacity to increase borrowings.

MEASURE
Tolal Liabilities less Current Assets divided by Operating Revenue

TARGET
Not greater than 60%

Commentary

Council has consistently had a ratio well below the upper threshold. The ratio is expected to increase with
borrowings planned during the next three financial years, as Council undertakes significant capital projects
in the budget forecast period. These include the Bundaberg and Burnett Heads CBD upgrades, Regional
Aquatic Centre and the completion of the Rubyanna Wastewater Treatment Plant.

8 Bundaberg Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17
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(c) Asset Sustainability Ratio
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INDICATOR
Assel Sustainability Ratio

DESCRIPTION

Indicates whether a council is renewing or replacing existing
infrastructure assets at the same rate that its assets are being
expended

MEASURE
Capital Expenditure on Infrastructure Renewals divided by
Depreciation Expense on Infrastructure Assets.

TARGET
Greater than 90%

Commentary

The Assel Sustainability ratio for the 2017 financial year has increased to 82%, compared with 37% in 2016.
The significant increase is partially due to the deferral of planned expenditure from the 2016 to the 2017
financial year for the Rubyanna Wastewater Treatment Plant. Council has identified a portion of the total
budget expenditure as renewals, due to the increased capacity over the East Wastewater Treatment Plant
that it replaces.

This ratio will fluctuate year to year depending on the projected renewal programs outlined in Council's asset
management plans. When assessing asset sustainability, Council looks at long term trends. The current

5 year average and the life-to-date average sits at the target rate of 90%. However, it is predicted to trend
downwards slightly over the budget forecast years. Council will monitor this trend for future planning.
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3.1 Statement of COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2017

30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
Note $ $
Income
Revenue
Recurrent Revenue
Rates, levies and charges 3(a) 134,793,580 128,542 564
Fees and charges 3(b) 19,360,242 19,263,907
Interest received 3(c) 3,747 774 3,661,865
Contract and recoverable works 5,039,489 3,969,102
Sale of goods 986,862 981,336
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4(a) 16,864 226 11,762,203
Profit on sale of developed land held for resale 74,444 -
Total recurrent revenue 179,866,617 168,170,977
Capital Revenue
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4(b} 30,351,394 A7 225775
Total Revenue 210,218,011 205,396,752
Capital Income 5 3,491,816 1,030,618
TOTAL INCOME 213,709 827 206 427 370
Expenses
Recurrent Expenses
Employee benefits 6 (61,648,407) (63,078,339)
Iaterials and services T (49,625,255) (47,520.127)
Finance costs 8 (4,712 963) (4,509 694)
Depreciation of property plant and equipment 15 (45,292 826) (45,115,212}
Amortisation of intangible assets 17 (496,763) (437.175)
Total recurrent expenses (161.775,214) (160,660,547)
Capital Expenses 9 (27,223,625) (5,969,014}
TOTAL EXPENSES (188,998,839) (166,629,561)
NETRESULT 24,710,988 39,797,809
Net Result Attributable To:
Operating surplus 18,091,403 7,510,430
Capital surplus 6,619 585 32 287 379
24,710,988 39,797,809
Other Comprehensive Income
Items That Will Not Be Classified To Net Result
Increase/(decrease) in asset revaluation surplus 21 94,096,227 32198771
Total Other Comprehensive Income 94,096 227 32,198 771
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 118,807,215 71,996,580

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies
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3.2 Statement of FINANCIAL POSITION
For the year ended 30 June 2017
30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
Note $ $
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10 106,021,236 94,357,604
Trade and other receivables 1 16,099,627 16,917,951
Inventories 12 4,090,453 4,137 946
Non-current assets held for sale 13 798,233 325,681
Total Current Assets 127,009,549 115,739,182
Non-Current Assets
Investment property 14 8,347,178 5,693 418
Property, plant and equipment 15 1,994932761  1,799,000,742
Intangible assets 17 6,560,269 7,105,787
Total Non-Current Assets 2,009 840,208 1,811,799 947
TOTAL ASSETS 2,136,849,757 1,927,539,129
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 23,117,219 14,117,403
Borrowings 19 5,638,483 5,382 267
Provisions 20 12,089,836 11,986,424
Unearned revenue 570,928 457 158
Total Current Liabilities 41,416,466 31,943,252
Non-Current Liabilities
Borrowings 19 52 638,535 58,151,171
Provisions 20 17,005,728 16,330,258
Total Non-Current Liabilities 69,644,263 74,481,429
TOTAL LIABILITIES 111,060,729 106,424 681
NET COMMUNITY ASSETS 2,025,789,028 1,821,114 448
Community Equity
Assel revaluation surplus 21 461,030,782 366,960,006
Retained surplus 22 87144143 76,730,862
Capital 1,477 614,103 1,377,423 490
TOTAL COMMUNITY EQUITY 2,025,789,028 1,821,114 448
The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies.
Bundaberg Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17 13
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3.3 Statement of CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Asset
Revaluation Retained
Total Surplus Surplus Capital
Note 21 Note 22
$ $ $ S

Balances as at 1 July 2016 1,821,114,448 366,960,096 76,730,862 1,377,423 490
Assets not previously recognised/(derecognised) 85,867,365 - - 85,867 365

Net result 24,710,988 - 24,710,988

Total other comprehensive income

Increase/(decrease) in asset revaluation surplus 94,006,227 94,006,227 - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 118,807,215 94,096,227 24,710,988 -
Transfers

Transfers to/from capital - (25,541) (14,297,707) 14,323,248
Total transfers - (25,541) (14,297 707) 14,323,248
Balance at 30 June 2017 2025789028 461,030,782 87 144143 1477614103
Balances as at 1 July 2015 1,716,907,314 334 761,325 51,717,681 1,330,428 308
Assets not previously recognised/(derecognised) 32,210,554 - - 32,210,554

Net result 39,797,809 - 30,797,809 -

Total other comprehensive income

Increase/(decrease) in asset revaluation surplus 32198771 32198771 - -

Total comprehensive income for the year 71,996,580 32198771 39,797 809 -
Transfers

Transfers to/from capital - - (14,784 628) 14,784 628
Total transfers . - (14,784,628) 14,784 628
Balance at 30 June 2016 1,821,114,448 366,960,006 76,730,862 1,377,423 490

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies.
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3.4 Statement of CASHFLOWS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
Note s S
Cash Flows from Operating Activities :
Receipts from customers 169,875,858 158,873,662
Payments to suppliers and employees (112,326,066) (118,572 ,520)
57,549,792 40,301,142
Recurrent grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 15,376,615 11,799 470
Interest received 3,608 077 3,697 681
Proceeds from sale of developed land held for resale 96,100 -
Costs incurred on developed land held for resale (5,552) (26,557)
Borrowing costs (3,111,804) (3,437,995)
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Operating Activities 28 73,513,228 52,333,741
Cash Flow from Investing Activities :
Proceeds from sale of non-current assets held for sale 61,487 823727
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 693 119 3,082 892
Capital grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 28,102 217 14,656,242
Payments for property, plant and equipment (85,324,153) (46,174 499)
Payments for intangible assets - (490,938)
Payments for invesiment property - (135,788)
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Investing Activities (56,467 330) (28,238 364)
Cash Flow from Financing Activities :
Repayment of borrowings (5,382 ,266) (6,671,925)
Net Cash Inflow/(Outflow) from Financing Activities (5,382 266) (6,671 ,925)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash Held 11,663,632 17,423 452
Cash at beginning of reporting period 94 357,604 76,934 152
Cash at End of Reporting Period 10 106,021,236 04,357 604

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant Accounting Policies
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3.5 Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2017

1.01

1.04

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation

These general purpose financial statements are
for the period 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017 and
have been prepared in compliance with the
requirements of the Local Government Act 2009
and the Local Government Regulation 2012 .
Consequently, these financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting
Interpretations and other authoritative
pronouncements issued by the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB).

These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except for
certain assets which are measured at fair value.

Statement of compliance

These general purpose financial statements
comply with all accounting standards and
interpretations issued by the AASB that are
relevant to Bundaberg Regional Council's
('Council') operations and effective for the current
reporting period. Because Council is a not-for-
profit entity and the Australian Accounting
Standards include requirements for not-for-profit
entities which are inconsistent with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), to the
extent these inconsistencies are applied this
report does not comply with IFRS.

Constitution

Bundaberg Regional Council is constituted under
the Queensland [ acal Government Act 2009 and
is domiciled in Australia.

Currency
Council uses the Australian Dollar as its
functional currency and its presentation currency.

Date of authorisation

The financial statements were authorised for
Issue on the date they were submitted to the
Auditor-General for final signature. This is the
date the management certificate is signed.

Rounding and comparatives
Amounts included in the financial statements
have been rounded to the nearest $1.

Comparative information has been restated where

necessary to be consistent with disclosures in the
current reporting period.

Bundaberg Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17

1.07 Critical accounting judgements and key

1.08

1.09

sources of estimation uncertainty

Where necessary judgements, estimates and
assumptions have been used in preparing these
financial statements. Those that have a
significant effect or risk of causing an adjustment
to Council's assets or liabilities relate to

-%aluation of Investment Property (Note 14)

- Waluation of Property, Plant and Equipment (Note 16)
including:

* valuation of infrastructure assets using the
depreciated replacement cost method

* useful lives; and

* residual values.

- Impairment of Property. Plant and Equipment (Note 16)

- Impairment of Intangibles {Mote 17)

- Impairment of Non-Current Assets Held for Sale (Mote 13)

- Impairment of Receivables (Note 11)

- Contingent Liabilities (Note 25)

- Employee Provisions (Note 20)

- Restoration Provisions (Nate 20)

Taxation

Income of local authorities and public authorities
is exempt from Commonwealth taxation except
for Fringe Benefits Tax ('FBT') and Goods and
Services Tax ('GST'). The net amount of GST
recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office
("ATQ") or payable to the ATO is shown as an
asset or liability respectively.

Council pays Payroll Tax to the Queensland
Government on certain activities.

Recurrent and capital classification

Revenue and expenditure are presented as
"recurrent” or "capital in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income on the following basis
Capital revenue includes grants, subsidies,
confributions and donations (cash and non-cash)

received which are tied to specific projects for non-

current assets.

The following transactions are classified as either

"Capital Income" or "Capital Expenses"

depending on whether they result in accounting

gains or losses.

- disposal of non-current assets

- disposal of non-current assets held for sale

- adjustments to restoration provisions on land
not controlled by Council

- revaluations of investment property

All other revenue and expenses have been
classified as "recurrent”.
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Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

1 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)

1.10 Adoption of new and revised accounting

standards

In the current year, Council adopted all of the new
and revised Standards and Interpretations issued
by the AASB that are relevant to its operations
and effective for the current reporting period.

This year Council has applied AASB 124 Related
Party Disclosures for the first ime. As a result
Council has disclosed information about related
parties and transactions with those related
parties. This information is presented in Note 31.

Council has not applied any Australian
Accounting Standards and Interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective.
Generally Council applies standards and
interpretations in accordance with their respective
commencement dates.

The expected impacts of new or amended
Australian Accounting Standards with future
commencement dates are as set out below
AASE 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers; AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit
Eniities, and AASB 2016-8 Amendments lo
Australian Accounting Standards - Australian
Implementation Guidance for Non-for-Profit
Entities

AASB 15 will replace AASB 118 Revenue, AASB
111 Construction Contracts and a number of
Interpretations. AASB 2016-8 provides Australian
Requirements and guidance for not-for-profit
entities in applying AASB 9 and AASB 15. AASB
1058 will replace AASB 1004 Contributions.
Together they come into effect from the 1 July
2019 and contain a comprehensive and robust
framework for the recognition, measurement and
disclosure of income including revenue from
confract with customers.

Council is still reviewing the way that income is
measured and recognised to identify whether
there will be any material impact arising from
these standards. To date the following impact
has been identified:

At 30 June 2017 Council had received pre-paid
rates totalling $6 553,892, These rates are
recognised as revenue in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income. If Council had applied
AASB 1058 this year these rates would have
been recognised as a liability in the Statement of
Financial Position and therefore decrease
Council's net result.

1.10

0]

(it)

(iil)

Adoption of new and revised accounting
standards (Cont'd)

AASB 16 - Leases

Council has some leases that are not on its
Statement of Financial Position. These will need
to be included on the Statement of Financial
Position when this standard comes into effect
from the 1 July 2019 A lease hability will initially
be measured at the present value of the lease
payments to be made over the lease term with a
corresponding right-of-use asset to be recognised
over the lease term.

Council is still reviewing the full impact of AASB
16.

Other amended Australian Accounting Standards
and Interpretations which were issued at the date
of authorisation of the financial statements, but
have future commencement dates are not likely to
have a material impact on the financial
statements.

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable.

Rates, levies and charges

Where rate monies are received prior to the
commencement of the rating period, the amount
is recognised as revenue in the period in which
they are received, otherwise rates are recognised
at the date they are levied

Grants, subsidies. contributions and donations
Grants, subsidies and contributions that are non-
reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue in
the year in which Council obtains control over
them. Council only receives grants, subsidies
and contributions that are non-reciprocal in
nature

Fees and charges

Fees and charges are recognised upon
unconditional entitlement to the funds. Generally
this is upon lodgement of the relevant applications
or documents, issuing of the infringement notice
or when the service is provided. Rental revenue
Is recognised as income on a periodic straight line
basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

1.1
(iv)

)

(vi)

18

Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)

Revenue (Cont'd)

Contract and recoverable works

Council generates revenues from a number of
services including contracts for road and
earthworks. Revenue from contracts and
recoverable works generally comprises a
recoupment of material costs together with an
hourly charge for use of equipment and
employees. Contract revenue and associated
costs are recognised by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the reporting
date. Revenue is measured at the fair value of
consideration received or receivable in relation to
that activity. Where consideration is received for
the service in advance it is included in unearned
revenue and is recognised as revenue in the
period when the service is performed.

Infrastructure charges
Infrastructure charges are not within the scope of

AASB Interpretation 18 because there is no
performance obligation associated with them
Consequently, the infrastructure charges are
recognised as income when received.

Non-Monetary contributions

MNon-cash contributions with a value in excess of
the asset recognition thresholds are recognised
as capital revenue and as non-current assets.
MNon-cash contributions below the asset
thresholds are recorded as recurrent revenue and
expenses. Non-cash contributions are disclosed
under grants, subsidies, contributions and
donations.

Physical assets contributed to Council by
developers are recognised as revenue when the
development becomes "on maintenance” (i.e.
Council obtains control of the assets and
becomes liable for any ongoing maintenance) and
there is sufficient data in the form of drawings and
plans to determine the approximate specifications
and values of such assets. All non-cash
contributions are recognised at the fair value of
the contribution received.
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1.12

1.14

Receivables

Trade receivables are recognised at the amounts
due at the time of sale or service delivery i.e.
agreed purchase price or contract price.
Settlement of these amounts is required within 30
days from the invoice date.

The collectability of receivables is assessed
monthly and if there is objective evidence that
Council will not be able to collect all amounts due,
the carrying amount is reduced for impairment
The loss is recognised in finance costs.

Because Council has the power under the Local
Government Act 2009 to sell an owner's property
to recover outstanding rate debts, Council
generally does not impair any rate receivables.
However, Council cannot recover any debt by
way of sale under the Local Government Act 2009
where a lessee of a property is responsible for the
rates on a property in accordance with formal
lease conditions. Consequently, when the debt
becomes unrecoverable, it is impaired

Inventories
Stores inventaries are valued at cost, adjusted,
when applicable, for any loss of service potential.

Land purchased for development and sale is
classified as inventory. As inventory, this land is
valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

Profit arising upon sale of land is recognised at
the date a signed contract becomes
unconditional

Non-Current assets held for sale

MNon-current assets held for sale are available for
immediate sale in their present condition and
management believe the sale is highly probable.
The assets are not depreciated. On the eventual
sale of these assets a gain or loss is recognised.

The assets are valued at the lower of carrying
value and fair value less cost fo sell. Further
information about the valuation techniques used
to derive fair value are included in Note 16.

Impairment occurs when on transfer from
property, plant and equipment the asset is no
longer measured at its fair value but at fair value
less disposal costs.
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Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

1 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)

1.15 Investment property
Investment property i1s measured using the fair
value model. This means all investment property
is initially recognised at cost (including transaction
costs) and then subsequently revalued annually at
the balance date by a registered valuer. Where
investment property is acquired at no or nominal
cost it is recognised at fair value.

All investment property was valued at fair value at
30 June 2017. Further information about the
valuation techniques used to derive fair value are
included in Note 16.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are recognised as
incomes or expenses respectively for the period
in which they arise. Investment property is not
depreciated.

1.16 Property, plant and equipment
Each class of property, plant and equipment is
stated at cost or fair value less, where applicable,
any accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment loss. Buildings with a total value of
less than $10,000, plant and equipment with a
total value of less than $5 000 and land with a
total value of less than $1 are treated as an
expense in the year of acquisition. All other items
of property, plant and equipment are capitalised.

Land under the road network within Council's area
that has been dedicated and opened for public
use under the Land Act 1994 or the Land Title
Act 1994 is not controlled by Council but is
confrolled by the State pursuant to the relevant
legislation. Therefore this land is not recognised
as an asset in these financial statements.
Purchases are disclosed in Note 7 as an recurrent
expense.

(i) Acquisition of assets
Acquisition of assets are initially recorded at cost.
Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets
given as consideration plus costs incidental to the
acquisition, including design fees, architect's fees
and establishment costs.

Property, plant and equipment, received in the
form of contributions are recognised as assets
and revenues at fair value by Council valuation
where that value exceeds the recognition
thresholds for the respective asset class.

1.16
(1)

Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)
Valuation

Land and improvements, buildings and structures
and infrastructure assets are measured on the
revaluation basis, at fair value, in accordance with
AASB116 Property, Plant and Equipment and
AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement . Plant and
equipment I1s measured at cost

Non-current physical assets measured at fair
value are revalued, where required, so that the
carrying amount of each class of asset does not
materially differ from its fair value at the reporting
date. This is achieved by engaging independent,
professionally qualified valuers to determine the
fair value for each class of property, plant and
equipment assels at least once every 5 years.
This process involves the valuer physically
sighting a representative sample of Council
assets across all asset classes and making their
own assessments of the condition of the assets at
the date of inspection

Council continuously reviews asset conditions
through the processing of capital expenditure via
condition assessment data gathered during
planned inspections and reactive maintenance
work. Where unit rates are provided by
independent valuers, the data is entered into the
asset register and the condition score is a factor
in calculating the fair value of the asset. The
valuers physically inspect a sampling of assets to
confirm Council's condition assessment

In the intervening years, Council will assess cost
assumptions associated with infrastructure assets
and may engage independent valuers to provide
desklop valuations by indexation. Where the
indices indicate a material movement in the fair
value of a subclass of assets, all assets within
that subclass, other than assets constructed or
gifted during the year, will be revalued by the
applicable indice.

On revaluation, the carrying amount of the asset
is adjusted to the revalued amount. Al the date of
revaluation, the gross carrying amount is adjusted
in a manner that is consistent with the revaluation
of the carrying amount of the asset. The
accumulated depreciation is adjusted to equal the
difference between the gross carrying amount
and the carrying amount of the asset.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)

1.16 Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)
(i) Valuation (Cont'd)
Separately identified components of assets are
measured on the same basis as the assets to
which they relate.

Further details in relation to valuers, the methods
of valuation and the key assumptions used are
disclosed in Note 16.

() Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
calculated on a straight-line basis so as to write-
off the net cost or revalued amount of each
depreciable asset, less its estimated residual
value, progressively over its estimated useful life
to Council. Management believe that the straight-
line basis appropriately reflects the pattern of
consumption of all Council assets.

Land and other identified asset components (road
formation, specific excavation works and
earthworks) are not depreciated as they have
unlimited useful lives.

Assets are depreciated from the date of
acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed
assets, from the time an asset is practically
complete.

Where assels have separately identifiable
components that are subject to regular
replacement, these components are assigned
useful lives distinct from the asset to which they
relate. Any expenditure that increases the
originally assessed capacity or service potential of
an asset is capitalised and the new depreciable
amount is depreciated over the remaining useful
life of the asset to Council.

Major spares purchased specifically for particular
assels that are above the asset recognition
threshold are capitalised and depreciated on the
same basis as the asset to which they relate.

Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment
assels are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and adjusted where necessary to reflect
any changes in the pattern of consumption,
physical wear and tear, technical or commercial
obsolescence, or management intentions.
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1.16 Property, plant and equipment (Cont'd)
(i) Depreciation (Cont'd)

The condition assessments performed as part of
the annual valuation process for assets measured
at depreciated current replacement cost are used
to estimate the useful lives of these assets at
each reporting date. Details of the range of
estimated useful lives are shown in Note 15.

1.17 Intangible assets

Only intangible assets which have a cost

exceeding $10,000 are recognised as intangible

assets in the financial statements, with items of a

lesser value being expensed

Expenditure on research activities relating to
internally-generated intangible assets is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it
is incurred

Costs associated with the development of
computer software are capitalised and are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the period
of expected benefit to Council. The amortisation
method and useful lives are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period where appropriate.

1.18 Impairment of non-current assets

Property plant and equipment and intangible
assels are assessed for indicators of impairment
on an annual basis. Investment property is not
tested for impairment

1.19 Financial assets and financial liabilities
Council recognises a financial asset or a financial
liability in its Statement of Financial Position
when, and only when, Council becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument

Council has categorised and measured the
financial assets and financial liabilities held at
balance date as follows:

Financial assets
- Cash and cash equivalents (Note 10)
- Receivables - measured at amortised cost (Note 11)

Einancial liabilities
- Payables - measured at amortised cost (Note 18)
- Borrowings - measured at amortised cost (Mote 19)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
presented separately from each other and
offsetting has not been applied.
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1 Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)

1.20 Trade payables
Creditors are recognised upon receipt of the
goods or services ordered and are measured at
the agreed purchase/contract price net of
applicable discounts and other contingent
discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured and
are generally settled on 30 day terms from the
end of month.

1.21 Liabilities - employee benefits
(i) Wages and other employee entitlements

A liability for wages, superannuation and time off
in lieu is recognised and measured as the amount
unpaid at the reporting date at current pay rates in
respect of employees' services up to that date. A
liability for rostered days off are calculated on
current wage and salary levels indexed for 50% of
the annual increase in the Enterprise Bargaining
Agreement (EBA). These entitlements are
recorded as a liability in Note 18.

(i} Annual leave
A liability for annual leave is recognised.
Amounts expected to be settled within 12 months
are calculated on current wage and salary levels
indexed for the increase in the EBA and includes
related employee on-costs. Amounts not
expected to be settled within 12 months are
calculated on projected future wage and salary
levels. These projections are based on increases
in the EBA and averaged CP| for years beyond
the EBA and related employee on-costs which are
then discounted to present values using
Commonwealth Bond Yields.

As Council does not have an unconditional right
to defer this liability beyond 12 months, annual
leave is classified as a current liability. This
liability is reported in Note 18.

(i) Long service leave
A liability for long service leave is measured as
the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows to be made in respect of services
provided by employees up to the reporting date
The value of the liability is calculated using
current pay rates and projected future increases
in those rates based on increases in the EBA and
averaged CPI for years beyond the EBA and
related employee on-cosls.

1.21
(i)

Liabilities - employee benefits (Cont'd)

Long service leave (Cont'd)

The estimates are adjusted for the probability of
the employee remaining in Council’'s employment
or other associated employment which would
result in Council being required to meet the
liability. Adjustments are then made to allow for
the proportion of the benefit earned to date, and
the result is discounted to present value. The
interest rates attaching to Commonwealth Bond
Yields at the reporting date are used to discount
the estimated future cash outflows to their present
value. This liability is reported in Note 20.

Where employees have met the prerequisite
length of service (5 years) and Council does not
have an unconditional right to defer this liability
beyond 12 months, long service leave is
classified as a current liability. Otherwise it is
classified as non-current.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value
plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition these liabilities
are measured at amortised cost

In accordance with the Local Government
Regulation 2012 Council adopts an annual debt
policy that sets out Council's planned borrowings
for the next ten years. Council's current policy is
to only borrow for capital projects and for a term
of 5-20 years.

Restoration provisions

The provision is measured at the expected cost of
the work required by applying averaged CPl and
discounted to current day values using an
appropriate rate. Queensland Treasury
Corporation's lending rates are considered an
appropriate rate.

The calculation of this provision requires
assumptions such as application of environmental
legislation, site closure dates, available
technologies and engineering cost estimates.
These uncertainties may result in future actual
expenditure differing from amounts currently
provided. Because of the long-term nature of the
liability, the most significant uncertainty in
estimating the provision is the costs that will be
incurred.
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Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

(i)

Significant accounting policies (Cont'd)

Restoration provisions (Cont'd)

Restoration on land not controlled by Council
Where the restoration site is on State reserves
which Council does not control, the cost of the
provisions for restoration of these sites is treated
as an expense in the year the provision is first
recognised. Changes in the provision not arising
from the passing of time are treated as capital
income or capital expense.

Restoration on land controlled by Council

Where the restoration site is on Council controlled
land, the cost of the restoration provision is added
to the cost of the land as an improvement and
depreciated over the expected useful life of the
landfill. Changes in the provision not arising from
the passing of time are added to or deducted from
the asset revaluation surplus, for land and
improvements. If there is no available revaluation
surplus increases in provision are treated as an
expense and recovered out of future decreases (if

any).

Changes to the provision resulting from the
passing of time (the unwinding of the discount)
are treated as a finance cost
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(a)

-

-

Analysis of results by function

Component functions of Council

The activities relating to Council's functions reported on
in Note 2(b) - Analysis of results by function are as
follows

Council departments

Executive Support

Objectives:

Engagement with all levels of government in the
development of strategy and policy.

Responsible ethical leadership and governance.
Vibrant and positive profile for Council and our region
within our state, nation and internationally.
Well-informed, up-to-date and connected community
and staff, inspired by our vision, leadership and
teamwork, actively engaged in community life and
Council work.

Delivery of cost-effective and efficient essential services
to support our growing population.

Dynamic and vibrant region that attracts and supports
innovation, creative enterprise and economic
development

Departments:

Chief Executive Officer

Elected Representatives

Communications and Media

Commercial Business and Economic Development

Organisational Services

Objeclives.

Sustainable financial position.

Strategic and coordinated asset investment and
management.

Safe working environments and a skilled workforce
committed to delivering quality services.

Responsive customer service that meets the needs of
our community and supports Council's delivery of
services.

Organisational structure, processes and systems that
innovatively support effective governance and service
delivery.

Departments:

Financial Services

Customer Service

Human Resource Management

Information Technology and Services

Insurance and Legal Services

Infrastructure and Planning

Objectives.

Connected, accessible and reliable roads and drainage
infrastructure and networks.

Quality and future-focused roads and drainage
infrastructure that meets our community's current and
future needs.

Departments:

Development

Major Projects

Roads, Infrastructure and Pathways

Stormwater Drainage

Support Services

.

Community and Environment

Objectives:

Community that values arts and culture.

Sustainable built environments and local projects that
support our growing population and promote economic
investment and development.

Supportive business environment that facilitates
collaboration and promotes positive economic growth
and investment.

Community places, spaces and facilities that promote
and support safe, active and healthy community life.
Community programs, projects and events that facilitate
and encourage social connectedness and community
wellbeing.

Community actively engaged in creative industries,
digital technologies and life-long learning.

Our regional culture, identity and hentage, valued,
celebrated, developed and preserved.

Lifestyle and environments protected and maintained
through environmental health programs and
administration of regulatory responsibilities.
Community safety and resilience in disaster events.
Well-maintained foreshore, natural areas and facilities
that enhance community and visitor enjoyment and
stimulate economic and population growth
Departments:

Airport

Community Care

Community and Youth Development

Community Events

Health and Regulatory Services

Library, Arts and Theatre

Parks and Natural Areas

Tourism Activities

Venues and Facilities

The following functions constitute Type 1 business
activities under the National Competition Policy
guidelines as outlined in the Local Government Act 2009
and Local Government Regulation 2012,

Waste Management
Objectives:

- Connected, accessible and reliable waste infrastructure

and networks.
Quality and future-focused waste infrastructure that
meets our community's current and future needs

Wastewater Services

Objectives.

Connected, accessible and reliable wastewater
infrastructure and networks.

Quality and future-focused wastewater infrastructure that
meets our community's current and future needs.

Water Services

Objeclives:

Connected, accessible and reliable water infrastructure
and networks.

Quality and future-focused water infrastructure that
meets our community's current and future needs.
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For the year ended 30 June 2017

2 Analysis of results by function

(b) Income and expenses are attributed to the following functions:

Functions Grant Other Total Total Net
Revenue Revenue Revenue Expenses Result Assets
$ $ $ $ $ $

Council

departments 34,182,002 094333934 128515936 118,550,958 9,964 978 1,565 425800
Waste services - 22 114,176 22,114.176 20,164,649 1,949 527 13,278,002
Wastewater

services 1,740,898 31,434,805 33,175,703 24,984,353 8,191,350 334 860,991
Water services - 20904012 29,904,012 25298 879 4605133 223 284 964
Total 35,022,900 177,786,927 213,700,827 188,098,839 24,710,988 2.136,849 757

For the year ended 30 June 2016

Functions Grant Other Total Total Net
Revenue Revenue Revenue Expenses Result Assets
$ $ $ $ $ $

Council

departments 22,931,422 99,461,211 122,392,633 98,627,433 23,765,200 1,406,808 669
Wasle services - 22,378,047 22.378,047 18,664,998 3,713,049 15,726,903
Wastewater

services 3,037,176 29,619,759 32,656,935 23,896,260 8,760,675 299 446,754
Water services - 28,999 755 28,999,755 25,440,870 3,558,885 205,556,803
Total 25,968,598 180,458,772 206427370 166,629 561 39,797,809 1,927 538129
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30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
Note $ $
3 Revenue analysis
(a) Rates, levies and charges
General rates 75,762 186 72,217,910
Waste collection 14,061 670 13,499 384
Water 25,948 163 24,792 200
Wastewater 26,481,226 25,180,884
Special rates and charges 384 210 383,291
Total rates and utility charge revenue 142 637,455 136,073 669
Less. Discounts (6,451,137) (6,146,053)
Less: Pensioner remissions (1,392,738) (1,385,052)
Net rates and utility charges 134,793 580 128,542 564
(b) Fees and charges
Tourism and events 349 561 363,051
Community care and aged care fees 235020 250,894
Cemetery fees 341,294 398,958
Hire of facilities and rental income 2,315,702 2,212 639
Airport fees 5,035 184 4,457 533
Fines, penalties and infringements 391,624 442 338
Health, licenses and registrations 883 674 916,788
Wasle and recycling fees 3,764 984 4,004,312
Building, planning and plumbing fees 2,602 696 3,105,101
Holiday park income 2,342 505 2,151,298
Rate search fees 505,550 553 696
Commissions 229976 212,432
Other fees and charges 272472 184,867
19,360,242 19,253,907
(c) Interest received
Interest received from cash and cash equivalents 3,080 451 2,985,559
Interest from overdue rates, levies and charges 667 323 676,306
3747774 3,661,865

4 Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations
(a) Recurrent
Recurrent grants, subsidies, contributions and donations are analysed as follows

Grants and subsidies 15,477 907 11,347,397
Contributions and donations 386,319 414,806
15,864,226 11,762,203
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30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
Note $ $
4 Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations (Cont'd)
(b) Capital
Capital grants, subsidies, contributions and donations are analysed as follows:
(I) Monetary revenue received
Grants and subsidies 20,444 993 14,621,201
Infrastructure charges 4,069,070 3,298 419
Other capital contributions 1,291,639 1,125,291
25,805,602 10,044 911
(i} Non-Monetary revenue received: *
Infrastructure assets contributed by developers at fair value 4,485,292 17,565,548
Non-Infrastructure assets donated G0 500 615316
4,545 792 18,180,864

*Physical assets contributed to Council by developers in the form of roads, stormwater drainage. water and wastewater

infrastructure, park equipment and plant.

30,351,394

37,225,775

(c) Conditions over contributions

Restricted contributions recognised as income during the reporting period that were unspent at period end:

Capital grants and subsidies 3,900,152 784,544
Infrastructure charges 3,243 516 2,577,384
Other capital contributions 824 118 111,214

7,967 786 3,473,142

Restricted contributions recognised as income during a previous reporting period that were spent in the

current period:

Capital grants and subsidies 620,892 307,176

Infrastructure charges 1,022 176 2,468,549

Other capital contributions 154,991 -
1,798,059 2,775,725

Council receives different forms of contributions from external parties including capital grants and subsidies from State and
Federal Governments, infrastructure contributions from developers and other capital contributions from local business. These

contributions have conditions attached which restrict what the funds can be spent on.

5 Capital income

Decrease in provision for land restoration 571,516 786,401
Revaluation of investment property 14 2,917,860 73,114
Gain on sale of non-current assets held for sale 2440 171,103
Total capital income 3,491 816 1,030,618
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30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
Note $ $
6 Employee benefits
Staff wages and salaries 48388 475 48,729 520
Councillors' remuneration 1,000,203 1,020,445
Annual, sick and long service leave entitlements 8,060,355 8,352,984
Superannuation 26 6,356,680 6,316,968
Other employee related expenses 2021176 2,403 552
Total employee benefits 55,635,889 66,823 469
Less: Capitalised employee expenses (4,187 482) (3,745,130)
Net employee benefits 61,648,407 63,078,339

Councillor remuneration represents salary and other allowances paid in respect of carrying out their duties.

7 Materials and services

Audit services (1) 155,000 155,000
Rentals and investment property 793,807 631,192
Grants, contributions and donations 1,634,384 1,653,438
Valuation fees 450 453 353,899
Public safety and security 1,624,530 1,758,000
Communications 1,182,733 1,230,478
Licences and subscriptions 1,489 268 1,147 527
Information technology hardware and software 1,267,924 390,344
Consumables 13,282,356 13,001,971
Insurance premiums 1,648,165 1,691,579
External plant hire 3,825,683 3,756,156
Professional services 1,628,418 1,763,700
External labour hire 833,289 1,220,362
Repairs and maintenance 4,267,354 6,225,799
Land acquisitions and resumptions 177,689 350,122
Election costs - 276,957
Literature for libraries 482,336 488,579
HMAS Tobruk Dive Experience project 1,125,000 -
Non-capital projects 2,250,212 725,068
Other material and services 11,506,654 10,699,866
49 625 255 47 520,127

(i) The audit services amount recorded in this note includes expected audit costs associated with the audit of Bundaberg
Regional Council. Comparative information has been updated for actual costs incurred where applicable
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8 Finance costs
Interest payable
Impairment of debts
Bank charges
Landfill restoration - change in provision over time

9 Capital Expenses
Loss on impairment of non-current assets held for sale
Increase in provision for landfill restoration
Revaluation decrement of land and improvements
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of intangibles

30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
Note $ $

3,237 651 3,584 001
767,809 144748
287283 282513
20 420 220 498 432
4712 963 4,509 694
13 12,401 3,860
1,323 585 1,258,727

(i 21,305,959 -
4,531 925 4,477,304
49 755 229123
27,223,625 5,969,014

) The land and improvements asset class was comprehensively revalued during the financial year. There was a change in
valuation methodology from the previous comprehensive valuation in 2012, Consequently there was a significant decrease in
the value of the asset class. This decrease was greater than the amount available in the Asset Revaluation Surplus
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30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
Note $ $
10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank and on hand 721,236 3,157,604
Deposits at call 37,400,000 43,050,000
Term deposits 67,900,000 48,150,000
Balance per statement of cash flows 106,021,236 94 357 604

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, all cash and cheques receipted but not banked at the year end, deposits
held at call with financial institutions and other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of twelve months
or less (generally investments terms are six months or less) that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash and deposits at call are held at the Commonwealth Bank, Bendigo Bank and in a Queensland Treasury Corporation
Capital Guaranteed Cash Fund account, with credit ratings ranging from A1+ to A2,

Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to a number of internal and external restrictions that limit the amount that is
available for discretionary or future use. These restrictions are managed using internal management accounting functions.

Internally imposed expenditure restrictions at the reporting date 22 47,865 618 58,268,247

Externally imposed expenditure restrictions at the reporting date
relate to the following cash assets:

Unspent capital grants, subsidies and contributions 22 4,901,144 952,756
Unspent infrastructure charges 22 18,852,111 16,630,771
Unspent loan monies - 5,558,729
23,753 255 23,143,256
Total unspent restricted cash for capital projects 71,618 873 81,411,503
11 Trade and other receivables
Rateable revenue and utility charges 5,751,868 6,011,426
Accounts receivable 7,021,885 9,134 473
Less impairment (116,847) (34,902)
GST recoverable 2,376,684 777,830
Prepayments 1,066 037 1029124
16,099 627 16,917,951

Interest is charged on outstanding rates at a rate of 11% per annum. No interest is charged on accounts receivable. All
known bad debts were written-off at 30 June
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30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
Note $ $
12 Inventories
(a) Stores inventories 699 153 730542

Stores inventories are held for distribution. They are goods to be supplied at no or a nominal charge and goods to be used
for the pravision of services at no or a nominal charge

The value of inventory recognised as an expense during the period was $2 676,773 (2016 §2 984 451),

(b) Land purchased for development and resale

Opening balance 3,407 404 3,380,847
Additions 5,552 26,557
Less: Cost of developed land sold (21,656) -

Closing balance at end of financial year 3,391,300 3,407 404

Tolal inventories 4,090,453 4,137,946

Land acquired with the intention of reselling it (with or without further development) and land transferred from Property, Plant
and Equipment for development and sale is classified as inventory.

13 Non-current assets held for sale

Opening balance 325,681 982 166
Internal transfer from land and improvements 15 544,000 -
Assets sold during financial year (59,047) (652 ,625)
Impairment adjustment in period (12,401) (3,860)

Closing balance at end of financial year 798,233 325 681

Items of property, plant and equipment are reclassified as non-current assets held for sale when the carrying amount of these
assets will be recovered principally through a sales transaction rather than continuing use.

Council had resolved to sell parcels of vacant land that serve no strategic purpese.

14 Investment property

Fair value at beginning of financial year 5,693,418 -
Internal transfer from buildings and structures 15 - 167,216
Internal transfer from/(to) land and improvements 15 (264,100) 5,317,300
Investment property acquired at cost - 135,788
Revaluation adjustment to the income account 5 2,917 860 73,114

Fair value at end of financial year 8,347 178 5,693 418

Investment property comprises:

- land which is held for an undetermined future use
- land which is held for capital appreciation

- land which is held to earn rentals

- residential property which is rented out

At reporting date there was no property being constructed or developed for future use as investment property.
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Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

15 Property, plant and equipment (cont'd)
(i) Assets not previously recognised/(derecognised)

Adjustments relate to either assets which have been identified by Council and recognised for the first time,
or assets which were unable to be located and have therefore been derecognised, in the current financial
year. These include:

-  Stormwater assets with a carrying value of $46 686,776 were identified initially by data matching of
assets within the Local Government Infrastructure Planning (LGIP) trunk network and the stormwater
drainage asset register, and additionally through a more detailed review of stormwater drainage asselts
beyond the trunk network

* The review of stormwater assets also identified some stormwater drainage assets which, although they
were on the asset register, did not exist in Council's GIS system and were unable to be physically
verified. The review also discovered some assets which were duplicates of existing assets and others
where the asset was already accounted for as part of the roads, bridges and drainage asset class.
Assets with a carrying value of $23,292 841 were therefore removed from the register.

*  Council undertook a resegmentation of its road, bridge and drainage network assets during the year,
using updated data collated during a survey completed by an independent consultant in March 2016. The
purpose of this project was:

(a) To establish a consistent rule base across the region for defining ‘road segments’ and ensure these
assets correlate to road assets in the financial assel register, and
(b) To ensure that all corporate systems are using the same asset dataset, whether it be for asset
identification, location, accounting, maintenance, operational or capital works activities, o enable better
assel management oulcomes
The application of updated survey data and the resegmentation exercise resulted in the following
outcomes:
- Identification of previously unrecognised assets with a carrying value of $25 248 414,
- Changes in asset measurements which resulted in an increase in the carrying value of assets by
$33,302 918.

- Other minor changes in values arising from the initial recognition/derecognition of assets in the financial
year amounted to $3,922 099

The amount recognised in the comparative period relate to the following

. Footpaths with a carrying value of $14,779 463 were identified by data matching of assets in GIS to
Council's asset register.

* The review of footpaths also identified inconsistencies in the measurements of the footpaths. This
resulted in an increase in the carrying amount of assets by $14,776,503.

+  Other minor changes in values arising from the initial recognition/derecognition of assets in the
comparative period amounted to $2 654,584
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Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

16 Fair value measurements

(a)

Council's valuation policies and procedures are reviewed and endorsed by the Audit and Risk Committee for
adoption by Council. The committee comprises two Councillors and two external representatives. They are
reviewed annually taking into consideration an analysis of movements in fair value and other relevant
information. Council's current policy for the valuation of property, plant and equipment and investment
property (recurring fair value measurements) are set out in Note 1.16(ii) and Note 1.15 respectively. Non-
recurring fair value measurements are made at the point of reclassification by a registered valuer

Recognised fair value measurements
Council measures and recognises the following assets at fair value on a recurring basis

Investment property

Property, plant and equipment
- Land and improvements
- Buildings and other structures
- Roads, footpaths and bridges
- Stormwater drainage
- Wastewater infrastructure
- Water infrastructure

Council does not measure any liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis.

Council has assets and liabilities which are not measured at fair value, but for which fair values are
disclosed in other notes.

Council borrowings are measured at amortised cost with interest recognised in profit or loss when incurred.
The fair value of borrowings disclosed in Note 30 is provided by the Queensland Treasury Corporation and
represents the confractual undiscounted cash flows at balance date (level 2).

The carrying amount of trade receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values
due to their short-term nature (level 2).

Council also has assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as a result of being classified as
assets held for sale. These compromise land as disclosed in Note 13. A description of the valuation
techniques and the inputs used to determine the fair value of this land is included below under the heading
"Land and improvements (level 3)".

In accordance with AASB 13 fair value measurements are categorised on the following basis:

- Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1)
- Fair value based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability (level 2)
- Fair value based on unobservable inputs for the asset and liability (level 3)

The fair values of the assets are determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable data, where it is available, and minimise the use of entity specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an asset are observable, the asset is included in level 2. If one or more of the
significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the asset s included in level 3. This Is the case for
Council infrastructure assets, which are of a specialist nature for which there is no active market for similar
or identical assels. These assels are valued using a combination of observable and unobservable inputs.
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Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

16 Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

(b) Valuation techniques used to derive fair values for level 2 and level 3 valuations
Specific valuation technigues used to value Council assets comprise:

Land and improvements - (Level 2 and 3)

Land fair values were determined by independent and qualified Valuers, Australis Asset Advisory Group
based on a comprehensive revaluation effective 30 June 2017. Where an observable market for
Council's land assets could be identified, Fair Value was measured by way of a Market Approach (Level
2), utilising sale prices of comparable properties after adjusting for differences in key attributes of the
property, such as size. Where a significant adjustment was required between the sales prices of
comparable properties, Fair Value was measured by way of a Market Approach (Level 3). All land
assels were assessed under a Market Approach as either Level 2 or Level 3. The most significant
inputs into this valuation approach are price per square metre.

Land improvements comprise waste landfill cells which were measured at fair value. Current
Replacement Cost was determined by AECOM which referenced landfill areas, volume specifications,
estimated labour and material inputs and overhead allocations. Existing supplier contracts and local
conditions were factored into the unit rates.

In determining the level of accumulated depreciation, remaining useful lives were determined based on
the estimated closure dates of the cell relative to its remaining capacity.

Investment property land is measured at fair value. The fair value of the land was determined using the
approach described in the preceding paragraph.

Land classified as held for sale during the reporting period was measured at the lower of its carrying
amount and fair value less cost to sell at the time of reclassification. The fair value of the land was
determined using the sales comparison approach described in the preceding paragraph.

Buildings and structures (Level 2 and 3)

Building and structures fair values were determined by independent valuer, AssetVal, effective 30 June
2017, using a desktop valuation approach. The last comprehensive valuation assessment for buildings
and structures was performed by AssetVal as at 30 June 2014, The revaluation of assets was assessed
using either a direct comparison approach (a level 2 assessment) or the cost approach (current
replacement cost) which is a level 3 assessment. The current period desktop valuation applied
indexation/growth percentage to asset cost or market values determined in the last comprehensive
valuation. This indexation assessment has regard to the movement of costs of specified asset
calegories during the period 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017

Buildings and structures (level 3) were assessed by analysing data derived from Rawlinsons Australia
Construction Handbook 2017, Costweb and the Australian Bureau of Stafistics. The indexation
assessment is based on inputs from producer price data, construction indices and recent construction
cost guides. The buildings - Level 3 category adopted a 4% increase and structures category adopted a
2% increase. Indexation for buildings assessed on a market (level 2) basis at the original valuation has
been undertaken with consideration of local market sales and general property movement in the region
from 1 July 2016 to 30 June 2017. For the buildings - Level 2 category no change was recorded.

Ponds assets were assessed with regard to indices developed from inputs extracted from producer
price, local government and construction indices. The civil index is a composile index developed from
combining the road and bridge index with the engineering design and management index. The splitis
based on an estimated project cost breakdown of 60% and 40% respectively. The 'Ponds’ category
adopted a 2% increase.

Investment property rental property is measured at fair value. The fair value of the rental property was
determined using the market value or cost approach described in the preceding paragraph

36 Bundaberg Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17

Attachment 1 - Annual Report 2016-2017



Attachment 1 Page 68

Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

16 Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

(b) Valuation techniques used to derive fair values for level 2 and level 3 valuations (Cont'd)

Infrastructure assets (Level 3)

All Council infrastructure assets were measured at fair value using a cost approach valuation technique
The fair value was the asset's current replacement cost (CRC) less accumulated depreciation on the
basis of such cost to reflect the already consumed or expired future economic benefits of the asset.
Council first determined the gross cost of replacing the full service potential of the asset and then
adjusted this amount to take account of the expired service potential of the asset.

CRC was measured by reference to the lowest cost at which the gross future economic benefits of the
asset could currently be obtained in the normal course of business. Where existing assets were over
designed, had excess capacity, or were redundant an adjustment was made so that the resulting
valuation reflected the cost of replacing the existing economic benefits based on an efficient set of
modern equivalent assets to achieve the required level of service output within the Council's planning
haorizon

Roads, footpaths and bridges

Counclil categorises its road infrastructure in urban and rural roads and then further sub-categorises
these into sealed and unsealed roads. During 2016-17 Council undertook a survey and re-
segmentation of its roads network which confirmed asset linear and area specifications for input into the
calculation of current replacement cost (CRC). All road segments are then componentised into
formation, pavement and seal (where applicable). Council assumes that environmental factors such as
soil type, climate and topography are consistent across each segment. Council also assumes a
segment is designed and constructed to the same standard and uses a consistent amount of labour and
materials.

CRC is calculated by reference to asset linear and area specifications, then applying rates based on
road stereotypes established by Roads Alliance Valuation Project (RAVP) a joint initiative by Local
Government Association of Queensland and the Queensland Government. The RAVP approach uses
valuation components, the replacement value of the reference asset is estimated based on the quantum
of plant, labour and materials and indirect costs required to create it using the appropriate \Work
Breakdown Schedules (WBS). WBS are developed using the assumptions including width, length,
pavemnent depth and clearing areas for each appropriate combination of the road stereotype, terrain,
environment and soil type

The roads, footpaths and bridges fair values were determined by independent and qualified Valuers,
Lemmah Pty Ltd based on a comprehensive valuation effective 30 June 2017. During 2016-17 Council
reviewed the asset valuation methodology for this class resulting in significant changes in the key
valuation inputs, including unit rates and useful lives. These changes are considered to better reflect
Council's current practices and road types. The revaluation was based on the RAVP methodalogy and
rates which were adjusted to reflect local cost inputs for plant, labour and overheads

In determining the level of accumulated depreciation, remaining useful lives were determined based on
condition assessments. The condition assessments were made using a 10 point scale with 0 being the
lowest and 10 being the highest. A 0 condition assessment indicates an asset with a very high level of

remaining service potential and 10 represents an asset at the end of its useful life.
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Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

16 Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

(b) Valuation techniques used to derive fair values for level 2 and level 3 valuations (Cont'd)

Stormwater drainage

The stormwater drainage fair values were determined by independent and qualified Valuers, Lemmah
Pty Ltd based on a comprehensive valuation effective 30 June 2017. The methodology and unit rates for
stormwater drainage were developed through the RAVP.

Consistent with roads, Council assumes that environmental factors such as soil type, climate and
topography are consistent across each segment and that a segment is designed and construcled to the
same standard and uses a consistent amount of labour and materials. \Where drainage assets are
located underground and physical inspection is not possible, the age, size and type of construction
material, together with current and planned maintenance records are used to determine the fair value at
reporting date Construction estimates were determined on a similar basis to roads

In determining the level of accumulated depreciation, remaining useful lives were determined based on
condition assessments. The condition assessments were made using a 10 point scale with 0 being the
lowest and 10 being the highest. A 0 condition assessment indicates an asset with a very high level of

remaining service potential and 10 represents an asset at the end of its useful life.

Water and tewater infrastructure

Water and wastewater active infrastructure assets fair values were determined by independent and
qualified Valuers, Australis Asset Advisory Group based on a comprehensive revaluation effective 30
June 2017, Active assets include Treatment Plants, Pump Stations and Reservoirs. These were
componentised dependant on size, capacity, site conditions and other relevant factors. Current
replacement cost (CRC) was calculated by reference to asset linear and area specifications, or lump
sum estimated labour and material inputs, service costs and overhead allocations.

A comprehensive valuation of water and wastewater passive assets was undertaken by AssetVal
effective 30 June 2015 In 2017, Council engaged AssetVal to provide indices to determine whether
there has been a material change in the current replacement cost over the index period for the water
and wastewater passive assets. The passive water and wastewater price movements were determined
by calculating a composite civil index combining the road and bridge index, the engineering design and
management index and the concrete product manufacturing index . The weighting of each index is
based on an estimated project cost breakdown at 30%, 40% and 30% respectively. For the passive
water and wastewalter category a 2% increase has been adopted.

Australis conducted a physical condition survey of the physically accessible assels. Australis has
utilised a 0 to 10 point scoring system with 0 being the lowest and 10 being the highest. A 0 condition
assessment indicates an asset with a very high level of remaining service potential and 10 represents
an asset at the end of its useful life. The physical condition assessment applied any obsolescence
factors to arrive at an adopted remaining useful life. While the inputs to the gross replacement cost
being a rate per square metre or per unit can be supporied by market evidence (Level 2), the estimates
of useful life, pattern of consumption and condition score, which are used to calculate the accumulated
depreciation comprise unobservable inputs (level 3). Where these other inputs are significant to the
valuation the overall valuation has been classified a level 3.

Where site inspections were not conducted (i e. for passive assets and active assets for which no site
inspections were undertaken), the remaining useful life was calculated on an age basis after taking into
consideration current and planned maintenance records.

Estimated useful lives and residual values are disclosed in Note 15.

38 Bundaberg Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17

Attachment 1 - Annual Report 2016-2017



Page 70

Attachment 1

aneA UMop LSl

uonessldap palenwnase Buiso|D

ZSL'6GL'GLL Lb0'850°LG S0Z'0Z9'S G96'0F0°9 0r9'00r'sy 8.2'8zZl'89)
IrTLeRT 09.'995C - - £02'LEG /6 6. Per S04
- - - - {cer'989) ERERER]
- (£6L'pLE) - - 867029’ 99£'695'€
- - - - (P20'8L0'Z) (9zB'56.L°L)
- - - - vL0'T6C -
LBY ey LLL'BOL - - £p9'LEF 9 g8l'zel'e
- - - - (Lz8'osl) (9.2'8pL)
15L9ee'e Zrz'Les'’e - - 9L7'0zZ0'06 £02'LEG LB
¥6€ 065 8L 108'7Z9'65 502'029'S 596070’ EPELEB'SYZ 1Z0'€95°€LZ
[ZzLe8z'a) 1216'G6Y) 520'60F S (00L'8Z) lgelL'gLae) (0L8'pLP'e)
0.8'522 {7/ 7'069 05) 991'06 0981162 /09'8e0'8 €9l'vee's
(evL LwL) {o00's) - - (L6V'LzT'T) [L58'080°2)
- - - - 062 L0B 000'0S
925621 - 000'1Z1 - GOG'SBG'E 66£'698'CT
(ook'L¢) - - - (PLwzoz) (Lg8'o0z)
- looz'eLl L) - (ooo'esz'e) - -
£95'20¢ 721 762 065'8LL - 502'029'S BLLICFBEZ  EWR'LEAGHT
$ 3 $ § § $
aLoz LL02 gLoz LL0Z 9Lz LL0Z
sjuswanoidw) pue pue Ayedoid juawisanu| pasijelsads

2B S19SSE ¢ [3A3] Ul JUSLUSAOLL 3L 'SI9SSE © [3A3] PUE 7 [2A8] UJ0Q JO 2slidLI0g S810U 85041 Ul pasoasip Auadold |[giual Juswisaadl pue sBuip|ing pas

- saInyani3s pue sBulp|ing

sJajsuBl|

uawisnipe Uonen|EASy

s|esodsip Uo uoieoadsq

s188se pAING U0

polad Ul papiaold uecnepaldag
(pasiuBooalap)/pasiubossl Aisnoinald 10U s19ssy
soue|eq Bulusdo

uonej2aidap pajeNwnaay

anjen ssoJf Buiso|n

slajsuel]

wauisnipe uonen|eAsy

s|esodsiq

8188SE pPaINglLauon

suonippy

(pasiubosalap)/pasiubossl AisNoiaald 10U S19SSY
7 |ahe 01 si8jsUEl ]

anjea ssolb Bulusdo

sanjea jessy

"MoJaq p3|[e3ep
|05ds

Uou ‘sjusianoldw pue pue| a4} 83UIS JSABMOH ‘G| 210N PUE | 810N Ul pa|iziep ale sluswainsealu snjea Jiey Builnial Yim sjesse ¢ [aAs| Ul sabueya ay)

(s19s5YV £ |9Aa7) sindul ajgeasasgoun yuedyub|s Buisn sjuswainseaw anjea Jjey u) sabueyn (o)

(p,Juo)) suawainseawl anfea lje4

gl

210Z 8unr 0g pepus Jeak syl lod
SINIINTLYLS TYIDONYNIH 343 03 Sal0N

39

Bundaberg Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17

Attachment 1 - Annual Report 2016-2017



Page 71

Attachment 1

PaSMIOLWE 10U &l UNs Se pUe 'all| [Njasn sJuapul Ue sy sUBu Jajem pue ssea| pue

an[en [BNPISaJ OU LM Pasn ueag sey Uofespowe au| Jbless “siead 05-¢ JO SaA|| Njasn pajewnse ajuyy aney aJemyos Jandwog

‘jeak proueUy Joud au u) seiqiBueiul se pesiuboosel Jefiuo) ou slam sjUs WEseE]

£10Z 3unr O 18 sjasse s(qibuejul (e |

/107 8UNr 0g JB SE Uonesiiowe pajeinwnaoe Buiso|n

s[esodsip Uo UONESILOWY

pouad ul pepiacid uonesiLowy

91,0z Ainr | 1e se ssuejeq BuuadQ
uoljes|}lowe paje|nwnaoy

/10Z sunp pg e se snjea Buiflies ssolf Buisoln

awdinba pue jue|d Alsdeold (01)/Wol) pallajsuel] s1assy

pasuadxs ssalbold ul yiom lesh Jold

s|lesods|g

ss31601d Ul 3IoM Wol) s1ajsuel) [euiaiu|

1509 12 suolippy

910z Anr L 1e se anea Builiies ssoJf Suuadg

sanjeA Jassy

UsWaInseslw jo siseg

6920959 EGZOFE ¥ 000 LLE - 9l0'c06'L
8By el L - - - 8By ZL L
8052V - - - (8os'ziL)
£9.'S6F - - - £9/'56F
CETIPEL - - - CETLPE L
15/'¥8Z'8 et =lon 000'bbE - #05'L29'C
{eoz'zal) - - - (egz'zel)
020 ipr 8 £5Z9re 7 0og LLe - 4191'88L'C
$ & $ & $ $
1500 1800 180D 1800 1500
ssalbold alemMjog
[[3teNR Ul Yo DUEPENCTYY aseaT pue sjusulases Jgindwon

LL0Z sunr og

sjasse a|qibueu| Ll

/107 8Unr 0g papus Jeak auyio4
SIN3NILYLS TYIDNYNIH 243 03 Sej0N

Bundaberg Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17

40

Attachment 1 - Annual Report 2016-2017



Page 72

Attachment 1

484501 - £GZ OPE' ¥ 000'L1E - 7eS BP'Z
£eT Pl - - - - 22T LpeL
(5z5'66) - - - - (5z6'68)
GiLler - - - - SLLLEY
£86'€00'L - - - - £86'200'L
0Z0'L¥P'B - £5Z'OpE'y 000°HLE - 190'88L'E
l6e'La8 - - - - LBE' 188
{g0L's8P) (904 687) - - - -
(8r0'6ZE) - - - (865061 ) losw'acl)
- (6z.'66) - - - 6Z. 66
8c6 061 - - - - g9c6'06Y
Shb'ea8' L Sk B8G £GZ'9rE'y 000'LLE 865 061 AGL85F'Z
$ $ $ $ $ $
1800 1802 1800 1800 1800
ssalbouid alemyog
12101 Ul Yo S SPEIEAY 9sEa87 puen sjusweases 18Indwon

41

gL0Z aunr gg 18 siesse a|qiBueill (B10]
910z aunr 0 1 SE Uoiesniowe palenwnaoe Buisoln
s|esods|p Uo UojesiyoLy
polad ul papiaold UoesiHowy
510z AInr | e se aaue|eq Buuado
uoljes|jioWwe pajenwnaay

Bundaberg Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17

§10Z 2unr g 18 sk anjea Buifiues ssolb Buiso)n
uswdinba pue ue|d Asdold (01)jLL0l) palisjsUBl) S1assy
pasuadxa ssasbold Ul yiom Jesh Jold
s|esodsiq
ss21604d Ul ¥JOM L0 SI8JSUBLY [BUISIU|
1500 12 SUCIIPPY
510z Anp L 1 se anjea Buifiien ssolb Buiuedo
San|eA }assy
JUalsinsesll Jo siseg

910¢ aunp gg

sjosse a|qibueju| I

210Z 8unr 0g pepus Jeak syl lod
SINIINTLYLS TYIDONYNIH 343 03 Sal0N

Attachment 1 - Annual Report 2016-2017




Attachment 1

Page 73

Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

MNote
18 Trade and other payables
Creditors and accruals
Annual leave
Wages and other employee entitlements

19 Borrowings
Current
Loans - Queensland Treasury Corporation

Non-Current
Loans - Queensland Treasury Corporation

Loans - Queensland Treasury Corporation

Opening balance
Principal repayments
Balance at end of financial year

30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
$ $
17,610,693 9,223,063
4,451 703 4,330,385
854 823 563,955
23,117,219 14,117,403
5,638,483 5,382,267
52,638,535 58,151.171
63,533,438 70,059,356
(5,256,420) (6,525,918)
58,277,018 63,533,438

Financing facilities are limited by the requirement to obtain State Government approval for all loan applications. All loans are

unsecured.

Mo interest has been capitalised during the current or comparative reporting period.
Expected final repayment dates vary from 15 March 2021 to 21 July 2032
There have been no defaults or breaches of the loan agreement during the penod.

Principal and interest repayments are made quarterly in arrears
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Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017
30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
Note $ $
20 Provisions
Current
Landfill restoration 139,050 -
Long service leave 11,950,786 11,986 424
12 089,836 11,986 424
Non-Current
Landfill restoration 16,223 452 15,466 609
Long service leave 782276 863 649
17 005,728 16,330,258
Details of movements in provisions:
(a) Landfill restoration provision
Opening balance 15,466,609 14,493 577
Increase in provision - finance cost due to change in time a8 420,220 498 432
Increase/(decrease) in provision - change in discount rate 5,823 1,388,651
Decrease in provision for actual restoration expenditure (276,396) (17,920)
Increase/(decrease) in estimate of future cost 746,246 (896,131)
Balance at end of financial year 16,362 502 15,466 609
A provision is made for the cost of restoration of assets and other future restoration costs where it is probable Council will be
liable, or required, to incur such a cost on the cessation of use of the facility. This liability is provided in respect of significant
operational landfills
It represents the present value of the anticipated future costs associated with the closure of the landfills, decontamination and
monitoring of historical residues and leaching on these sites.
(b) Long service leave provision
Opening balance 12,850,073 12,589 481
Additional provision made during the period 1,538,295 1,471,304
Amounts used during the period (1,408,618) (1,346,928)
Unused amounts reversed during the period (47.200) (91,439)
Change in discount and time (198,488) 227 655
Balance at end of financial year 12,733,062 12,850 073
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Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Note
21 Asset revaluation surplus
(a) Movements in the asset revaluation surplus were as follows:
Opening balance
Movement in property plant and equipment
Decrecognition of cultural assets
Balance at end of financial year

(b) Asset revaluation surplus analysis

30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
$ $
366,960,096 334,761,325
94,096,227 32,198,771
(25,541) -
461,030,782 366,960,096

The closing balance of the asset revaluation surplus is comprised of the following asset categories

Land and improvements
Buildings and structures
Cultural assets

Roads, footpaths and bridges
Stormwater drainage
Wastewater infrastructure
Water infrastructure

- 29,010,322
34,619,296 28,794 500

. 2554
199,251,521 123,473,510
54,166,681 43,154,075
95,384,431 85,693,284
77,608,853 56,808,864
461,030,782 366,960,096

The asset revaluation surplus comprises adjustments relating to changes in value of non-current assets that do not result from
the use of those assets. Netincremental changes in the carrying value of classes of non-current assets since their initial

recognition are accumulated in the asset revaluation surplus.

22 Retained surplus

Internally restricted cash 10
Unspent capital grants, subsidies and contributions 10
Unspent infrastructure charges 10

Unallocated surplus

47,865,618 58,268,247

4,801,144 952,756
18,852,111 16,630,771
15,625,270 879,088
87,144,143 76,730,862

Retained surplus represents restricted cash as outlined in Note 10 along with the remaining (unallocated) funds that are
available to meet specific future funding needs. An unallocated surplus represents the accumulative amount available to

Council that may be used lo offset against expenditure in the following year
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Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
Note $ $
23 Commitments for expenditure

(a) Operating leases
Minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Not later than one year 470,243 520,836
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,064 567 1,276,903
Later than five years 252 485 368 290

1,787 295 2,166 029

Payments made under operating leases are expensed in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term. Council only discloses lease commitments associated with significant leases.

(b) Recurrent commitments

Significant recurrent contractual commitments at the reporting date but
not recognised as liabilities 4019525 2442 375

(c) Capital commitments
Significant capital contractual commitments at the reporting date but not recognised as liabilities are as follows

Buildings and structures 11,551,490 10,232 463
Plant and equipment - 419 538
Roads, footpaths and bridges 2,148 942 2,138,769
Wastewater infrastructure 18,205 916 38,578,681
Water infrastructure 1,126,570 -
33,032,918 51,369,451

24 Expected operating lease income
(a) Lease receipts

Future minimum lease payments are expected to be received in relation to non-cancellable operating
leases as follows:

Not later than one year 393,908 235529
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,162 396 591 380
Later than five years 1619727 453 087

3,176,031 1,279 996

(b) Sub-lease receipts

Future minimum lease payments are expected to be received in relation to non-cancellable sub-leases of
operating leases as follows:

Not later than one year 192 496 218249

Later than one year but not later than five years 694,178 716,306

Later than five years 520 670 709 063

1,407 344 1,643,618

(c) Contingent rent for the period 154,881 108,671

Council only discloses expected lease income associated with significant leases.
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Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
Note $ $

25 Contingent liabilities
Details and estimates of maximum amounts of contingent liabilities are as follows:

Claims

Council is a defendant in a number of claims that arse as a result of the operations of Council. Council is of
the opinion that the claims can be successfully defended and that no costs in excess of the recorded accruals
will result. Information in respect of individual claims has not been disclosed in accordance with AASB137
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assefs on the basis that council considers such disclosures
would seriously prejudice the outcome of the claims.

Landfills

Council has a number of operational and closed landfills throughout the region. Obligations for future
remediation are determined annually, with the nature and extent of work required dependant on a condition
assessment of the land and any proposed use of that land. The future use of the land has not yet been
determined for closed landfills. Council has yet to make a formal determination on the closure of smaller
operational landfills and has delayed the remediation of part of the University Drive Landfill. As a consequence
Council is unable to reliably estimate potential rehabilitation costs for these sites. A provision for restoration
costs for larger operational landfills has been disclosed in Note 20.

Local Gavernment Mutual

Council is a member of the local government mutual liability self-insurance pool, Queensland Local
Government Mutual Liability Poal. In the event of the scheme being wound up or if it is unable to meet its debts
as they fall due, the trust deed and rules provide that any accumulated deficit will be met by the individual
scheme members in the same proportion as their contribution is to the total scheme contributions, in respect to
any year that a deficit arises. As at June 2017 the financial statements reported an accumulated surplus and it
is not anticipated that any liability will arise.

Local Government Workcare

Council 1s a member of the Local Government Self-Insurance Scheme, Local Government Workcare. Under
this scheme Council has provided a bank guarantee to cover bad debts which may remain should the self
insurance licence be cancelled because of insufficient funds being available to cover outstanding liabilities.
Only Local Government Workcare may call on any part of the guarantee should the above circumstances arise

Council's maximum exposure is: 2102 687 2,418 007
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Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
Note $ 5
26 Superannuation

The Council contributes to the Local Government Superannuation Scheme (Qld) (the scheme). The scheme is
a Multi-employer Plan as defined in the Australian Accounting Standard AASB119 Employee Benefits .

The Queensland Local Government Superannuation Board, the trustee of the scheme, advised that the local
government superannuation scheme was a complying superannuation scheme for the purpose of the
Commonwealth Superannuation Industry (Supervision) legislation.

The scheme has three elements referred to as:
The City Defined Benefits Fund (CDBF) which covers former members of the City Super Defined Benefits
Fund.

The Regional Defined Benefits Fund (Regional DBF) which covers defined benefit fund members working for
regional local governments; and
The Accumulation Benefits Fund (ABF)

The ABF is a defined contribution scheme as defined in AASB 119. Council has no liability to or interest in the
ABF other than the payment of the statutory contributions as required by the Local Government Act 2009
Council does nat have any employees who are members of the CDBF and, therefore, 1s not exposed to the
obligations, assets or costs associated with this fund.

The Regional DBF is a defined benefit plan as defined in AASB119. The Council is not able to account for the
Regional DBF as a defined benefit plan in accordance with AASB119 because the scheme is unable to account
to the Council for its proportionate share of the defined benefit obligation, plan assets and costs. The funding
policy adopted in respect of the Regional DBF is directed at ensuring that the benefits accruing to members
and beneficiaries are fully funded as they fall due.

To ensure the ongoing solvency of the Regional DBF, the scheme's trustee can vary the rate of contributions
from relevant local government employers subject to advice from the scheme's actuary. As at the reporting
date, no changes had been made to prescribed employer contributions which remain at 12% of employee
salaries and there are no known requirements to change the rate of contributions.

Any amount by which the fund is over or under funded would only affect future benefits and contributions to the
Regional DBF, and i1s not an asset or liability of the Council. Accordingly there is no recognition in the financial
statements of any over or under funding of the scheme

As at the reporting date, the assets of the scheme are sufficient to meet the vested benefits

The most recent actuarial assessment of the scheme was undertaken as at 1 July 2015. The actuary indicated
that "At the valuation date of 1 July 2015, the net assets of the scheme exceeded the vested benefits and the
scheme was in a satisfactory financial position as at the valuation date”.

In the 2015 actuarial report the actuary has recommended no change to the employer contributions levels at
this time.

Under the Local Government Act 2009 the trustee of the scheme has the power to levy additional contributions
on Councils’ which have employees in the Regional DBF when the actuary advises such additional
contributions are payable - normally when the assets of the DBF are insufficient to meet members' benefits.
There are currently 65 entities contributing to the Regional DBF plan and any changes in contribution rates
would apply equally to all 65 entities. Bundaberg Regional Council made 4.42% of the total contributions to the
plan for the 2016-17 financial year.

The next actuarial investigation will be conducted as at 1 July 2018,

The amount of superannuation contributions paid by Council to the

Superannuation Fund in this period for the benefit of employees was 6,236,654 6,194 513
Council also contributes to the scheme for the benefit of Councillors'.
The amount of contributions paid during the reporting period was 120,026 122 455
Total superannuation paid 6 6,356,680 6,316,968
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Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

30-Jun-17 30-Jun-16
Note $ $
27 Trust funds
Monies collected or held on behalf of other entities yet to be paid
out to or on behalf of those entities: 3,218,366 2,767,952

Council performs only a custodial role in respect of these monies and because the monies cannot be used by Council, they are
not brought to account in these financial statements.

28 Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

Net result 24,710,988 39,797,809

Non-cash operating items:

Depreciation of property plant and equipment 15 45,292 826 45115212
Amortisation of intangible asselts 17 495,763 437 175
Change In restoration provision to finance costs 8 420220 498 432
Current cost of developed land sold 12(b) 21,656 -
Prior year work in progress expensed 15 570,499 1,316,512
46,800,964 47 367 331
Investing and financing activities:
Change in restoration provision 475673 454 406
Capital grants, subsidies, other contributions and donations 4(b) (30,351,394) (37,225,775)
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 9 4,581,680 4,706,427
Loss on impairment of non-current assets held for sale 9 12,401 3,860
Revaluation decrement of land and improvements 9 21,305,959 -
Revaluation of investment property 5 (2,917 860) (73,114)
Gain on disposal of non-current assets held for sale 5 (2,440) (171,103)
(6,895 981) (32,305,299)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in receivables (1,360,688) 344 971
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 25837 9,822
Increase/(decrease) in payables 10,235,349 (3,162,679)
Increase/(decrease) in long service leave provision (117,011) 260,592
Increase/(decrease) in unearned revenue 113,770 21,194
8,897,257 (2,526,100)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 73,513,228 52 333,741

29 Events after the reporting period
There were no material adjusting or non-adjusting events after the balance date.
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Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

30 Financial instruments and financial risk management

Financial risk management

Council is responsible for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework, together with
developing and monitoring risk management policies.

Exposure to financial risks is managed in accordance with Council approved policies on financial risk
management.

The Council's sk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced, to set
appropriate limits and controls and to monitor these risks and adherence against limits. The Council aims to
manage volatility to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Council does not enter into derivatives or other high risk investments

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk exposure refers to the situation where Council may incur financial loss as a result of another party to
a financial instrument failing to discharge their obligations.

In the case of rate receivables, Council has the power to sell the property to recover any defaulted amounts. In
effect this power protects Council against credit risk in the case of these debis.

In other cases, Council assesses the credit risk before providing goods or services and applies normal
business credit protection procedures to mimimise the nisk. There is no concentration of credit risk for trade and
other receivables

Council is exposed to credit risk through its investments with the Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC) and
deposits held with banks and other financial institutions in line with the requirements of the Stafufory Bodies
Financial Arrangements Act 1982 . The QTC Cash Fund is an asset management portfolio that invests with a
wide variety of high credit rating counterparties. Deposits are capital guaranteed. Other investments are held
with regulated financial institutions which are rated AAA to BBB based on ratings agency Standard & Poors,
and whilst not capital guaranteed, the likelihood of a credit failure is remote.

No collateral is held as security relating to the financial assets held by Council.

By the nature of Council's operations, there is a geographical concentration of risk in Council's area. Because
the area is largely agricultural, there is also a concentration in the agricultural sector.

The following table represents the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the carrying amounts of financial
assels at the end of the reporting period.

Financial assets

Note 2017 2016
Cash and cash equivalents 10 106,021,236 94,357,604
Receivables - rates 1 5,751,868 6,011,426
Receivables - other 11 9,281,722 9877 401
Other credit exposures - Guarantee 25 2,102 687 2,418,007
Total 123,157,513 112,664 438

No financial assets have had their terms renegotiated so as to prevent them from being past due or impaired,
and are stated at the carrying amounts as indicated

Included within Council's receivable balance are debtors past due date for which Council has not provided
against as there has been no significant change in credit quality and amounts are still considered recoverable.
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Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

30 Financial instruments (Cont'd)

(a) Credit risk (Cont'd)

The following table represents an analysis of the age of Council's financial assels that are either fully

performing, past due or impaired:

Not past due

Past due less than 30 days
Past due 31-60 days

Past due 61-90 days

Past due more than 90 days

Impairment
Total

({b) Liquidity risk

2017 2016
6,239,285 8,210,059
1,630,725 373,936
711212 453 386
51,896 214,061
6,517,319 6,671,787
(116,847) (34,902)
15033,500 15,888,827

Liquidity risk refers to the situation where Council may encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities. Council is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of business

and borrowings from QTC for capital works.

Council manages its exposure to liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash reserves to cater for unexpected

volatility in cash flows.

The following table sets out the liquidity risk of financial liabilities held by Council in a format as it might be
provided to management. The amounts disclosed in the maturity analysis represent the contractual (principal

and interest) undiscounted cash flows at balance date:

Total
contractual Carrying
0to 1 year 1to5years  Over 5 years cash flows amount
$ $ $ $ $
2017
Trade and other payables 23,117,218 - - 23,117,219 23117219
Loans - QTC 8,494,053 31,769,478 35935673 76,199 204 58,277,018
31,611,272 31,769,478 35,835 673 99,316,423 81,394,237
2016
Trade and other payables 14,117,403 - - 14,117,403 14,117,403
Loans - QTC 8,494,063 33,534,864 42 664,360 84,693,277 63,533,438
22,611,456 33,534,864 42 664, 360 08,810,680 77,650,841

The outflows in the above table are not expected to occur significantly earlier and are not expected to be for

significantly different amounts than indicated in the table.
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Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

30 Financial instruments (Cont'd)

(c) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, will affect the Council's income or
the value of its holdings of financial instruments

Interest rate risk
Council is exposed to interest rate risk through its investments held with financial institutions

Financial instruments with fixed interest rates which are carried at amortised cost are not subject to interest rate
sensitivity. Council's loan portfolio is subject to fixed interest rates

Sensitivity
Sensitivity to interest rate movements is shown for variable financial assets based on the carrying amount at
reporting date.

The following interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on a report similar to that which would be provided to
management, depicting the outcome to profit and loss should there be a 1% increase in market interest rates.
The calculations assume that the rate would be held constant over the next financial year, with the change
occurring at the beginning of that year. It is assumed that interest rates on overdue rates would not change. If
the rates decreased by 1% the impact would be equal in amount in the reverse direction

Net carrying amount Profit Equity
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
$ 5 $ $ $ $
Deposits - Call 37,400,000 43,050,000 374,000 430,500 374,000 430,500
Term Deposits 67,900,000 48,150,000 679,000 481,500 679,000 481,500
105,300,000 91,200,000 1,053,000 912,000 1,053,000 912,000

Fair value

The fair value of borrowings with QTC is based on the market value of debt outstanding. The market value of a
debt obligation is the discounted value of future cash flows based on prevailing market rates and represents the
amount required to be repaid If this was to occur at balance date. The market value of debt is provided by QTC
and is discussed below.

QTC applies a book rate approach in the management of debt. The book value represents the carrying value
based on amortised cost using the effective interest method

The net fair values of other financial assets and liabilities, except QTC loans, approximates their carrying

amounts.
Financial liabilities 2017 2016
Carrying Carrying
Note amount Fair Value amount Fair Value
$ $ $ $
Loans - QTC 19 58,277,018 64 528,961 63,533,438 72,884,775
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30-Jun-17
Note 5

31 Related parties

{a) Joint controlled entities
Council 1s a joint member of the Wide Bay Burnett Regional Organisation of Councils (WBBROC)
Incorporated.
WBBROC represents the interests of all councils within the Wide Bay Burnett region. WBBROC
lobbies Federal and State Governments on behalf of members Councils on matters of common interest
and is often the point of contact for other levels of Government seeking the views of Councils on a
broad range of issues.
WBBROC other member Councils are Cherbourg Community Council, Fraser Coast Regional Council,
Gympie Regional Council, North Burnett Regional Council and South Burnett Regional Council.
The following transactions occurred with WBBROC
Council membership contributions 78,510
WBBROC is dependent on contributions from member Councils.
(b) Key management personnel (KMP) compensation
KMP include the Mayor, Councillors, Chief Executive Officer and three General Managers.
The compensation paid to KMP comprises:
Short-term benefits 2,292 114
Long-term benefits 13,133
Post-employment benefits 221,469
2,526,716
Additional remuneration disclosures are provided in the Annual Report
(c) Transactions with other related parties
Other related parties include the close family members of KMP and any entities controlled or jointly
controlled by KMP or their close family members.
Details of transactions between Council and other related parties are disclosed below:
Donation to an entity controlled by KMP 0] 23,259
Provision of facilities to an entity controlled by KMP )] 55,225
Purchases of materials and services from an entity controlled (ii) 64,829
by KMP
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30-Jun-17
Note $

31 Related parties (Cont'd)

(c)

(d)

(e)

U

Transactions with other related parties (Cont'd)

0]

(i)

Council has historically supported the Bundaberg Police Citizens Youth Club (PCYC) in providing
a broad range of recreational, youth and sporting programs, catering for all sections of the
community. Council has a trustee lease agreement with PCYC over the new Bundaberg Multiplex
facility. This allows the PCYC to deliver their services whilst also maximising the use of the
Council facility. The lease agreement provides that the PCYC will collect all hire fees associated
with the Multiplex and pay Council 30% of said fees. The PCYC will retain the remaining fee
income for maintenance and operational costs associated with the Multiplex. Council provided
temporary accommodation for the PCYC during construction of the Multiplex as well as
reimbursing the relocation expenses. Councillor David Batt is currently the Deputy Chairman of
the PCYC.

Impact Community Services (Impact) are engaged by Council under a panel of prequalified
suppliers for transportation services in relation to waste throughout the region. Impact is a not-for-
profit organisation which offers a wide range of support, training and employment programs to the
Bundaberg community. The application to the panel and the engagement of Impact services were
atarm's length and in accordance with Council's Purchasing Policy and associated procedures.
Councillor David Batt is currently the Chairperson of Impact

Council employs 779 full time equivalent staff. Less than 1% of staff are close family members of
KMP with their remuneration representing less than 1% of employee benefits. All close family
members of KMP were employed through an arm’s length process. They are paid in accordance
with the relevant industrial award for the job they perform and Council’s enterprise bargaining
agreement.

Council has 99 community service lease agreements where Council owned facilities are leased at
anominal value. 4% of these leases are with community groups which are related parties of KMP.
The community groups are required under the lease to maintain and operate the facilities at their
expense. Council believes the value of the maintenance and operating costs borne by groups
approximates the lease value forgone.

Outstanding balances
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting period in relation to
transactions with related parties:

Contribution to Eggmolesse Street drainage works (iv) 80,000

(i) Council has an infrastructure deed with Across The Waves (ATW) in relation to drainage works in

Eggmolesse Street associated with an adjoining development. The agreement was executed by
senior staff in accordance with the Sustainable Planning Act 2009, Council's Planning Scheme
and Register of Delegations. Councillor David Battis currently a Committee Member of ATW.

No expense has been recognised in the current year or prior year for bad or doubtful debts in
respect of amounts owed by related parties.

Loans and guarantees to/from related parties
Council does not make loans to or receive loans from related parties. No guarantees have
been provided.

Commitments to/from other related parties
Council has no outstanding commitments to/from other related parties.
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Notes to the FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2017

32 National competition policy

Business activities to which the code of competitive conduct is applied

Bundaberg Regional Council has applied the competitive code of conduct (CCC) to the following activities:

Water and Wastewater Operations;
Waste Management;

Caravan Parks; and

Airport Operations

This requires the application of full cost pricing, the identification of community service obligations (CSOs)
and the elimination of any advantages or disadvantages of public ownership within that activity.

The CSO value is determined by Council and represents an activity’s cost(s) which would not be incurred if the
activity's primary objective was to make a profit. Council provides funding from general revenue to the business
activity to cover cost of providing non-commercial community services or costs deemed to be CSOs by Council.

In calculating the value of some CS0O's management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
which may impact on the values disclosed. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The following table summarises the financial performance of Council's activities subject to the CCC:

Financial performance of activities subject to competition reforms:

Waste Caravan Airport
Water Wastewater Management Parks Operations
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
$ $ $ $ $
Revenue for services provided
fo Council 1,305,278 446 341 232174 - -
Revenue for services provided
to external clients 25794822 26769689 17919242 2 648 665 5437514
Community service obligations 972,244 981 619 3,201,597 - 164,375
28,072 344 28197649 21353013 2 6548 665 5 601,889
Less: Expenditure (16,498 256) (14,885153) (15084937) (2242130) (3,800523)
Surplus/(deficiency) 11574088 13312496 6,268,076 406,535 1,801,366
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32 National competition policy (Cont'd)

Description of CSO's provided to business activities

Activities CS0 description Amount
$
Water F’r?vision of water allocations to unlicensed sporting clubs free of $148.775
charge
Pension remissions $165,165
Water leak relief $94,120
Infrastructure charges incentives $516,012
Internal bulk water provisions $48,172
Wastewater Ergrif;id;zg pedestal discount for community and aged care $200.484
Clearance of private sanitary drains $5,982
Infrastructure charges incentives $463,600
Fension remissions $212 553
Waste Management Provision of bins and waste disposal for community events $31,746
Provision of free disposal days for residents 568,395
In-kind assistance - for charities $110,205
Provision of wheelie bins and waste disposal for public spaces $112,008
Unrecovered costs incurred in operating rural transfer stations $504,612
Internal waste collection $2.179,409
Pension remissions $195,222
Airport Operations Access agreement $164,375
Bundaberg Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17 55

Attachment 1 - Annual Report 2016-2017



Attachment 1 Page 87

3.6 Management Certificate

For the year ended 30 June 2017

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to Section 176 and Section 177 of the
Local Government Regulation 2012 and other prescribed requirements.

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that:
(i) the prescribed requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012

for the establishment and keeping of accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and

(ii) the general purpose financial statements, present a true and fair view, in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards, of the Council's transactions for the financial year and financial
position at the end of the year.

Y 2 -
s

Chief Exegttive Officer

Date: .2/1 /;ﬂ //7 Date: Z/I 7, (7
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3.7 Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Councillors of Bundaberg Regional Council

Report on the Audit of the Financial Report

Opinion

| have audited the financial report of Bundaberg Regional Council.
In my opinion, the financial report:

a) gives a true and fair view of the council’s financial position as at 30 June 2017, and of its
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended

b) complies with the Local Government Act 2009, the Local Government Regulation 2012
and Australian Accounting Standards.

The financial report comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2017, the
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, notes to the financial statements including significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the certificate given by the Mayor
and Chief Executive Officer.

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial report section of my report.

| am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board’'s APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in Australia. | have
also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code and the
Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Other information

Other information comprises the information included in Bundaberg Regional Council's annual
report for the year ended 30 June 2017, but does not include the financial report and my
auditor’s report thereon. At the date of this auditor’s report, the other information was the
current year financial sustainability statement and long-term financial sustainability statement.

My opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly | do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. However, as required by the Local
Government Regulation 2012, | have expressed a separate opinion on the current year
financial sustainability statement.

In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report cont'd

Responsibilities of the council for the financial report

The council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with the Local Government Act 2008, the Local Government Regulation
2012 and Australian Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as the council
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

The council is also responsible for assessing the council's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless it is intended to abolish the council or to otherwise cease
operations.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial report

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a
whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Australian Auditing
Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the council's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the council's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the council's
ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material uncertainty exists, |
am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. | base my
conclusions on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the council to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that | identify during my audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report cont'd

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 20089, for the year ended 30 June 2017:
a) |received all the information and explanations | required.

b)  In my opinion, the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping
of accounts were complied with in all material respects.

S EENSLANS

./ 19 0CT 2007

0. Lo \ﬁgng OFFICE
D A STO Queensland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane
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3.8.1 Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement
For the year ended 30 June 2017

Note 1 - Basis of Preparation

The current year financial sustainability statement is a special purpose statement prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Local Government Regulation 2012 and the Financial Management (Sustainability) Guideline
2013 . The amounts used to calculate the three reported measures are prepared on an accrual basis and are drawn
from the Council's audited general purpose financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2017.

Measures of Financial Sustainability

Council's performance at 30 June 2017 against key financial ratios and targets:

Operating surplus ratio

Asset sustainability ratio

Net financial liabilities ratio

How the measure is calculated 2017

Target

Net result (excluding capital items) 10%
divided by total operating revenue
(excluding capital items)

Capital expenditure on the 82%
replacement of infrastructure assets

(renewals) divided by depreciation

expense for infrastructure assets.

Total liabilities less current assets -9%
divided by total operating revenue
(excluding capital items)

Bundaberg Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17
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3.8.2 Current Year Financial Sustainability Statement - Certificate of Accuracy
For the year ended 30 June 2017

This current year financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local
Government Regulation 2012,

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this current year financial sustainability
statement has been accurately calculated.

m@{; 2 ; '; Chiy{scutive Officer

Date: Aﬁ! ﬁ Date: Z’rf ‘7 ,‘(7

Bundaberg Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17 61

Attachment 1 - Annual Report 2016-2017



Attachment 1 Page 93

62

3.8.3 Independent Auditor's Report

To the Councillors of Bundaberg Regional Council

Report on the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement
Opinion
| have audited the accompanying current year financial sustainability statement of Bundaberg

Regional Council for the year ended 30 June 2017, comprising the statement, explanatory
notes, and the certificate of accuracy given by the Mayor and the Chief Executive Officer.

In accordance with section 212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in all
material respects, the current year financial sustainability statement of Bundaberg Regional
Council for the year ended 30 June 2017 has been accurately calculated.

Basis of opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing
Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the current
year financial sustainability statement section of my report.

| am independent of the council in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting
Professional and Ethical Standards Board APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the statement in Australia. | have also
fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code and the Auditor-General of
Queensland Auditing Standards.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion.

Emphasis of matter — basis of accounting

| draw attention to Note 1 which describes the basis of accounting. The current year financial
sustainability statement has been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management
(Sustainability) Guideline 2013 for the purpose of fulfilling the council’s reporting responsibilities
under the Local Government Regulation 2012. As a result, the statement may not be suitable
for another purpose. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Other information

Other information comprises the information included in Bundaberg Regional Council's annual
report for the year ended 30 June 2017, but does not include the current year financial
sustainability statement and my auditor’s report thereon. At the date of this auditor’s report, the
other information was the general purpose financial statements and long-term financial
sustainability statement.

My opinion on the current year financial sustainability statement does not cover the other
information and accordingly | do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
However, as required by the Local Government regulation 2012, | have expressed a separate
opinion on the general purpose financial report.

In connection with my audit of the financial report, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial report and my knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.
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If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the council for the current year financial sustainability statement

The council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current year financial
sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012. The
council’s responsibility also includes such internal control as the council determines is
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is accurately
calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the current year financial sustainability
statement

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the current year financial
sustainability statement as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the
Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of this statement.

My responsibility does not extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance of
the reported ratios, nor on the council's future sustainability.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the council’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the council.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the statement, including the
disclosures, and whether the statement represents the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the council regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that | identify during my audit.

OUEENSLANn

JORPl> 19 0CT 2017
4 3
D A STOLZ- LDIT OFFIC Queensland Audit Office
as delegate of the Auditor-General Brisbane
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3.8.5 Long Term Financial Sustainability Statement - Certificate of Accuracy
For the year ended 30 June 2017

This long-term year financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local
Government Regulation 2012.

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this current year financial sustainability
statement has been accurately calculated.

W\m Officer

Date: 2{! c?:‘ /7

Bundaberg Regional Council Annual Report 2016-17 65

Attachment 1 - Annual Report 2016-2017



Attachment 1

Page 97

66

4. Statutory Information

Mayor and Councillors

4.1 Remuneration, Superannuation and Provision of Facilities

In accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012, Sections 186(a) and (b), the total remuneration,
superannuation and expenses incurred by each one of our Councillors during the financial year are as

follows.
Table 3.1

Councillor Remuneration Superannuation Provision of Facilities
Mayor Jack Dempsey $145,623.92 $17.474.87 $26,510.54
Cr Jason Bartels $84,308.12 $10,116.97 $13,167.41
Cr Bill Trevor (Deputy Mayor) $95,806.10 $11,496.73 $15,278.07
Cr Wayne Honor $84,308.12 $10,116.97 $16,433.43
Cr Helen Blackburn $84,308.12 $10,116.97 $13,890.92
Cr Greg Barnes $84,308.12 $10,116.97 $12,088.77
Cr Scott Rowleson $84.308.12 $10,116.97 $13,491.91
Cr Ross Sommerfeld $84,308.12 $10,116.97 $14,622.56
Cr David Batt $84,308.12 $10,116.97 $16,960.89
Cr Judy Peters $84,308.12 $10,116.97 $16,244 .81
Cr Peter Heuser $84,308.12 $10,116.97 $12,249.47

$1,000,203.10 $120,024.37 $170,938.78

Afull copy of Council's Reimbursement of Expenses and Provision of Faciliies for Councillors—FPolicy is
available at Council's website (reference no. GP-3-047). This policy was reviewed and amendments were
made and adopted by Council on 27 September 2016.

Overseas travel

As required by the Local Government Regulation 2012 (s 188) the following international travel expenses
were incurred by the Mayor and Councillors and a local government employee, in an official capacity, during

the financial year.

Table 3.2

Councillor / Position From To Destination Purpose Total
Mayor Jack
Dempsey
Cr Ross Sommerfeld
Cr David Batt Sister City

r tavi a

/0916 | 18/09/16 |Nanning, China Cfonfg?:f; i"d o | $20.439.90
Cr Peter Heuser na ' [rade
Expo - China
Haiyi Wu
Senior Development
Officer - International
Relations
50th Anniversary of

“D"ay"r Jack 111116 |6/1116  |Seltsu, Japan | Municipal Organisation | $3,190.96

empsey Enforcements at Settsu
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4.2 Attendance at Council meetings

The attendance of Councillors to Ordinary, Special and Budgetary meetings is detailed below in accordance
with Section 186(c) of the Regulation.

Table 3.3

Councillor Ordinary Special & Budgetary Total

Mayor Jack Dempsey 15 3 18
Cr Jason Bartels 16 3 19
Cr Bill Trevor (Deputy Mayor) 15 3 18
Cr Wayne Honor 15 3 18
Cr Helen Blackburn 14 3 17
Cr Greg Barnes 13 3 16
Cr Scolt Rowleson 13 3 16
Cr Ross Sommerfeld 15 3 18
Cr David Batt 15 3 18
Cr Judy Peters 12 2 14
Cr Peter Heuser 13 3 16

4.3 Councillors Conduct

Orders and Recommendations

Section 186(d) requires Council to disclose the number of orders and recommendations made during the
financial year in relation to allegations of misconduct or inappropriate conduct by Councillors. There were no
orders or recommendations to disclose for 2016-17.

Section 186(e) requires Council to disclose the detail of orders and recommendations made during the
financial year in relation to allegations of misconduct or inappropriate conduct by Councillors. There were no
orders or recommendations to disclose for 2016-17.

Councillor Complaints

Section 186(f) requires Council to disclose the number of complaints in relation to alleged misconduct or
inappropriate conduct by Counclllors. There was one complaint referred to the Mayor under section 176C (3)
(a) (i) of the Act.

Corporate Governance

4.4 Remuneration of Senior Management

As required by the Local Government Act 2009 (s 201) the details of remuneration for senior management
during the financial year were as follows.

Table 3.4
Number of Executives Salary Range
3 $200,000 - $300,000
1 $300,000 - $400,000
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4.5 Administrative Action Complaints

Council is committed to ensuring that complaints are addressed in a responsive, responsible and fair
manner. We have established a comprehensive and flexible framework to achieve this, and this framework
includes the position of Internal Ombudsman. Our Internal Ombudsman oversees the process by which
complaints are investigated and through proactive management also seeks to identify trends to minimise the
likelihood of future complaints. Council’s Administrative Action Complaints Policy and Administrative Action
Complaints Management Procedure also forms part of this framework.

Section 187 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 requires Council to report annually on the
performance of the organisation in dealing with Administrative Action Complaints (AAC). In 2016-17 a
total of 15 Administrative Action Complaints were processed and resolved. Reviews tested processes and
departmental systems and some recommendations were made to review certain practices or processes.

The table below provides a summary of AAC outcomes for 2016-17.

Table 35
Outcome of administrative action complaints 2015-16 2016-17
Number of complaints made under the AAC process 22 15
Number of AAC resolved 22 15
Number of unresolved complaints under the AAC process 0 0
Number of unresolved complaints under the AAC process 0 0
from previous financial year

4.6 Code of Competitive Conduct for Business Activities

The National Competition Policy (NCP) requires that the competitive neutrality principle be applied to
government businesses so they do not attract any net compelitive advantage over their compelitors as a
result of public sector ownership. A review of the appropriate application of NCP reforms across Bundaberg
Regional Council determined that the adoption of full-cost pricing is the appropriate structural reform to apply
to its significant business activities.

In accordance with Section 45(a) of the Local Government Act 2009, Council conducts the following business
activities: Water and Wastewater; Waste and Recycling; Caravan Parks and Bundaberg Airport.

Significant Business Activities and the Competitive Neutrality Principle

In accordance with Section 45(b) the following business activities have been identified as being financially
significant:

= Water and Wastewater; and
*  Waste and Recycling.

Both activities were conducted in the previous year and the compelitive neutrality principle has been applied
in accordance with Section 45(c) of the Local Government Act.

Council has elected to apply the Code of Competitive Conduct, involving the application of the competitive
neutrality principle, to the following business activities:

+ Caravan Parks; and
* Bundaberg Airport.

Competitive Neutrality Complaints

No competitive neutrality complaints were received during the reporting period.
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4.7 Assets Recognition Policy

Pursuant to the Local Government Regulation 2012 (s206 (2)), a resolution was made on 26 April 2017 to
adopt a revised Non-current Asset Recognition Policy. The reference to cultural assets was amended, as the
category is no longer relevant to Council's policy or legislative requirements.

4.8 Summary of Concessions for Rates and Charges

A summary of all concessions for rates and charges granted by Council is provided in the following section
and tables, in accordance with Section 190(1-(qg)) of the Local Government Regulation 2012.

Pensioner rebates

Pensioners who are either registered owners or life tenants of their principal place of residence, and who
hold a Queensland Pensioner Concession Card, or a Repatriation Health Card are eligible to claim a State
Government Pensioner Rate Subsidy and a Council pensioner remission. The Council pensioner rate
remission during 2016-17 was $140 per annum for rates and charges

Discount on general rates

Adiscount of 10% of the current year's Council general rates is conditional on the payment of current rates,
service charges and all arrears by the due date stated on the rate notice, which is at least 30 clear days from
the issue date of the rate notice. This discount is granted for prompt payment. Council’s pension remission is
not a payment and is therefore deducted from the general rate before discount is applied.

Community concessions

Council recognises the following not-for-profit organisations as providing a service to the community by
encouraging community and cultural development. During 2016-17 Council contributed up to a maximum
$1,700 per annum, towards the payment of rates and charges (with the exception of water consumption) for
the following facilities and organisations

+  Apple Tree Creek Memorial Hall *«  CWAHall Yandaran

+«  Avenell Heights Progress Association Hall +  CWA Oakwood

+  Avondale Football Club «  CWA Wallaville

+  Booyal Memorial Hall *  Drinan Hall

+  Bucca Hall +  Forestview Community Kindergarten

+  Bullyard Hall «  Gin Gin & District Historical Society Hall
+  Bundaberg & District Air Sea Rescue +  Gin Gin Kindergarten

+  Bundaberg Kindergarten «  Kepnock Progress Association Hall

+ Bundaberg Railway Historical Society + North Bundaberg Progress Association Hall
+  Burnett Heads Kindergarten = Pine Creek Hall

+  Burnett Heads Progress Hall +  Sandy Hook Ski Club

+  Childers Kindergarten *  Sharon Hall

+ CWA Hall Bargara *  South Kolan Kindergarten

+  CWA Hall Bundaberg +  Tegege Hall

+  CWA Hall Childers «  Wallaville Kindergarten

Council also paid all rates and charges with the exception of water consumption charges for the
following sports clubs:

+  Bundaberg Surf Life Saving Club
*  Elliott Heads Surf Life Saving Club
*  Moore Park Surf Life Saving Club
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Other concessions
Council has a Water Leak Relief Policy which provides relief for ratepayers who experience a large and
undetectable water leak that results in a large unbudgeted water bill. If ratepayers have the water leak
repaired within ten days of its discovery and apply for relief within thirty days after having the leak repaired,
Council charges the water consumption at the first step in the water tariff, which in 2016-17 was $1.15
instead of the second tier tariff, which was $1.88. Ratepayers were assisted in 2016-17, to a value of
$94,120.
Concessions to ratepayers for 2016-17
Table3.6
Type of organisation Assistance Provided
Council Pensioner Rates Concessions $1,392,737.75
Rates Concessions to Community Organisations $501,689.51
Water Leak Relief $94,120.05
Total $1,988,547.31
Analysis of Concessions provided to Community Organisations in 2016-17
Table 37
Type of organisation Assistance Provided
Reduced Rates and Charges to Community Organisations $53,430.36
Free Water Consumption Allocation to Unlicensed Sporting Bodies $105,620.15
Bengfll only charging Water Access Charges to Unlicensed Sporting $43.155.00
Bodies for largest meter
60% reduction in Sewerage Charges to Community Organisations $299,484 .00
Total $501,689.51
Total of Community Organisations
Table 3.8
No. Type of organisation Annual Rates Levied Assistance Provided Average _ass!st
per organisation
19 Halls $43 60176 $28,956 80 $1,524 04
7 Kindergartens $22,771.29 $10,368.60 $1,481.23
7 Surf Lifesaving Clubs $10,376 54 $8,893 98 $1,270 57
Community
4 Organisations $5 954 66 $5,210.98 $1,302 74
37 Total $82,704.25 $53,430.36 $1,444.06
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4.9 Expenditure on Grants to Community Organisations

As required by Section 195 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, Council has an established a
Community Financial Assistance Governance Policy. This policy is available on request
(reference No. GP-3-067).

Pursuant to Section 189(a) of the Regulation, Council’s expenditure on grants to community organisations for
the 2016-17 financial year totalled $290 922, as shown in table 3.9.

Summary of Expenditure on Grants to Community Organisations

Table 35

Community Organisation Expenditure on Grants

Community Grants Program $61,671.63
Life Education Contribution $10,000.00
Lifeflight Rescue Helicopter $50,000.00
Mayors Christmas Appeal $2,500.00
Micro Grants program $14,783.78
Operation Wanted $10,000.00
Police Citizen Youth Club $23,259.09
Regional Arts Development Fund (RADF) $24,661 45
Special Event Grant $13,946.70
Sponsorship/ Donation $21,800.00
Sport Championship Funding Program $23,750.00
Toy Library Contribution $10,000.00
Young People In Sport Funding Program $24,550.00
Total $290,922.65

Pursuant to Section 189(b) there were no discretionary fund expenditure by Councillors for community
organisations in the reparting period.

4.10 Council Registers

The following list of Council Registers is provided in accordance with Section 190(f) of the Local Government
Regulation 2012,

+ Register of Business Activities

+ Register of Contact with Lobbyists

* Register of Cost-Recovery Fees

* Register of Delegations - Council to CEO and CEO to Officers and/or Contractors
* Register of Interests for CEO and Senior Executive Employees

+ Register of Interests of a Councillor and their Related Persons

« Register of Local Laws

» Register of Pre-Qualified Suppliers

* Register of Roads
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4,11 Risk Management

Council recognises that effective risk management is paramount in managing its enterprise risks to achieve
its corporate strategies, objectives and vision for the future. Council’s commitment to risk management
practices aim to effectively manage and limit risk exposures but also identify opportunities through best
practice risk management strategies and continuous improvement established in accordance with Risk
Management Standards AS/NZS IS 31000:2009.

Council is committed to the identification and implementation of processes appropriate to the ongoing
management of risk and this is achieved by:

* Regular reporting to the Audit and Risk Committee of enterprise risks and the Risk Management
Program

»  Continuous review of:
— the adopted Integrated Risk Management Policy
— Bundaberg Regional Council Risk Management Framework, and risk assessment tools

*  Training for staff at induction

= Biennial review of risk registers

+  Operational risk analyses of departmental business plans.

4,12 Report on the Internal Audit

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee is established in accordance with the Local Government Act 2008 (s 106(4)).

The Committee acls as an advisory committee to Council. It provides independent comment, advice and
counsel on audit and risk management issues, covering all Council operations and projects reported and
considered by the Committee at its regular meetings. The Audit and Risk Committee was comprised of
Councillors and independent external representatives as follows:

» Bradley Grogan, Chairman and External Community Representative
+ Mayor Jack Dempsey, Finance and Economic Development Portfolio spokesperson
» Cr Helen Blackburn, Governance Portfolio spokesperson

* Debbie Rayner, External Community Representative (appointed June 2017 following the resignation of
Emma Habermann in May 2017).

The Committee is also attended by the External Auditors, Chiefl Executive QOfficer, General Managers, Chief
Financial Officer, Internal Auditor, Quality Auditor, Governance Manager and other key staff. The Committee
held four meetings during the year in which the following matters were reviewed and assessed:

* Internal Audit reports

«  Quality Audit reports

» External Audit reports and updates
* Risk Management updates

* Internal Audit Charter

* Audit and Risk Committee Charter
* Annual Internal Audit Plan

« Strategic Internal Audit Plan

+ Major Projects updates

* Accounting position papers

* Annual Report and Financial Statements
* Accounting Policies.
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Internal Audits

The internal audit function is established under the Local Government Act 2009 (s 105(1)) and i1s an integral
component of Council's corporate governance framework. Pursuant to Section 190 (1)(h) of the Local
Government Regulations 2012, audits and other activities undertaken in 2016-17 included:

Internal audit reviews involving:

— Corporate Purchase Cards

— Cash Handling, Receipting and Banking Audits of holiday parks and waste facilities
— Commercial Invoicing

— Purchase Order Processing

— Penetration Testing of ICT Infrastructure.

Quality audit reviews involving:
Road Maintenance Performance Contract
— Evaluation of Technical Competence
— Contractor Management
— East Treatment Plant Biogas Facility Safety Management Plan

— Calibration and Measurement Traceability.

Assisting with development of Fraud Risk Assessments

Assisting with updating of Corporate Risk Regislers

Assisting with internal investigations

Monitoring the actions resulting from internal and external audit recommendations

Advising on the development of policies, procedures and internal controls.
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Index of Legislative Requirements

Requirement Title Heading Page

Local Government Act 2009

Section 41 Identifying beneficial 4.7 Code of competitive conduct for 59
enterprises business activities

Section 45 (a}-{d) Identifying significant business 4.7 Code of competitive conduct for 89
activities business activities

Section 201- 1(a) & Remuneration senior 4.5 Remuneration of senior management 57
management

Local Government Regulation 2012

Section 183 (a) Financial Statements 3 Financial Statements 10

Section 183 (b-d) Financial Statements 3 Financial Statements 10

Section 184 Community Financial Report 2 Community Financial Report 5

Section 185 Particular Resolutions 4.7 Assets Recognition Policy 69

Section 186 (a) Councillors 4.1 Remuneration of the Mayor and 56

Councillors

Section 186 (b) Councillors 4.1 Expenses Reimbursement Policy 66

Section 186 (c) Councillors 4.2 Attendance at Council meetings 57

Section 186 (d) Councillors 4 nfa

Section 186 (e) - (g} Councillors 4 nfa

Section 187 Administration Action 4.5 Administrative Action Complaints

Complaints 68
Section 188 Overseas Travel 4.1 66
Section 189 Expenditure on grants to 4.9 Expenditure on grants to community 71

community organisations organisations
Section 190 -1 (a) & Assessment of operations and 1. Chief Executive Officer's Report 1
(b) performance
Section 190- 1 (g) & Annual operations- 4.6 68
(d) Commercial business &

Expenditure on a service,

facility or activity supplied or

levied
Section 190- 1 (g) Tenders n‘a - No invitations to changes to tenders

were made.

Section 190- 1 (f) Registers 4.10 Council registers 71
Section 190- 1 (g) Concessions for rates and 4.8 Summary of concessions for rates

charges and charges &9
Section 180- 1 (h) Report on the Internal Audit 4.12 Repart on the Intenal Audit 72
Section 190- 1 ()) & (k) Competitive Neutrality 4.6 Code of competitive conduct for 58

Complaints business activities
Section 190- 2 Annual operations report for 41 n/a
commercial business unit
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fVW ltem 21 November 2017

'M
BUNDABERG
Item Number: File Number: Part:
F2 ) GOVERNANCE &
COMMUNICATIONS
Portfolio:

Organisational Services

Subject:

Audit and Risk Committee Minutes
Report Author:

Amy Crouch, Executive Assistant
Authorised by:
Stuart Randle, General Manager Organisational Services

Link to Corporate Plan:

Our People, Our Business - 3.6 Responsible and ethical leadership and governance.

Background:

The Audit and Risk Committee met on 24 October 2017, and the minutes are attached
for Council’s information.

Consultation:

Representatives of Audit and Risk Committee.
Legal Implications:

Complies with various sections of the Local Government Regulation 2012.
Policy Implications:

The recommendations within this report comply with Council’s governance framework.
Financial and Resource Implications:

The annual budget provides for costs associated with the Committee of $4,000 per
year. This is comprised of the total remuneration for the external committee members.

Risk Management Implications:

The audit issues identified within the Pitcher Partners report will be addressed by
Council.

Communications Strateqy:

Communications Team consulted. A Communication Strategy is:
Not required
] Required

Meeting held: 21 November 2017
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Attachments:
01  Audit & Risk Committe Minutes - 24 October 2017

Recommendation:

That the minutes of the Audit and Risk Committee meeting held on 24 October
2017 (as detailed on the 5 pages appended to this report); be received and noted.

Meeting held: 21 November 2017
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BUNDABERG

REGIONAL COUNCIL

AUDIT & RISK COMMITTEE
MINUTES

Tuesday, 24 October, 2017 - 10.00 am

ATTENDANCE

Council Representatives — Cr JM Dempsey and Cr HL Blackburn.

External Representatives — Mr B Grogan (Chairman) and Ms D Rayner.

By Invitation -

¢ Council Staff - Mr SD Johnston (Chief Executive Officer), Mr SJ Randle {General
Manager Organisational Services/Acting General Manager Infrastructure &
Planning Services), Mr AJ Keleher (Chief Financial Officer), Mr C Joosen
(Manager Governance/Acting General Manager Crganisational Services), Mr J
McCulloch (Internal Auditor), Ms E Fortune (Risk & Insurance Officer), Mr J
McMullen (IMS); MrT MclLaughlin {Group Manager Water & Wastewater)l Mr A
Wyaftt (Group Manager Projects).

o External Auditors (Pitcher Partners) - Mr J Evans and Mr C Russell {by
teleconference).

+ Queensland Audit Office - Mr D Byram (by teleconference).

BUSINESS OF MEETING

1. WELCOME - Mr Grogan welcomed all present.

2. MINUTES - [t was agreed that the Minutes of the Meeting held on 20
September, 2017, be taken as read and confirmed.
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Audit & Risk Committee Minutes
24 October, 2017 2.

3. BUSINESS ARISING FROM MINUTES - Nil.

4, YEARLY MANAGEMENT / CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER UPDATE - Mr Johnston
provided a verbal overview of matters undertaken since his commencement
in April, including independent reviews of the financial position and key
performance indicators, a cultural survey of the organisation; and structural
changes. Other areas currently being reviewed include upgrades to the IT
systems, Capital Works Funding, and the Operational Plan.

4. MAJOR PROJECTS UPDATES -

{a)  Mulli-Use Sport and Community Centre - Mr Wyatt advised that Stage
2 is on target for completion by mid-November 2017. No significant
issues are reported with the project.

- It was agreed that the Report be noted.

{b) Rubyanna Wastewgater Treatment Plant — Mr Wyatt advised that there
have been some delays with this project, with an anticipated
completion date now of May 2018.

- It was agreed that the Report be noted.

{c) Smart Water Meters — Pilot Projects - Mr Mclaughlin gave a brief
overview of the investigation work, stakeholder/customer engagement
process and the internal project control group to look into a possible
smart water meter trial in the Bundaberg Region. It is noted that a
Report will be presented to the next Meeting of Council scheduled for
31 October, 2017, recommending that:-

1. the Smarf Water Meters - Pilot Project Plan, dated September 2017
be endorsed by Council and be used as the basis to implement the
pilot project;

2. in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012,
Chapter 6, Part 3, Clause 228, because of the complexity and risks
associated with this project - Expressions of Interest be called for
the supply and installation of the Smart Water Meter Pilot Project.

- It was agreed that the Report be noted.

5. EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE -

{a) Pitcher Partners - Mr Russell provided an overview of the Briefing Note
as a status update on the progress of the Audit, noting that it is
expected an unmodified audit will be granted.
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Audit & Risk Committee Minutes
24 October, 2017 3.

(b) Queensland Audit Office - MrByram addressed aspects of the Closing
Report, and adverted to matters cumrently the focus of the Queensland
Audit Office. An invitation was extended to Council to participate in
the various audits currently open.

- It was agreed that the Briefing Note and Closing Report be noted.

(The teleconference was terminated at this point in the Meeting.)

6. PRESENTATION OF THE 2016/2017 ANNUAL REPORT & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
- MrKeleher provided an overview of the:-
{a)  Annual Report;
(b) Community Finance Report;
{c)  Audited Financial Statements and Financial Sustainability Statement;
and
(d) Changes in Statemenfts after submission.

- It was agreed that the Reports be endorsed by the Audit & Risk Committee;
and submitted to Council for approval.

7. INTERNAL QUALITY AUDIT REPORTS -

(a) Workplace Health & Safety Consultation - MrMcMullen addressed the
Meetfing on the conduct of the Audit, and the recommendations
contained therein. The queries raised were addressed.

- Itwas agreed that the recommendations contained within the Audit
be implemented as required.

(b) Infernal Qudlity Audit Report [Corrective Action Status] - Mr McMullen
addressed the Meeting on the status of the comective actions arising
from audits.

- Itwas agreed that the information contained in this Report be noted.

Cr JM Dempsey left the Meeting af this sfage of the proceedings.

8. INTERNAL AUDIT REPORTING -

{a) Electronic Payment Systems at Waste Management Facilities - Mr
McCulloch addressed the Meeting on the Report. A further report on
the frial implementation of EFTPOS facilities at the Childers Waste
Management Facility will be provided in due course.
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Audit & Risk Committee Minutes
24 October, 2017 4.

(b) Waste Vouchers - Mr McCulloch addressed the Meeting on the
Report. Itis noted that further opfions for tracking of waste vouchers is
being investigated and a report will be prepared for consideration by
this Committee in due course.

{c) Name and Address Register Audit - Mr McCulloch addressed the
Meeting on the Report. It is noted that further control options for the
Name and Address Register are being implemented.

8. ASSESSMENT OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION -

{a) Financial Position as at 31 August, 2017 - Mr Keleher addressed the
Meefting on the Report that was presented tfo Council at its Meeting
of 10 October, 2017.

- It was agreed that the Report be noted.

9. ASSESSMENT OF RISKS -

{a) Update of Risk Management Programme - Ms Fortune provided an
update on the Risk Management Programme and the current status of
projects and the Risk Profile Report.

- It was agreed that the Report be noted.

{b) Update of Finance Risk Register - Mr Keleher addressed the Meeting
on the status of the Financial Risk Register.

- It was agreed that the Report be noted.

10.  GENERAL BUSINESS -

{a) Major Projects - Noted that a Major Projects Committee will be
established fto monitor Major Projects across Council (eg., CBD
Revitalisation, and Government Grant funded projects); and reports
on this Projects will be submitted to this Committee.

(b) Debt Recovery Process - Mr Johnston gave a brief overview of (i) the
Rates recovery processes since the engagement of R&R; and {ii)
referral of other debt recovery by SPER.
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Audit & Risk Committee Minutes
24 October, 2017 5.

11. NEXT MEETING - Tuesday, 13 February, 2018 - 10.00 am

12.  PROPOSED FUTURE MEETINGS -

Thursday, 3 May, 2018 - 10.00 am
Tuesday, 11 September, 2018 - 10.00 am
Thursday, 18 October, 2018 - 10.00 am

There being no further business, the Meeting was closed at 12.20 pm.

CHAIRMAN.
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f ltem 21 November 2017

BUNDABERG
Item Number: File Number: Part:
J1 321.2007.21009.2 PLANNING

Portfolio:
Infrastructure & Planning Services

Subject:

Frizzells Road, Woodgate - Infrastructure Agreement for Development Application -
Reconfiguring a Lot - Request to Change and Extend Period of Existing Approval
(Edamgrove)

Report Author:

Adam Johnston, Senior Development Engineer
Authorised by:
Andrew Fulton, General Manager Infrastructure & Planning

Link to Corporate Plan:

Our Environment - 2.2 Sustainable built environments and local projects that support
our growing population and promote economic investment and development.

Background:

In June 2008, the Council granted a Development Approval to subdivide land located
on Frizzels Road, Woodgate into 198 residential lots in stages (Council ref:
321.2007.21009.1). The applicant made a request to change the approval and also
extend the approval’s relevant period (which will be subject to a separate report to be
considered under delegated authority by officers) on 2 March 2012, with a subsequent
change to the request received on 31 March 2017. To allow Council to agree to the
extension of the relevant period and meet the tests of s388 of the Sustainable Planning
Act 2009, the applicant is required to enter into an infrastructure agreement to update
the infrastructure charges to current levels as per the Council’s Adopted Charges
Resolution No 1 of 2015. In addition, it was noted that a number of conditions require
the provision of trunk infrastructure and that the infrastructure agreement should
consider these matters.

Condition 14 of the development approval requires the surrender of approved Lot 401
(7.52ha) to the State for coastal protection, open space and buffer purposes with the
first stage of development. The State has given a direction to Council that this type
of lot should now be provided by a developer to local governments as freehold land
on trust. The IA provides greater clarity in this regard as it requires the provision of
park by 21 December 2018 (with the first stage) as freehold on trust for park purposes
and that the park must be provided with equipment before the release of 65" allotment.
The IA also provides certainty for the value of proposed Lot 401 (park) and its
improvements.

Meeting held: 21 November 2017
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It was agreed that the value of the park would be calculated applying the park portion
(20%) of the discounted infrastructure charges for the 192 lots (plus allowance for
registration and preparation of plan) or more precisely $809,687.50 including
improvements. It is noted the developer initially request that the land be valued at
$1,084,940.00 without improvements. As a further check, the value of the land
calculated in accordance with the planning scheme resolution for cost of land is
$794,318.50 without improvements. The value should be viewed against the draft
Local Government Infrastructure Plan (LGIP) that includes the provision of a local
recreational park at a value of $146,539.

In relation to the provision of reticulated sewerage infrastructure, it was identified in
reports by GHD in 2011 and subsequently in 2014 that there was insufficient capacity
in the existing vacuum sewerage network in Woodgate to service the subject land.
Moreover, Council had identified issues with the existing sewerage network/ system
north of Woodgate Road. To resolve these sewerage issues and provide sewerage
infrastructure to the subject land, it is necessary to provide a second vacuum
sewerage pump station (VSPS) in the locality. The reports recommend that this VSPS
is best located in Frizzells Road north of existing residential land on the balance area
of the site. W.ith this in mind the developer created an additional lot (Lot 501 on
SP293971) as part of the development application.

To facilitate the construction of VSPS, Council officers and the applicant seek to enter
into an infrastructure agreement to provide certainty for both parties in terms of
infrastructure provision, delivery times and costs, please refer to the attached
agreement for further information. In summary, the Infrastructure Agreement seeks
to:

1. Detall the trunk infrastructure to be provided by the Developer, being the open
space dedication, a lot for sewerage pump station and providing infrastructure
charges up front to allow funding of the sewerage infrastructure;

2. Update the infrastructure charges payable to the current rates and provide
offsets for the trunk infrastructure provided by the Developer;

3. Document the trunk infrastructure to be provided by Council, being the sewerage
pump station and associated connecting infrastructure back to Woodgate Road;
and

4.  Give the quantum and timing of payments required from the Developer.
The benefits of the Infrastructure Agreement to Council are:

o It will provide land and infrastructure that will reduce the load on the existing
vacuum sewerage system;

o Upon completion, the new vacuum sewerage network will have the ability to
resolve issues with the existing vacuum sewerage system bounded by the area
of Eagle Road to Osprey Drive, Woodgate. Therefore, an improvement in the
level of service for sewerage infrastructure for the locality;

. The additional trunk infrastructure will service the whole of the declared PIA and
additional residential lots north of the subject land for future development;
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It manages the up-front cash contribution towards the infrastructure, through the
provision of land together with staged cash payments of $1,000,000 by the
developer, noting such payments will be offset against future infrastructure
charges;

The provision of a greater level of certainty for the developer increasing the
viability and likelihood of the development proceeding; and

Provision of a 7.52 hectare of open space for community purposes as part of the
development approval as identified in the draft Local Government Infrastructure
Plan (LGIP) and adjoining the existing open space in the locality (east of the
development area).

The risks or disadvantages of the agreement to Council are:

The Council will commit to provide a VSPS at a cost of $2.1 million by a set
timeframe (in the 2017/2018 financial year), which restricts future funding
options; and

The Council will need to offset the value of land for the pump station, open space
and cash payments, which equates to the amount of $2,028,000, from the total
infrastructure charges calculated in accordance with the current resolution, which
is in the vicinity of $4,838,400. This commitment may have otherwise been able
to spread over a number of years.

On balance, it is considered that the proposed agreement strikes an appropriate
levelling of risk between the Council and the developer, and satisfies Council’s public
interest requirements. Accordingly, it is recommended that the Council authorize the
Chief Executive Officer to enter into the Agreement.

It should be noted that the Infrastructure Agreement has been reviewed by legal
representatives of Council, and the developer, and may be subject to minor changes
in regard to timing of cash payments and some wording in the agreement. If this does
occur, any changes will be highlighted as part of the brief to Council.

Associated Person/Organization:

The Infrastructure Agreement was drafted through negotiation with the Applicant,
Edamgrove Pty Ltd, and their advisors.

Consultation:

Not Applicable

Legal Implications:

The proposed agreement is proposed to be an Infrastructure Agreement pursuant to
section 150 of the Planning Act 2016. Once executed, the Infrastructure Agreement
will be binding on the owner of the development land and any successors in title,
subject to the terms of the Agreement.

The agreement has been reviewed for Council by Connor O’Meara solicitors.

Policy Implications:

Not Applicable
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Financial and Resource Implications:

The exact financial impacts are not known given uncertainties about the exact cost of
the infrastructure to be provided and the future possible changes to infrastructure
charging. The general potential impacts are outlined in the report above, however it
is noted that should Council enter into the agreement, the financial impacts (both
positive and negative) will be:

o Council will offset the value of trunk infrastructure in the amount of $2,028,000
against a total infrastructure charge of $4,838,400; and

o Council will be required to expend $2.1 million to provide the VSPS infrastructure
in the 2017/2018 financial year against an incoming of $600,000 from the
developer in that financial year and $400,000 in the following financial year.

Risk Management Implications:

There appears to be no risk management implications.
Communications Strateqy:

Communications Team consulted.

Yes
[l No
Attachments:

41 Infrastructure Agreement

Recommendation:

That Council agree to enter into the Frizzells Road Infrastructure Agreement
pursuant to the provisions of the Planning Act 2016 with Edamgrove Pty Ltd
(ACN 010398106) associated with Development Application 321.2007.21009.2,
being request to change and extend relevant period of an existing
development approval for Reconfiguring a Lot (Staged Subdivision of 198
residential lots, park and balance lot).

Further, that the Chief Executive Officer be authorized to execute the
agreement on Council’s behalf.
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Infrastructure Agreement
Planning Act 2016

Frizzells Road Infrastructure Agreement 2017

Bundaberg Regional Council
Council

Edamgrove Pty Ltd (ACN 010 398 106)
Developer

Infrastructure Agreement — Vacuum Sewer
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Dated this day of 2017
PARTIES
Council: BUNDABERG REGIONAL COUNCIL of 190 Bourbong Street,
Bundaberg in the State of Queensland (“the Council”)
Owner: EDAMGROVE PTY LTD (ACN 010398106) of 58-62 Mary Street
Gympie in the State of Queensland (“the Developer”)
RECITALS

A. By decision notice dated 5 June 2008, the Council granted a development permit
for reconfiguring a lot for192 residential lots, park and balance lot, in 10 stages (“the
Development Approval™) in respect of land previously described as Lot 100 on
SP201484, situated at Frizzells Road, Woodgate (“the Land”).

B. The Council’s existing trunk sewerage infrastructure in Frizzells Road requires
augmentation to service the development of the Land in accordance with the
Development Approval.

C. On 2 March 2012, the Developer lodged the following requests with the Council:

(i) a request for a permissible change to the Development Approval (“the
Permissible Change Request”) to:

a. amend the staging of the reconfiguration; and
b. reflect presently applicable infrastructure charges; and

(ii) a request to extend the relevant period for the Development Approval to 4
June 2016 (“the Relevant Period Extension Request”).

D. The Permissible Change Request and Relevant Period Extension Request have not
yet been decided as a result of negotiations between the Council and the Developer

Attachment 1 - Infrastructure Agreement



Attachment 1 Page 124

regarding the augmentation of the trunk sewerage infrastructure in Frizzells Road
to accommodate the development of the Land in accordance with the Development
Approval.

E. The Council and the Developer have agreed upon a trunk sewerage strategy to
replace and augment the existing Frizzells Road trunk sewerage infrastructure
sufficient to allow the proposed development of the Land to proceed, as well as to
service other existing and future development in the locality.

F.  In exchange for the Council carrying out the works necessary for the trunk sewerage
strategy on an expedited basis, the Developer has agreed to provide early
infrastructure contributions.

G. Part of the agreed trunk sewerage strategy requires the construction of a new
vacuum pump station on part of Land. To facilitate this, the Developer , on or about
28 March 2017, reconfigured the Land into two lots, to create the lot on which the
new vacuum pump station is to be constructed (Lot 501 on SP293971) and a
balance lot on which the residential subdivision is to occur (Lot 502 on SP293 971).

H. On 31 March 2017, the Developer:
a. modified the Permissible Change Request to (inter alia):

i. amend the subdivision layout plan for the Development Approval,
resulting in an additional eight residential lots;

ii. seek additional changes to the conditions of the Development
Approval;

b. modified the Relevant Period Extension Request to request that the
relevant period be extended to a date four years from the date the Relevant
Period Extension Request is decided by the Council.

The Developer agrees that if the modified Relevant Period Extension Request is
approved, the Developer should make trunk infrastructure contributions consistent
with the contributions required under the infrastructure charging regime currently in
force.

J.  The parties enter into the Agreement for the purposes of establishing, in the event
that the meodified Permissible Change Request and modified Relevant Period
Extension Request are approved:

a. the Council’'s and the Developer’s respective obligations with respect to the
funding and construction of the agreed trunk sewerage strategy for Frizzells
Road; and

b. the financial contributions towards the funding of trunk infrastructure to be
paid by the Developer.
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AGREED TERMS

1 Definitions and interpretation

1.1 Definitions

In this document, unless the context or subject matter otherwise indicates or
requires, a word which is capitalised has the following meaning:

Term Definition
AICR means the “Bundaberg Regional
Council Adopted Infrastructure

Charges Resolution (No. 1) 20157, or
such future resolution of the Council
adopted after 19 October 2015
pursuant to:

(a) section 113 of the Act; or

(b) any future equivalent to section
113 of the Act.

Adjustment Note has the meaning given to that term in
the GST Act.

Act means the Planning Act 2016.

Address for Notices means, for each party to the
Agreement:

(a) its address or facsimile number
shown in schedule 1;

(b)  such other address or facsimile
number as it has notified to the
party giving it a Notice as its
address or facsimile number for
Notices under this Agreement;
or

(c) if it is not at the address or
facsimile number the subject of
paragraph (a) or paragraph (b)
of this definition, its last
principal place of business or
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Term Definition
facsimile number in
Queensland known to the party
giving it a Notice.

Agreement means this infrastructure agreement.

Approval means a consent, permit, licence,

Business Day

Chief Executive Officer

Commencement Date

Confirmation Report

Council

Creditable Value

Default Notice

certificate, authorisation, registration,
membership, allocation, clearance,
exemption or approval under a law and
includes a development approval.

means a day, other than a Saturday,
Sunday or public holiday, in the locality
to which a Notice is to be sent.

means the Council's Chief Executive
Officer, including any person to whom
the Chief Executive Officer lawfully
delegates his authority.

means the date stated in item 1 of
schedule 1.

means, in relation to a facsimile
transmission, a transmission
confirmation report produced by the
sender’s facsimile machine, which:

(a) contains the identification code
of the intended recipient's
facsimile machine; and

(b) indicates that the transmission
was received without error.

means the Bundaberg Regional
Council and its predecessors,
successors, transferees and assigns.

means the creditable value identified
in column 6 of schedule 2 for an
Infrastructure Contribution.

has the meaning given in clause 6.2.
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Term Definition
Developable Lot Means:
(a) the lot comprising the
Land at the
Commencement Date;
or

Developed Lot

Developer

Development Approval

(b) a lot forming part of the
Land which is not a
Developed Lot.

means a lot forming part of the Land
that:

(a) has been created by
registration of a survey plan in
accordance with the Land Title
Act 1994 by the Department of
Natural Resources and Mines
pursuant to and generally in
accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Development
Approval; and

(b)is not approved for further
subdivision by the
Development Approval.

means the person described in and
having its address at the place
described in item 4 of schedule 1 and
includes:

(a) successors and permitted assigns
in the case of a corporation,
association or other body;

(b) executors, administrators and
permitted assigns in the case of a
natural person; and

(c) any person who enters into a deed
of novation with the Council in respect
of this Agreement.

means the development approval
specified in item 6 of schedule 1.
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Term

Definition

Development Responsibility

Dispute

Dispute Notice

Financial Contribution

Frizzells Road Pressure Mains
Works (FRPMW)

Frizzells Road Trunk Vacuum Mains
Works (FRTVMW)

means a responsibility under this
Agreement to be performed and
fulfilled by a party

means a dispute between Council,the
Developer and the Owner, arising from
this Agreement.

means a Notice of a Dispute:

(a) stating in reasonable detail the
basis of the Dispute;

(b) to which copies of all
documents specified in those
details are attached or bound;

(e) identifying the provisions of this
Agreement applicable to the
Dispute; and

(d)  specifying the facts upon which
the party giving the Notice
relies, and its position upon the
issue in the Dispute.

means the payment of a monetary
sum for infrastructure.

means the construction of pressure (or
rising) mains, generally located in
Frizzells Road, to direct effluent from
the vacuum pump station provided as
part of the FRVPSW to the existing
pressure main in Woodgate Road (and
thence to the sewage treatment plant).

means the construction of vacuum
trunk mains, generally located in
Frizzells Road, to intercept effluent

flows from existihng and future
sewerage infrastructure located in
Pelican Way, Rosella Way,

Kookaburra Way, Eagle Road, the
Land, residential land north of the
Land and other such areas as Council
may see fit and direct those flows to
the vacuum pump station provided as
part of the RFVPSW.
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Term Definition

Frizzells Road Vacuum Pump means the construction of the vacuum

Station Works (FRVPSW) pump station building, driveway and
access, water supply, mechanical fit
out (pumps, valves, internal pipework)
and electrical fit out to be located in
VPS2 Land.

Force Majeure means an event:

(a) being a decree of the
Commonwealth Government or
the State Government, an act of
God, industrial disturbance, act
of  public enemy, war,
international blockade, public
riot, lightning, flood,
earthquake, fire, storm or other
event whether of a kind herein
specified or otherwise; and,;

(b)  which is not within the control of
the party claiming Force
Majeure; and

(c) which could not have been
prevented by the exercise by
that person of a standard of
foresight, care and diligence
consistent with that of a prudent
and competent person under
the circumstances.

GST has the meaning given to that term in
the GST Act.
GST Act means A New Tax System (Goods and

Services Tax) Act 1999 (Cth).

Infrastructure Contribution means a Financial Contribution, Land
Contribution or Works Contribution.

Input Credit has the meaning given to that term in
the GST Act.
Land means the land described in item 5 of

schedule 1 and includes:

(a) any interest in, on, over or
under the land; and
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Definition

Land Contribution

Notice

Owner

Planning Scheme

(b)  the airspace above the surface
of the land and any interest in
the airspace above the surface
of the land; and

(c)  the subsoil of the land and any
interest in the subsoil; and

(d) any part or parts of the land;
and

(e) any interest created in respect
of any of the above matters.

means the provision of land, including
any interest in land, for infrastructure.

means a certificate, demand, or notice
to be made, given or served by a party
under this Agreement.

means for the Land the following:

(a) the person for the time
being entitled to receive
the rent for the Land;

(b) the person who would
be entitled to receive the
rent for the Land if the
Land were let to a tenant
for rent

means the planning scheme adopted
by the Council under the Sustainable
Planning Act 2009, which commenced
on 19 October 2015 entitled
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Term Definition

‘Bundaberg Regional Council
Planning Scheme 2015".

Proposed Development means the proposed development the
subject of the Development Approval

Public Office has the meaning given in the Local
Government Act 2009.

Referee means the person independent of
Council and the Developer and
appeinted:

(a) by Council, the Developer and
the State or the President of the
Queensland Law  Society
pursuant to clause 8.5, and

(b) to resolve a Dispute as an
expert pursuant to clause 8.6.

Referral Notice means a Notice of intention:

(a) to refer a Dispute for
determination by an
independent person qualified to
make the determination; and

(b) to request the President of the
Queensland Law Society to
appoint the qualified person.

ROL means reconfiguring a lot and has the
meaning given in the Act.

Sell includes transfer, dispose of, and
alienate  and Sale has the
corresponding meaning.

Supply has the meaning given to that term in
the GST Act.
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Definition

Tax Invoice

Taxable Supply

Transferee

Trunk Infrastructure

VPS2 Associated Costs

VPS2 Land

VPS2 Works

Works Contribution

1.2 Interpretation

has the meaning given to that term in
the GST Act.

has the meaning given to that term in
the GST Act.

means a person to whom the
Developer proposes to sell a
Developable Lot.

has the meaning given in the Act and
is recognised as Infrastructure
Contributions.

means those ancillary costs
necessarily associated with the
creation of the VPS2 Land.

means Lot 501 on SP 293971 as
shown on drawing 1 in Schedule 3.

means the following:

(a) the Frizzells Road Trunk Vacuum
Mains Works (FRTVMW);

(b) the Frizzells Road Vacuum Pump
Station Works (FRVPSW); and

(c) the Frizzells Road Pressure
Mains Works (FRPMW).

means the undertaking of works for
infrastructure, including any materials
or services required for that
infrastructure.

(a) This Agreement begins on the Commencement Date.

(b) In this Agreement, unless a contrary intention appears, reference to:

(i) a section, clause, or paragraph is to a section, clause, or paragraph
in this Agreement; and

(i) the singular includes the plural and vice versa; and

(iii) any gender includes all other genders; and
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(iv) a person includes a firm, a corporation, an association and a body,
whether incorporated or not and a government or statutory body or
authority; and

(v) legislation (including subordinate legislation) includes:
(A) statutory instruments made under the legislation; and

(B) consolidations, amendments, re-enactments or
replacements of the legislation; and

(vi) writing includes any mode of representing or reproducing words in
tangible and permanently visible form and includes facsimile
transmission; and

(vii) this Agreement or any other document includes the document as
varied or replaced and is not affected by any change in the identity
of the parties.

(c) The clause headings appearing in this Agreement are inserted for
convenience of reference and do not affect the construction of this
document.

(d) If any words are italicised or otherwise printed differently, this has been
done for convenience only and does not affect the construction of this
Agreement.

(e) Whenever more persons than one constitute a party all the covenants,
agreements, conditions, restrictions and provisos on the part of that party
contained or implied in this Agreement bind those persons jointly and each
of them severally.

() This Agreement is in all respects to be interpreted in accordance with the
laws of the State of Queensland and the parties irrevocably and
unconditionally submit to the non-exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of that
state and any courts that have jurisdiction to hear appeals from them, and
waive any right to object to proceedings being brought in those courts.

(@)  Aninclusive definition or an example or particularisation of a provision, does
not limit but may extend that definition or provision.

(h) Where a word or expression is defined, other parts of speech and
grammatical forms of that word or expression have a corresponding
definition.

(i) Reference to the period between two specified dates, times or periods
includes each of those two dates, times or periods.

(i) Reference to the numbers, provisions or items, in this or another document,
between two numbers, numbered provisions or numbered items, includes
each of those two numbers, numbered provisions or items.

(k) All schedules to this Agreement form part of this Agreement.
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()] If a term is not defined in this Agreement, unless the context otherwise
requires, it has the meaning given to it by:

(i) the Act; or

(iiy the Macquarie Dictionary in the absence of a definition in the Act.

2 Infrastructure Agreement

2.1 Application of the Act
This Agreement is an infrastructure agreement under the Act.

2.2  Agreement to bind successors in title

(a) The Developer warrants that it is the Owner of the Land at the
Commencement Date.

(b) A Development Responsibility of the Developer attaches to the Land and is
binding on the Owner of the Land and the Owner’'s successors in title of the Land
in accordance with section 155 of the Act.

2.3 Development Responsibilities not affected by change of ownership

The Development Responsibilities are not affected by a change in the ownership
of the Land or a part of the Land.

2.4 Responsibilities not affected by planning change

The fulfilment of the Development Responsibilities does not depend on
development entittements that may be affected by a planning change.

2.5 Agreement prevails if inconsistent

(a) To the extent that any term of this Agreement is inconsistent with the
Development Approval, this Agreement prevails.

(b) To the extent that any term of this Agreement is inconsistent with an
adopted infrastructure charges notice or a negotiated adopted infrastructure
charges notice, this Agreement prevails.

2.6  Termination of this Agreement

This Agreement terminates and each party is released from all obligations under
this Agreement if the Development Approval lapses.

3 Deed

3.1 Continuing effect as a deed if not an infrastructure agreement
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In the event that this Agreement is declared not to be an infrastructure agreement,
as defined by the Act, or not to be enforceable as an agreement for any reason the
parties agree to be bound by the terms of this document as though it were a Deed.

4 Responsibilities of the Parties

41 Council’s Responsibilities

(a) The Council must carry out and perform or provide Infrastructure
Contributions in accordance with Schedule 2; and

(b)  Any Land Contributions provided to the Council under this Agreement are
to be held by the Council on trust for the charitable purpose for which the
Land Contribution is provided.

4.2 Developer’s Responsibilities

(@) The Developer must carry out and perform, pay or provide Infrastructure
Contributions in accordance with Schedule 2.

(b) The Development Responsibilities of the Developer, other than the Land
and Works Contribution in item 1.1.4 of Schedule 2, are provided in lieu of
the requirements of conditions 5 (Headworks) of the Development
Approval.

(c) The Development Responsibilities of the Developer that comprise the Land
and Works Contribution in item 1.1.4 of Schedule 2, is provided in lieu of
the requirements of conditions 14 (Park/Land Surrender) of the
Development Approval.

(d) The Developer must obtain all necessary approvals to enable all relevant
works for the Development Responsibilities of the Developer, to be lawfully
undertaken.

(e) The Developer must at its own cost comply with the Development
Responsibilities of the Developer, unless otherwise specified in this
Agreement.

(f) Where providing Works Contributions, the Developer must carry out the
Works Contributions:

(iy in a proper, safe and workmanlike manner; and

(i) in accordance with principles of good building and engineering
practices and standards; and
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(iii) using only new materials, goods, plant or other things that are of
merchantable quality and fit for the purpose for which they are
provided or used; and

(iv) in accordance with the requirements of any relevant development
approval for the Works Contribution.

(9) Where providing a Financial Contribution, the Developer must provide the
contribution in full and without deduction.

(h)  Where providing a Land Contribution, the Land Contribution is to be
provided in fee simple.

(i) The Developer must do all things reasonably necessary to commence
construction of the residential allotments the subject of stage 1 of the
Development Approval by 2 July 2018.

() The Developer must do all things reasonably necessary to create the
proposed lots the subject of stage 1 of the Development Approval by 21
December 2018.

5 GST

51 Definitions

Unless the context requires otherwise, words and phrases used in this clause that
have a specific meaning in the GST law (as defined in the GST Act) shall have the
same meaning in this clause.

5.2 Character of payments

(a) Except under this clause, the consideration for a supply made under or in
connection with this Agreement does not include GST.

(b) Irrespective of clause 5.2(a), the Developer, the Owner and the Council
acknowledge that to the extent Division 82 of the GST Act applies to
supplies made in return for a right to develop that such supplies do not
attract GST.

53 Responsibility for payment

If a supply made under or in connection with this Agreement is a taxable supply,
then at or before the time the consideration for the supply is payable:

(a) the recipient must pay the supplier an amount equal to the GST for the
supply (in addition to the consideration otherwise payable under this
document for that supply); and

(b) the supplier must give the recipient a tax invoice for the supply.
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54  Adjustment for input tax credits (reimbursement of expenses)

If any party has the right under this Agreement to be reimbursed or indemnified by
another party for a cost incurred in connection with this Agreement, that
reimbursement or indemnity excludes any GST component of that cost for which
an input tax credit may be claimed by the party being reimbursed or indemnified,
or by its representative member, joint venture operator or other similar person
entitled to the input tax credit (if any).

5.5 Adjustments by taxation authority

If the GST paid by the supplier differs from the amount of GST borne by the
recipient because the Commissioner of Taxation has lawfully adjusted the value of
a taxable supply:

(a) the recipient must pay the shortfall to the supplier; or

(b) the supplier must refund the overpayment to the recipient,

as the case requires.
56 Tax invoices and adjustment notes

(a) The supplier need not give the recipient a tax invoice or adjustment note for
a taxable supply under this Agreement if the Commissioner of Taxation has
issued a written determination permitting the recipient to issue its own tax
invoice or adjustment note for the supply.

(b) Otherwise, however, the supplier must give the recipient, in exchange for
the consideration, a tax invoice or adjustment note for the taxable supply.

6 Default

6.1 Events of default

A party defaults under this Agreement if it fails to discharge within the time
specified (if any) a Development Responsibility of the party.

6.2 Default Notice

In this clause 6, a Default Notice is a Notice from one party to another:
(a) specifying in reasonable detail the default under this Agreement; and

(b) requesting the defaulting party to rectify the default within the period
specified in the notice, which period must be reasonable.

6.3  Entitlements upon default

(a) For a default of the Developer that is rectifiable, if the Developer fails to
comply with a Default Notice, Council may, as the case requires:

(i) rectify the default (if the default is a failure to perform work, properly
or at all); and
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(ii) recover the cost of carrying out any works or taking any actions
directly from the Developer as a liquidated debt.

(b) The Council's entitlements under this clause 6.3 are additional to its
entitlements under legislation (including, to prevent doubt, the Planning
Scheme), the general law and other clauses of this Agreement.

6.4 Suspension of time — dispute

If a Default Notice precipitates a Dispute, the period between the date upon which
the Dispute Notice is given and the date upon which the Dispute is resolved in
accordance with clause 8 is not to form part of the period limited for compliance
with the Default Notice.

6.5 Council may act in public interest

(a) Regardless of the existence of a Dispute, Council may undertake the work
the subject of a Default Notice if it considers (acting reasonably) that
delaying the work will or is likely to compromise public safety or will or is
likely to inconvenience the public unreasonably.

(b) If the Dispute is resolved by an agreement or a determination that the
Developer is in default, the Developer is to comply with the Default Notice:

(i) within the period specified in the Default Notice, adjusted in
accordance with clause 6.4; or

(ii) by the date otherwise agreed or determined upon resolution of the
Dispute.

(c) If the Council has undertaken the relevant work pursuant to clause 6.5(a),
the Council may exercise its entitlements under clause 6.3 subject to a
contrary agreement or determination upon resolution of the Dispute.

(d) To prevent doubt, if the Dispute is resolved by an agreement or a
determination that the Developer is not in default:

(i) the Developer may ignore the Default Notice; and

(ii) the Council must bear the cost of the work undertaken pursuant to
clause 6.5(a) to the extent that the cost is not otherwise payable by
the Developer, or recoverable from it, under this Agreement.

6.6 Council’s right to enter land

Without limiting its entitlements under legislation or at general law, Council officers,
agents, and contractors (including their sub-contractors) authorised by the Council
to do so may enter the Land, with all necessary vehicles, plant, and equipment, to
exercise the Council's rectification entitlements under this clause 6.
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7 Force majeure

7.1 Notice of occurrence

A party unable to discharge a Development Responsibility of the party under this
Agreement because of Force Majeure is to give the other prompt Notice of the
occurrence.

7.2 Content of notice

The Notice is to:
(a) give full particulars of the Force Majeure event;

(b) detail the likely impact of the event upon the discharge of its Development
Responsibilities under this Agreement; and

(c) claim the benefit of this clause 7.

7.3  Mitigation of effect

The claimant is to take all reasonable steps to stem or mitigate the impact of Force
Majeure upon it.

7.4  Suspension of obligations

(a) If the claimant has complied with clauses 7.2, the Development
Responsibility impacted by the Force Majeure is to be suspended until the
impact ceases.

(b) Clause 7.4(a) is not to be interpreted to prevent Force Majeure discharging
this Agreement by frustration.

7.5 Absorption of losses

Subject to a contrary provision:
(a) in this Agreement; or

(b) in any relevant policy of insurance obtained pursuant to this Agreement,

the party that incurs or sustains them must bear the expenses or losses resulting
from the Force Majeure.

8 Disputes

8.1 Statement of intent

The intent of this clause 8 is to provide a mechanism for resolving, in a speedy and
cost-effective manner, any dispute between the parties in relation to the meaning
of any provision hereof or the scope, content or extent of their respective
obligations hereunder, including disputes as to matters which of necessity cannot
be agreed or specified at the present time and must be left to be agreed between
the parties at a later time.
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8.2 Exclusion of debt disputes

This clause 8:
(a) does not apply to disputes over debts; and

(b) does not apply to prevent the Council or the Developer applying to a court
for urgent injunctive relief.

8.3 Notice of dispute

If a Dispute arises between the Council and the Developer, either party may give
a Dispute Notice to the other.

8.4 Negotiation
(a) The parties must seek in good faith to resolve a Dispute first by negotiation.

(b)  Within 14 days after a Dispute Notice is given, the parties are to meet, in
person or by telephone, to conduct the negotiation.

(c) If they cannot agree the time and place for a meeting, the following
provisions apply:

(iy the venue for the meeting is to be at 190 Bourbong Street,
Bundaberg; and

(i)  the meeting is to begin at 10.00am on the next Bundaberg Business
Day after the 14-day period expires.

8.5 Appointment of Referee
(a) If:
(i) a party fails to attend the meeting, or withdraws from it; or
(i) the meeting otherwise fails to achieve resolution of the Dispute,

the parties may:

(iiiy apply or appeal to the Planning and Environment Court of
Queensland, if the issue in dispute is justiciable by that court under
the Act; or

(iv) (otherwise) give a Referral Notice to each other, to precipitate
determination of the issue in the Dispute by an independent,
appropriately qualified referee.

(b) If, within seven days after a Referral Notice is given, the parties do not agree
who is to be the referee, the party who gave the notice is to:

(i) request the President of the Queensland Law Society to make the
appointment; and

(ii) for that purpose, send the President a copy of the Dispute Notice.
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(c) The referring party is to request the President:

(i) to appoint a referee who possesses the qualifications, experience
and standing necessary and appropriate to ensure the Dispute is
resolved justly and efficiently; and

(ii) to inform the parties of the appointee’s estimated fee for acting upon
the determination.

(d) To prevent doubt, if the issue in the Dispute requires the application of
expertise in more than one discipline, the President may:

(iy appoint as Referee a person appropriately qualified in one of those
disciplines; and

(i)  appoint another person or other persons, appropriately qualified in
the other discipline or disciplines, to give the Referee the expert
assistance the Referee might require to facilitate expeditious and
effective resolution of all issues in the Dispute.

8.6 Determination by Referee
(@) Indetermining an issue in the Dispute, the Referee is to:
(i) act as an expert, not an arbitrator;

(ii) act as quickly as the interests of a fair and proper resolution of the
Dispute permit;

(i) act bona fide, without bias and without reference to irrelevant
considerations; and

(iv) endeavour to make the determination that serves best the nature
and intent of this Agreement as an instrument that complements and
effectuates the intent of the Development Approval.

(b) Though bound to observe the rules of procedural fairness in resolving the
Dispute, the Referee is not to be bound by the rules of evidence.

(c) Generally, the Referee may investigate the Dispute in the manner the
Referee considers appropriate and consistent with the Referee obligations
under this clause 8.

(d) Inparticular, the Referee may:
(i) receive submissions (verbal or written) from the parties;

(i) interview persons the Referee considers might assist in resolving the
issue in the Dispute;

(iiiy  seek information and documents the Referee considers are or might
be relevant to an issue in the Dispute; and

(iv) inspect documents and consider information obtained.
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(e) The Referee must deliver the Referee's determination in writing, addressed
to Council and the Developer jointly.

(f) The determination is to contain a full statement of the reasons for the
Referee's decision, including:

(i) each fact considered relevant;

(i) the weight given to each such fact;

(iii)  the facts disregarded; and

(iv) the reasons for disregarding each such fact.

(g) Unless, within 14 days after the Referee delivers the Referee's
determination, a party applies to a court of competent jurisdiction to overturn
or vary the determination, the determination is to be final and binding on the
parties.

Costs of resolving dispute

(a) The parties are to share equally:
(i) the President of the Queensland Law Society’s fee; and
(i) the Referee’s fee for acting to resclve a Dispute; and
(i)  the fee of each expert appointed to assist the Referee.

(b) However, each party must bear its own costs in connection with resolving
the Dispute, including the cost of:

(N preparing and delivering the Dispute Notice;

(i) seeking to resolve the Dispute by negotiation;

(i)  referring the Dispute for resolution by a Referee; and

(iv)  participating in the resolution process before the Referee.
Ouster of jurisdiction

(a) To prevent doubt, no party may seek to invoke this clause 8 to oust the
jurisdiction of a court competent to adjudicate a Dispute.

(b) If any party applies to a court for the determination of an issue in a Dispute,
after a Referral Notice has been given but before a Referee’s determination
is delivered, the proceeding for Referee determination is to cease pending
the decision of the court.

Service

9.1

Notices (general)

(a) This clause 9 governs a Notice unless a provision of this Agreement
specifically provides otherwise.
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(b) A Notice must be in writing.
(c) The party giving a Notice, or one of its officers, is to sign the Notice.

(d)  The recipient need not seek to establish the authority of a signatory to the
Notice.

(e) If a party is comprised of more than one person:

(i) a Notice by that party need not be signed by all of those persons if it
expressly states that the signatory is, or signatories are, authorised by
all of those persons to sign the Notice; and

(i)  the recipient need not enquire into the validity of the authorisation.

9.2  Service of Notices
A Notice may be:
(a) delivered;
(b) posted; or
(c) transmitted by facsimile,
to the intended recipient at its Address for Notices.

9.3 Receipt of Notices

(a) A Notice that is delivered personally or posted will be deemed received:

(i) if personally delivered, at the moment of delivery;

(ii) if posted to an address in Australia, two Business Days after posting;

(iii) if posted to an address outside Australia, five Business Days after
posting.

(b) A Notice sent by facsimile transmission will be deemed received at the time
of receipt specified in a Confirmation Report, if the report discloses that the
transmission was received at or before 5.00pm.

(c) If the Confirmation Report discloses that the transmission was received
after 5.00pm, the Notice will be deemed received at 8. 30am on the Business
Day following the date of receipt disclosed in the Confirmation Report.

10 Assignment by Developer

10.1  Assignment

The Developer must not, either absolutely or by way of security, assign their
interests, rights or obligations under this Agreement:

(a)  without obtaining the prior written consent of the Council, which is not to be
unreasonably withheld; and
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11 Novation of document upon sale

11.1 Reconfiguring of the Land
(a) If the Land is subject to a reconfiguring of a lot that creates a Developed

Lot, then a Development Responsibility of the Developer:
(i no longer remains attached to the Developed Lot;

(ii) no longer binds the Owner or the Owner's successors in title of the
Developed Lof;

(iii)  but remains binding on the Developer.

(b) If the Land is subject to a reconfiguring of a lot that creates a Developable
Lot, then a Development Responsibility of the Developer:

(i remains attached to the Developable Lot; and

(i) binds the Owner of a Developable Lot and the Owner's successor
in title of the Developable Lot.

11.2 Sale of the Land

(a) The Developer is not to Sell a Developable Lot to a Transferee unless the
Owner and the Transferee have executed one of the following documents,
to be nominated by the Council in its absolute discretion:

(i a document in which the Transferee covenants and agrees to the
following:

(A) thatthe Developable Lot is subject to this Agreement;

(B) that a Development Responsibility in respect of the
Developable Lot (Prescribed Development Obligation)
may be unperformed and unfulfilled;

(C) that a Prescribed Development Obligation attaches to
the Developable Lot and binds a future Owner;

(D) that the Owner of the Developable Lot is liable to the
Council to perfeorm and fulfili a Prescribed Development
Obligation which remains unperformed and unfulfilled;

(i) a deed in which the Transferee becomes contractually bound to
the Council to perform and fulfil the Prescribed Development
Obligation.

(b) However, clause 11.2(a) does not prevent the Owner from entering into an
agreement for the sale of a Developable Lot which is conditional upon
compliance with the matters stated in 11.2(a).
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11.3 The Developer remains liable until Transferee signs

In the event of a Sale of a Developable Lot being made otherwise than in
compliance with clause 11.2, the Developer remains liable for performance of the
responsibilities under this Agreement.

12 Release of liability

In the event of a Sale of a Developable Lot being made in compliance with clause
11.2, the Developer is to be forever released from the responsibilities under this
Agreement.

13 General provisions

13.1  No merger

The covenants, conditions, provisions and warranties contained in this Agreement
do not merge or terminate upon completion of the transactions contemplated in
this Agreement but to the extent that they have not been fulfilled and satisfied or
are capable of having effect, remain in full force and effect.

13.2 Entire agreement

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties as to its subject
matter, and supersedes and cancels all prior arrangements, understandings, and
negotiations in connection with it.

13.3 Further assurances

Each party agrees at its cost to do everything necessary to give effect to this
Agreement.

13.4 Warranty of authority

Any person signing this Agreement:

(a) as attorney of any party warrants to the other parties that at the date of
execution that person has not received any notice or information of the
revocation of the power of attorney appointing that person; and

(b)  as an authorised officer, agent or trustee of any party warrants to the other
parties that at the date of execution that person has full authority to execute
this Agreement in that capacity.

13.5 Amendment of Agreement

(a) Despite any provision of this Agreement, Council, the Developer and the
Owner may at any time vary the terms of this Agreement if:
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(i) the Owner is the registered owner of the Land or part of the Land to
which the variation relates; or

(i) the registered owner has given written consent to the amendment.
(b) No variation of this Agreement is of any force or effect unless:

(i) it is in the form of a variation agreement and has been signed by the
parties (or their successors in title); and

(ii) where relevant, the variation agreement complies with the
requirements of the Act.

13.6 No waiver

a e failure of a party at any time to require full or partial performance of any
The fail f rty at t t full rtial perf f
provision of this Agreement does not affect in any way the full right of that
party to require that performance subsequently.

(b) The waiver by any party of a breach of a provision of this Agreement is not
deemed a waiver of all or part of that provision or of any other provision or
of the right of that party to avail itself of its rights subsequently.

(c) Any waiver of a breach of this Agreement is to be in writing signed by the
party granting the waiver, and is effective only to the extent specifically set
out in that waiver.

13.7 Payment of costs

Each party will bear its own costs of and incidental to the negotiation and
preparation of this Agreement.

13.8 Place for payment of money

All money payable to a party under this Agreement is payable free from all
deductions at the party's Address for Notices.
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SCHEDULE1

Agreement Details

ITEM1 Commencement Date The day the last party signs this Agreement.
ITEM2 Council

Name of Council Bundaberg Regional Council

190 Bourbong Street, Bundaberg, 4670 in

Address the State of Queensland

Facsimile No. (07) 4150 5410

Email address: ceo@hbundaberg.gld.gov.au
ITEM 3 Owner

Name Edamgrove Pty Ltd

Address (or registered office if a

corporation) 62 Mary Street Gympie QLD 4570

Facsimile No. 07 5482 2495
Email address: david.schuh@schuhgroup.com.au
ITEMS5 Land

Lot 502 on SP 293971, situated on Frizzells Road, WOODGATE.
ITEM6 Development Approval
Development Permit for Reconfiguring a Lot for 192 residential lots, park and

balance lot approved by the Council by decision notice dated 5 June 2008.
Council reference no. 321.2007.21009.1.
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SCHEDULE 2

Infrastructure Contributions
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FRIZZELLS ROAD —SCHEDULE 2

1.0 Owner

VSP2 Works.

$1,000,000, to be paid to the Council in
three instalments as follows:

{(a) $200,000 (“Instalment 1”);
(b} $400,000 (“Instalment 2"); and

(c) $400,000 (“Instalment 3");

be paid as follows:

(a) Instalment 1:
on or before
30 March
2018;
Instalment 2:
on or before
29 June 2018;
(c) Instalment 3:
on or before
21 December
2018.

(b

Column1 | Column2 Column 3 Column 4 ColumnS5 | Column 6
Item Infrastructure Contribution Description of Infrastructure Contribution | Timing of Provider Creditable Value
Infrastructure of
Contribution Infrastruc
ture
Contributi
on
1.1.1 Land contribution forVPS2 Provision of a Land Contribution to the On or before 8 Developer
Land Council comprising the VPS2 Land: November 2017. The Land
Contribution is
(a) in fee simple; creditable in the
amount of
(b) for the purposes of a sewerage $202,900
facility; and
(c) atno cost to the Council
1.1.2 Financial Contribution for Provision of a Financial Contribution of Each instalment is to Developer | The Financial

Contribution is
creditable as
follows:

(a) Instalment
1:
$200,000;

(b) Instalment
2:
$400,000;

(c) Instalment
3: $400,000

l|Page
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FRIZZELLS ROAD —SCHEDULE 2

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column5 | Column 6
Item Infrastructure Contribution Description of Infrastructure Contribution | Timing of Provider Creditable Value
Infrastructure of
Contribution Infrastruc
ture
Contributi
on
1.1.3 Deleted
1.1.4 Land Contribution and Works Land contribution to Developer | The Land
Contribution for Park and Provision of a Land Contribution to the be provided on or Contribution and
Drainage Council comprising proposed Lot 401 as before 21 December Works Contribution
shown on drawing 1 in Schedule 3: 2018. have a combined
creditable value of
(a) of an area of 7.52 hectares; Works Contribution to $809,687.50
be provided prior to
(b) in fee simple; the approval of the
plan of subdivision
(¢} forthe purposes of a park and containing the 65
drainage reserve; and allotment.
(d) at no cost to the Council.
Provision of a Works Contribution
comprising improvements to proposed Lot
401 as agreed to in writng by the Council, to
be provided at no cost to the Council.
1.1.5 Financial Contribution for Provision of a Financial Contribution to be That part of the Developer | Not Applicable
trunk infrastructure paid to the Council of an amount equivalent | Financial Contribution
to the amount of the levied charge that that is referrable to
would be applicable to the Proposed each stage of the
Development under the AICR as at the Proposed
Commencement Date, if the AICR applied to Development is to be

2|Page
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FRIZZELLS ROAD —SCHEDULE 2

Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column5 | Column 6
Item Infrastructure Contribution Description of Infrastructure Contribution | Timing of Provider Creditable Value
Infrastructure of
Contribution Infrastruc
ture
Contributi
on
the Proposed Development, less the paid prior to the
Creditable Value of any Infrastructure approval by the
Contributions that have been provided by Council of the plan of
the Owner in accordance with this Schedule | sybdivision for that
2 stage of the Proposed
Development
For the avoidance of doubt, the amount of
the financial contribution is to be
automatically increased in accordance
with section 11 of the AICR.
2.0 Council
2.1 VPS2 Works
211 Works Contribution for Provision of a Works Contribution (a) Award tender for | Council Not applicable

the VPS2 Works.

comprising the VPS2 Works to be
carried out generally in accordance
with drawings 2 to 4 in Schedule 3.

VPS2 Works by
15 November
2017

(b) Commission VPS2
Works by 30 June
2018

3|Page
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Edamgreve {A3004624) 4|
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SCHEDULE 3

Drawings
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SCHEDULE OF DRAWINGS
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Execution

EXECUTED as a deed.

Signed by Stephen Johnston, Chief Executive
Officer on behalf of the BUNDABERG
REGIONAL COUNCIL in accordance with the
the Local Government Act 2009 on the

day of 2017

4. Signature of

Signature of witness

Name of witness (print)

SIGNED SEALED AND DELIVERED )
for and on behalf of

EDAMGROVE PTY LTD (ACN )
010398106)

by authority of the directors in the )
presence of on the day of )
2017:

4. Director 4. Director/Secretary

4. Full name of director 4. Full name of director/secretary

Attachment 1 - Infrastructure Agreement
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f ltem 21 November 2017

BUNDABERG
Item Number: File Number: Part:
J2 Nil PLANNING

Portfolio:

Infrastructure & Planning Services

Subject:

Bundaberg 4670 - Bundaberg CBD Master Plan
Report Author:

Evan Fritz, Manager Strategic Planning
Authorised by:
Andrew Fulton, General Manager Infrastructure & Planning

Link to Corporate Plan:

Our Environment - 2.2 Sustainable built environments and local projects that support
our growing population and promote economic investment and development.

Background:

The Bundaberg 4670 — Bundaberg CBD Master Plan is a long term plan to guide
growth and change in Bundaberg'’s principal centre over the next 20 years. The master
plan draws together the outcomes of existing work within the Bundaberg CBD
including the Bundaberg Riverside Master Plan (2015), Bundaberg Mainstreet
Revitalisation Draft Concepts (2014) and the Bundaberg CBD Traffic Planning Study
(2014).

The master plan sets a long term vision for the Bundaberg CBD. The plan seeks to
provide a platform to guide future investment and decision making by Council in the
Bundaberg CBD, with a view to ensure that future work by Council is coordinated and
contributes towards this overall vision, rather than being piecemeal or ad hoc.
Implementation of the plan cuts across various work areas of Council, including but
not limited to planning and construction of works, on-going maintenance, economic
development, community and cultural programs, and regulatory activities.
Implementation of some aspects of the plan will also require support from others,
including State Government agencies such as the Department of Transport and Main
Roads.

The study area for the master plan is defined by key landmarks, as well as the Principal
Centre zoning within the Bundaberg Regional Council Planning Scheme. The CBD is
bound by the Burnett River to the north, Bundaberg Creek to the east, Saltwater Creek
to the south, and the North Coast Rail Line to the west. Areas of influence outside the
study area, such as key tourism attractions, open space and transport networks, and
accommodation options have also been considered in developing the master plan.

Meeting held: 21 November 2017
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The executive summary of the Bundaberg CBD Master Plan is included at Attachment
1 and the Implementation Plan is included at Attachment 2. The full study will be
tabled at the meeting and will be made available on Council’'s website subject to its
acceptance by Council (note: the full document is approximately 160 pages long).

The master plan outlines objectives, strategies and actions under key theme headings
and includes a supporting implementation plan that outlines actions that can be
implemented progressively by Council (and others) over time. The implementation
plan, which is included at Attachment 2, nominates indicative timing, responsibilities
and key stakeholders for each item. While the plan identifies some items that could
be implemented quickly, many actions will require further detailed planning and
funding, and will need a longer lead time. The recommendations for implementation
have been divided into immediate, short-term (1-3 years), medium-term (3-5 years)
and long-term (6+ years) projects. These include:-

o temporary interventions, including interim and/or lower-cost items that could be
implemented relatively quickly;

o governance interventions, including regulatory measures (eg planning scheme,
local laws, regulated parking, land tenure, road corridor management, etc) and
the need for coordinated management, marketing and promotion; and

o physical interventions, including road and streetscape works (including possible
redirection of traffic from Quay Street), and parks and open space improvements
(eg Anzac Park, pool and water play) — many of these items are moderate to
higher cost items requiring budgetary/financial commitment and that will involve
design and tender processes, etc.

The key priority projects identified for the Bundaberg CBD in the short term include —

1. development of streetscape design guidelines to guide streetscape and public
realm improvements within the Bundaberg CBD;

2. streetscape improvements to revitalise the ‘mainstreet’ (ie Bourbong Street and
adjacent sections of Barolin and Targo Streets);

3. parks and open space improvements within Anzac Park, including the potential
redevelopment of Anzac Pool into a water play facility; and

4.  further planning into the future function and form of Quay Street (to improve
pedestrian connectivity between the CBD and the riverside) and associated
traffic network issues.

In terms of Items 1 and 2 above, it is noted that Council has recently engaged
consultants to assist in the preparation of streetscape design guidelines and detailed
design for streetscape improvements.

While the master plan and supporting implementation plan outline a range of actions,
it is expected that these actions and priorities will change over time to respond to
changing circumstances, including issues arising from further detailed planning and
investigations, community opinion, availability of funding and budget considerations.
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Associated Person/Organization:

Dwayne Honor — Project Manager — CBD Streetscape Project; Ben Artup — Executive
Director, Strategic Projects and Economic Development Co-ordination

Consultation:

It is noted that no external stakeholder engagement has been undertaken specifically
in relation to the master plan. Preparation of the master plan has been informed by
consultation undertaken on previous projects within the CBD. Specifically, Council
consulted with the community in the preparation of the Bundaberg Mainstreet
Revitalisation Draft Concepts (2014), and with the Department of Transport and Main
Roads in relation to the Bundaberg CBD Traffic Planning Study (2014). The
community, stakeholders and State Government agencies were also consulted in the
preparation of the Bundaberg Riverside Master Plan. A summary of consultation
undertaken on the Mainstreet Revitalisation and Riverside Master Plan projects is
outlined in these respective reports and within the Bundaberg CBD Master Plan report.
This includes details on the consultation activities undertaken, as well as the feedback
received through such consultation.

Legal Implications:

There are no legal implications regarding this project.
Policy Implications:

The Bundaberg CBD Master Plan identifies some changes that could be considered
to the Bundaberg Regional Council Planning Scheme, as well as local laws and
policies relating to the regulation of footpath dining, car parking and event/activity
management. Such changes would be intended to ensure the regulatory environment
complements rather than impedes outcomes sought for the CBD.

Financial and Resource Implications:

The Bundaberg CBD Master Plan includes recommendations for implementation and
interventions to deliver key aspects of the master plan. Council has allocated money
in the 2017/18 budget to start the process of implementing the Master Plan, specifically
in relation to the commencement of streetscape design and works within the main
street.

Risk Management Implications:

The Bundaberg CBD Master Plan report has been prepared to coordinate previous
separate reports and investigations undertaken within the CBD, including mainstreet
revitalisation, Riverside Master Plan, and CBD traffic planning. While aspects of the
plan have been subject to previous community consultation, there are other parts of
the plan that have not been consulted on. In particular, no public consultation has
been undertaken on proposed changes to the function of Quay Street and redirection
of through traffic from Quay Street to alternative routes. The Riverside Master Plan
highlighted the need to improve connectivity between the CBD and the riverside, but
did not explore the potential implications of this on traffic movement through the CBD.

For this reason, it is recommended that in adopting or endorsing the Bundaberg CBD
Master Plan, Council highlight that the report is adopted for the purposes of guiding
and coordinating future planning.
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This will include further community consultation on individual aspects of the plan, such
as the community consultation that is currently ongoing for the detailed design for the
Bundaberg CBD revitalisation project.

Communications Strateqy:

Communications Team consulted.
Yes
[l No

Given current communication with community and affected stakeholders in relation to
the Bundaberg CBD revitalisation project, communications relating to the overall
master plan should be managed so as to avoid confusion and to limit any impacts on
the Bundaberg CBD revitalisation project.

Attachments:

41  Bundaberg CBD Master Plan - Executive Summary
02 Bundaberg CBD Master Plan - Implementation Plan

Recommendation:
That:-

1. the “Bundaberg 4670 — Bundaberg CBD Master Plan” be received by
Council for the purposes of guiding and co-ordinating future planning,
decision making and investment by Council within the Bundaberg CBD;

2. the master plan be referred to Council’s Executive Director, Strategic
Projects and Economic Development Co-ordination for further
investigation and implementation of actions and outcomes identified;

3. further investigation be undertaken in relation to the following priority
items identified in the Implementation Plan (noting that detailed design
for Stages 1 and 2 of the CBD Streetscape Revitalisation works and
Streetscape Design Guidelines have already commenced):—

I Stage 2 of the Bundaberg CBD Traffic Planning Study, including
preliminary design and engagement in relation to Quay Street and
any alternative route/s required to accommodate increased
through traffic and freight arising from proposed changes to Quay
Street;

ii.  Concept (reference) design and subsequent detailed design for
the redevelopment of Anzac Park and Anzac Pool for improved
public parkland, pedestrian access to and along the riverside,
Anzac remembrance, and water play facility.

iii.  Amendments to the Bundaberg Regional Council Planning
Scheme be investigated to facilitate development within the CBD
and to support implementation of the Master Plan, including but
not limited to building height provisions.
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Bundaberg Regional Council is seeking
to revitalise the Bundaberg CBD and
enhance its image as the most vibrant
retail and recreation destination for the
Wide Bay Burnett Region.

The main aims of the project are to:

® ntegrate and coordinate planning for land
use, development and infrastructure delivery
across the CBD, and identify infrastructure
(including roads and pathways, car parking,
streetscape works, improvements to
parks and public spaces, and planning for
services) required to support the function
and economic environment of the Bundaberg
CBD as a successful and vibrant CBD;

@] mprove traffic flow within and around
the CBD while also enhancing pedestrian
walkability of the CBD;

o mprove connectivity hetween the Bourbong
Street and the riverside;

®  Provide car parking solutions that maximise
the retention of on street parking, but not at
the expense of other project objectives;

@] mprove vehicle movements to/from the CBD
and facilitate an increase in pedestrian and
cycle trips to the CBD

®  Develop an implementation plan to pricritise
investment in infrastructure improvements
in the Bundaberg CBD, including catalyst
projects to reinforce the role of the
Bundaberg CBD as the region's principal
activity centre for commerce, government
services, community interaction and
community and cultural facilities;

®  Broaden the appezl of Bundaberg as a tourist
destination;

@  Offer a city-based culture and lifestyle
within the CBD, creating a hub for not only
business and commercial activity, but also
far recreation, leisure, community services
and activity, and for residential living; and
stimulate private sector development and
investment;

L ] Revitalise the public realm and retail
environment to support local businesses
and the community;

Bundakerg Regional Council

®  Create a safe and equitable access to key
features in the Bundaberg CBD that caters to
the Bundaberg community and wider region;
and

®  Improve the streetscape for pedestrians
including more shade, landscaping, improved
wayfinding, better links between key
destinations and use of |r1t(!rt}st|"g urban
elements and materials

At a glance

The Bundaberg CBD
Masterplan is the long-term
vision for the principal
activity centre of the
Bundaberg Region.

Seeks to enhance the
Bundaberg CBD as a destination
for people to live, work and play.

Proposes improvements to

the amenity and walkability
of the CBD through streetscape
works, upgrades to Riverside
Parklands and other public
realm improvements.

Maintains car parking
numbers and improves access
to car parking — bath for short

term customers and visitors
and long term staff car parking.

Identifies key development
sites, including sites suitable
for medium to high density

permanent housing and short
term accommodation in the CBD.

Attachment 1 - Bundaberg CBD Master Plan - Executive Summary
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Issues considered in the

Development of the CBD Master Plan

To establish a renewed and active Bundaberg CBD,
the following key 1ssues were considered in the
development of the plan:

Perceived lack of car parking

Traffic congestion and the future road
network hierarchy though the CBD;

Heavy traffic along Quay Street preventing
aningful connection bet
rg CBD and the Burr

am

Bundat

Car focused transport network

Economic development initiatives

ISCUS ngan fTIZ)f(}‘J[?d Investment In Ih(!
maintenance and development of CBD
properties, increasing competitiveness with
other centres such as Hinkler Central and
Stockland Bundaberg; and

The need for an improved gover
structure to ensure reguiar maintenance -ZJ[
CBD infrastructure, promation of businesses
and encouragement of development within
the CBD

nance

n arder to respond to these issues, and others,

the Bundaberg CBD Masterplan aims to revitalize
the Bundaberg CBD through a number of key
future actions including a revitalization of the
public realm, encouraging mixed use development,
including residential development, implementation
of a car parking strategy, extensive public domain

upgrades, improvement of the centre’s connection
to the Burnett River River, encouragement of

retail competitiveness and enhancement of the
City Centre's character, increasing the walkability
through the CBD and highlighting the cultural and
historical significance of the Bundaberg CBD

Therefore the vision for the future
Bundaberg CED is outlined below:

The Bundaberg CBD . . .

... IS the most vibrant CBD in
regional Queensland and the premier
shopping and commercial hub for the
Wide Bay Burnett region

... célebrates jts riverside setting
and maintains a sub-troprcal
character and atmosphere enriched
by a blend of historical and
contemporary buildings and spaces

... provides an increasingly diverse
range of services for residents

and visitors, including leisure and
hospitality services, attractive

public spaces, and a range of
accommodation and residential living
options

Bundaberg CBD Master Plan Executive Summary 2
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Strategies proposed

Createa
high quality
public realm

This strategy aims to strengthen the
streetscape by creating a high quality
public realm that is attractive and
functional, with infrastructure to support
a principal activity centre and enhance
the features of the Bundaberg CBD as a
destination for people to live, work and
play into the future. There is a need to
improve the streetscape of most if not all
streets in the CBD, to ensure these streets
serve Bundaberg visitors and residents,
as well as attract potential investors and/
or developers.

Streetscape and other public realm works can
imprave how streets and public spaces look and
feel, especially for pedestrians, but can also
increase activity — increasing the number of people
visiting the CBD and/or encouraging people to

stay longer. Streetscape and other public realm
improvements can also serve to unify the various
parts of the CBD and help complement adjacent
business activities and uses and heritage bulldings

Trees and other landscaping treatments can
provide multiple benefits including providing shade
and protection from the sun (and to some extent
rain and wind), a more visually appealing
streetscape, focal points for resting or pedestrian
movement and creating micro-climate
improvements (e.g. reducing heat from hard
surfaced areas)

Measures to guide development of the streetscape,
open space and public realm improvements have
been developed under the following concepts:

] Streetscape iImprovements to ensure streets
cater for their desired function;

@ Creating great civic spaces for community
activity and events;

@] Creating great open spaces that connect the
Bundaberg CBD to the Burnett River;

@] Creating a pleasant, interesting, easy and
safe walking environment along the CBD
streets; and

3 Bundakerg Regional Council

Inspiring the community with temporary
activities and installations.

Actions proposed

1

(=]

(&3]

Developing a Streetscape Guideline — Giving
guidance to the streetscape improvements for
all streets in the Bundaberg CBD, to improve
the walkability and overall amenity of CBD
streets, and to ensure they will meet their future
function;

Reconstructing the CBD streetscape in
accardance with the Streetscape Guidelines
nitial reconstruction will be focused around
the CBD core — Bourbong Street, from
Maryborough Street to Tantitha Street,
upgrading current dated infrastructure
including the CBD pavilion, seating, andscaping,
pavers and public tollets — with works
proposed to commence in 2018;

Reconnect the Bundaberg CBD with the Burnett
River riverside parklands through the staged
transformation of Quay Street from a priority
route servicing through traffic and freight, to

a pedestrian friendly street that provides for
improved streetscape amenity, walkability and
local traffic movement,

Undertake improvements to parkland

along the Burnett River riverside, including
improvemenis to ANZAC Park as a civic space
for ceremenies, events and entertainment,
Riverwalk along the edge of the Burnett River
and the proposed redevelopment of ANZAC
Pool as a water play area; and

Creating great open
spaces that connect
the Bundaberg CBD
to the Burnett River

mprove the CBD with allowing temporary
activities such as markets and festivals to
improve the cultural offering in the Bundaberg
CBD. This may alsc include the temporary
installation of public art

mplement a program of streetscape works
across the CBD which seeks to improve
walkability (including equitable access, safety,
shade and weather protection).

Attachment 1 - Bundaberg CBD Master Plan - Executive Summary
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Bourbong and Maryborough Street intersection

Traffic movement,
public transport and
pedestrian accessibility

Building on the strategies for a high
quality public realm, the Bundaberg CBD
is identified as a pedestrian friendly
street network. Principal open space is
Buss Park and Anzac Park and adjoining
Riverside Parklands. Social spaces are
also within the street and the pathways
and arcades cross the CBD to create key
connections that lead to shopping, cafes
and restaurants.

The Bundaberg CBD was designed based on

a grid pattern. The wide streets and reqular
blocks assist in clearly defining the pedestrian
connectivity across the Bundaherg CBD. The
CBD has an existing network for vehicular and
pedestrian circulation and a broad spatial grid
for land use development. The on-going growth
of the Bundaberg Region Is expected to generate
significant growth in visitor trips to the CBD and
there will be a demand for a broader diversity

of travel modes. There is a need to focus on
increasing the proportion of walking/cycling trips
into and around the CBD, which can reduce the
number of short trips being made by car, improving
the efficiency of the road network

Measures used to guide the improvement of
pedestrian access in the CBD are based on the
following concepts

Woongarra Street Bus Stop

L Reinforcing the role of Bourbong Street as
the as the CBD's main street, key pedestrian
spine and people place;

® mprove pedestrian and cyclist access
into and within the Bundaberg CBD and to
key destinations to promote non-vehicular
movements; and

® To improve the level of service and
frequency of public transport both within and
connecting 1o the Bundaberg CBD

Measures used to guide the iImprovement of traffic
maovement in the CBD Is based on the following
concepts

O Change the function of Quay Street from a
primary through traffic route and designated
Main Road, to a green and pedestrian friendly
street, with improved connectivity to the
Riverside;

[ ntroduce changes to Maryborough Street
to improve efficiency for through traffic and
freight; and

e Pursue investigations into a longer-term
bypass along Electra Street and George
Street to divert heavy through traffic from
Quay Street to an alternative route

Actions proposed

Pedestrian Accessibility and Public Transport

1 Bourbong Street, between Maryborough
Street and Tantitha Street, to be revitalised to
enhance its function and attractiveness as
the city’s main community, shopping, dining

Bundaberg CBD Master Plan Executive Summary
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and pedestrian spine. The character and
treatments will vary for different sections
of Bourbong Street, but key initiatives to be
investigated include:

® reducing vehicle speeds whilst retaining
convenient vehicle access and on-street
parking;

@ widening pedestrian pavements and
introducing raised or pedestrian priority
crossings at key intersections and
Crossings;

® improving opportunities for cutdoor
dining, particularly near the Moncrieff
Entertainment Centre, Earls Court, Targo
Street and near Indulge,

@ incorporating new pavement treatments,
landscaping, lighting, street furniture and
weather protection as required improving
pedestrian amenity, safety and staying
opportunities;

® facilitating the upgrade of key laneways
and mid-block pedestrian connections,
including arcades to improve linkages
between Bourbong Street and
surrounding shopping and community
destinations and parking facilities.

2 Council continues to invest in pathways
consistent with Council's Multi Modal
Pathway Strategy (GHD, February 2012),
which will only serve to support improved
pedestrian and cycle access [active
transport) to the CBD over time.

@ Enhance existing laneways and arcades
to provide new connections as required
to establish a fine grain and convenient
pedestrian network linking key streets,
public spaces, parking areas and planned
retail and community destinations; and

@ Introduce end of trip facilities in a key
central location, including bike storage
facilities. This could be co-located with
another facility (e.g. public swimming
pool, toilets, etc ).

Review and provide upgrades as required
to improve the safety, legibility and amenity
of key entry points into the City Centre and
Bourbong Street.

Undertake a review and upgrade existing
public transport services and facilities within
the Bundaberg CBD

Traffic movement

1.

Pursue discussions and detailed design

with the Department of Transport and Main
Roads for a balanced function of Quay Street,
to improve streetscape amenity, walkability
and localised traffic movements in the short-
medium term. This will have some impacts
on through traffic and freight efficiency in the
shart term. Efficiency for through traffic and
freight will further worsen over time as traffic
volumes increase, requiring an alternative
CBD bypass route,

Introduce changes along Maryborough
Street to improve its efficiency for through
traffic and freight

Introduce changes along Woondooma
Street to improve its safety and efficiency for
through traffic. This will include associated
changes and improvements to Intersections.

Pursue investigations into a longer-term
bypass along Electra Street and Gearge
Street, including the feasibility of either a
new link between Electra Street and George
Street, or a new road which would bypass
George Street.

Quay Strest

Bundakerg Regional Council
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Car parking
management and supply

Bundaberg is currently a very car dominated city
for most trips. Whilst the master plan identifies
potential for improvements in active transport
(walking and cycling) and public passenger
transport (bus) for trips to and from the Bundaberg
CBD, reliance on the private motor vehicle is unlikely
to change significantly over life of this master

plan. In this context, effective, safe and attractive
car parking provision is a critical consideration in
the long-term planning and management of the
Bundaberg CBD.

The supply and convenience of free car parking
supports commercial activity, and could arguably
be a key factor to the resilience and vibrancy of
Bundaberg CBD to date. Data from previous parking
studies and the recently installed smart parking
sensors have highlighted satisfactory parking
arrangements in most of the CBD, apart from

the City Core (between Barolin Street and Targo
Street). That being said, car parking in parts of the
City Frame, but within easy walking distance to
the City Core, are generally underutilised. As such,
measures to increase utilisation of car parking
outside of the City Core should be considered,
especially for long term staff parking. This may
inturn help alleviate parking pressures in the City
Core

The car parking strategy within the CBD Masterplan
will incorporate some key changes across the
Bundaberg CBD to allow for the best utilisation of
existing car parking infrastructure, as well as supply
additional parking in key strategic locations.

Actions proposed

1. Implement consistent time limits within the
City Core to facilitate increased turnover and
reduce overstays by staff working in the CBD;

2. Encourage long term parking for staff away
from the CBD core, improved facilities such as
covered parking;

3. Improved walking conditions between the CBD
and parking areas including lighting and CCTV,

4. Provide more all day parking along Quay Street
to the north of the CBD core;

5. Roll out smart parking technology across the
CBD;

6. Install variahle message directional signage
to indicate parking areas and availability,

connected directly to the smart parking system,

7. Investigate all options regarding on street
and off street car parking solutions before
constructing a multi-storey car park. Should
onhe need to be provided, initial thoughts should
be given to providing a multi-storey car park on
Councll land for Council staff and other CBD
staff on Woongarra Street, with retail spaces at
ground level along the street frontage

66

Ensure adequate
levels of car parking

to meet projected
needs

Smart parking sensors

Bundaberg CBD Master Plan Executive Summary
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Key redevelopment sites

Government Land

The Riverside Master Plan identified sites
suitable for redevelopment, due to their
high amenity location along the Burnett
River, and the current physical condition
of infrastructure on the identified sites.

Key redevelopment sites included areas of
government control (either Federal, State or Loca
Government) on Bourbong Street and Quay Street.
These sites present a legitimate opportunity to
lead development activity within the Riverside
through the renewal of ageing commercial stack
and underutilised land in order to provide mixed use
development activity, including the potential for a
centralised State Government services precinct
Car yards and the former Mid-Town Marina site
also offer opportunity for redevelopment, in
particular short term accommodation. Bourbong
Street redevelopment opportunities include the
Whale Wall building, which is aging office and retail
stock in the centre of the Bundaberg CBD. This
building provides an opportunity for mixed use
development in the centre of the CBD

7 Bundakerg Regional Council
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Actions proposed

Under the Advancing our Cities and Regicons
Strategy, Council has explored its surplus land as
well as underutilised State assets to develop a set
of key redevelopment sites that will build on the
streetscape and open space works proposed within
the Bundaberg CBD

1.

PCD Site and DTMR

This Is a combined site on the Burnett River
that adjoins the railway line. It has been
identified as an ideal location for a hotel or
mixed use development, due to its large flood
free site and its views aver the river

Civic Precinct

BRC Council offices, Civic Centre and Civic
Arcade, Claude Wharton, Courthouse, BRAG,
Library and surrounds. Council has identified
the need for a civic/cultural precinct
masterplan to coordinate future renewal and
investment in civic, cultural and community
infrastructure within the CBD. Investment
by government can also help stimulate
investment by other property owners

Anzac Park and the Bundaberg Bowls Club
The Bundaberg Bowls Club has been
identified for possible relocation in the long
term to create a larger, more functional
Anzac Park, creating waterplay and family
parkland areas along the river for all of the
community to access

Riverside Parklands

A large portion of this site is currently
occupled by car parking. It is considered that
some of this car parking could be opened

up to more green space, especially along its
river edge.

Rowers Club

The current rowing club facilities are too
small in their current location. There 1s
potential to move them to the former Lady
Musgrave site and create a shared water
sport facility, to be used by the rowing, sailing
and dragon boating clubs

Anzac Park - Quay Street

CBD Fire Station

With the construction of the new fire station
at Thaheban, there is patential for this site to
play a large cultural role for the CBD into the
future

Central State School

This large schoal site is located in a prime
position on Woendooma Street. Whilst the
scheol currently anly has 100 students, a
large portion of the school oval could be
redeveloped for a car parking structure or
other development

Railyards

Land owned by Queensland Rail along the
western side of McLean Street (between
Electra Street and Woondooma Street)
consists of underutilised rail yards and the
Bundaberg Freight Terminal. The property is
over 1.3 hectares and has over 300 metres
frontage to MclLean Street. There may be
an opportunity far some of this land to be
utilised for commercial purpeses linking the
City Core and Riverside to Hinkler Central
and the Old Showgrounds site.

Private landholdings

In addition to the State Government owned land,
there are also some key redevelopment sites in
private land ownership

9.

City Centre Arcade and Whale Wall Building
This aging building is largely unoccupied and
is in need of renovation or redevelopment
The arcade provides an important mid-block
connection which would ideally be retained
into the future. The property would be ideally
suited to ongoing commercial use, including
ground floor retail and food premises,

with office space above. Alternatively, land
above ground floor could be redeveloped

for residential accommodation, particularly
short-term accommodation

Marina Quay and Mid-Town Marina

These aging premises have previously been
approved for redevelopment for short-term
accommodation. Given their location and
river views, these properties still represent
ideal sites for this type of development
Such development could also incorporate
commercial activities at ground level

Eastern expansion of the CBD

Large lots of land in the eastern part of
Bourbong Street present an ideal opportunity
for redevelopment and may be developed
into the future

Bundaberg CBD Master Plan Executive Summary
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Governance and
Implementation

Council’s governance structure is
critical to ensuring a smoaoth transition
from construction of streetscape and
infrastructure improvements to the
long term management of Bundaberg's
principal activity centre.

There are three key components of the CBD Master
plan that will help guide from the vision to reality

1. Implementation Plan
A staged implementation plan, mapping
out the way to reach the end outcome
n a sustainable and logical pattern of
development over a 10 year timeframe

2. Governance Structure
Ensuring a governance structure within
Bundaberg Regional Council that has buy
n from a community reference group to
oversee the implementation of each stage of
the CBD Master plan

3 Ongoing Policy Review

Ongoing review with the Executive and
Council about the future vision for the
Bundaberg CBD

Bundakerg Regional Council

Actions proposed

1 Develop a staged implementation plan to
incorporate all elements outlined in the CBD
Masterplan to be delivered in the next 10
years;

Consider the employment of a dedicated
Project Manager to implement the hard
infrastructure upgrades and construction
projects within the Bundaberg CBD;

]

3 Consider the employment of a dedicated
Place Manager to partner with the Project
Manager to guide implementation initiatives
to improve business in the Bundaberg CED to
undertake a range of activities including but
not imited to

Co-ordination of key centre activities and
events,

Co-ordination of master plan
implementation;

Investment promeotion and attraction;
Advocate for centre funding and grants;

Co-ordination of marketing and promotion

activities,
Foster public / private partnerships;

Liaison with state and commonwealth
bodies on centre issues;

Key site identification and opportunities
for redevelopment; and

Maonitor centre achievements,
opportunities and threats

4 Regularly engage with the community
and stakeholders in the planning and
implementation of projects across the CBD;

wa

mplement an Incentives Strategy for

the Bundaberg CBD - To encourage
development consistent with the Bundaberg
Regional Council Planning Scheme and
Streetscape guidelines as well as encourage
the refurbishment of heritage facades;

6 Review Local Law Palicies and Procedures
for footpath dining, Activity Permitting and
Programming to ensure Local Laws are
permitting uses Council wish to see and
encourage in the CBD.
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Bundaberg CBD Precincts

The Bundaberg CBD is divided into three
precincts for land use purposes under
the Bundaberg Regional Council Planning
Scheme.

The boundaries of these precincts have been
defined through undertaking an analysis of
each area's strategic planning opportunities. It
is not proposed that each precinct is developed
in isolation; collectively they create the wider
Bundaberg CBD and should be viewed in that
context.

The precincts are defined as follows:

Riverfront

Provides for a range of uses that take
advantage of the riverfront setting and

is configured in a manner that increases
activity levels in the area and enhances public
accessibility to and appreciation

of the Burnett River.

City Centre Core

Provides for the highest intensity and
diversity of business activity and other
uses to be accommodated in the precinct
in a configuration that enforces the role
and function of the city centre core as a
pedestrian friendly space

City Frame
Provides for a range of lower intensity
activities that complement and support the
higher order activities in the City Centre Core
and Riverfront. The City Frame has two (2)
sub precincts:

a. Mixed Use Precinct

b Commercial/Industrial

Bundaberg CBD Master Plan Executive Summary | 10
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o Riverfront

Enhance connection between the
Burnett River and the Bundaberg
City Centre

Quay Street is a high use, moderate speed State
Controlled Road that currently represents the
barrier threshold between the civic and business
uses within the City Centre and the Riverside. The
banks of the Burnett River provide open spaces,
community facilities and pockets of private freehold
land. With a visit to the riverside today it Is apparent
that there is limited integration between these

areas

Significant works will be required within Quay Street
over time to cater for its desired shift from a route
for through traffic and freight, to a more balanced
function that provides a high amenity, calms traffic
to create a more pedestrian friendly environment,
and better caters for localised traffic movement.

Standard improvements should include improved
pavement and street furniture, corner kerb
extensions and kerb build outs to improve
pedestrian ng points and landscaping
treatments, including large shade trees to create

Quay Street

Bundaberg Regicnal Counci

a boulevard look and feel. These works should
encompass both Quay Street and the Quay Street
Service Road, and integrate with public open space
mprovements along the Riverside.

Redevelopment of the riverside would also

nclude the redeveloepment of significant tracts of
recreation and open space. These spaces include
Anzac Park, including the Anzac Pool and Water
Play area; Riverside Parklands, 4BU Park and Targo
Street, the Riverwalk, Rowing Club and Bundaberg
Creek and Saltwater Creek

Actions proposed

1. Upgrade Anzac Park and Anzac Paool to
provide an integrated open space with new
embellishments and a water play facility. The
refurbishment also provides floor space for
subordinate supporting business premises
(i.e. food and beverage outlet, outdoor
activity and equipment hire, etc). This could
entail the relocation of the Bundaberg Bowls
Club;

Improve parking along Quay Street to service

the Riverside and the Bundaberg City Centre;

o]

(o)

Create a green Quay Street, with improved

pedestrian connectivity;

4 Improve the amenities of the Riverside
Parklands in the Rowers Precinct;

o

Create connections between 4BU Park and
the new Riverside Park from Targo Street;
B. Create a new Rowing Club and water sport
precinct on the river;

Attract new hotel development within the

Riverfront precinct;

8. Create a connected “Riverwalk” path along
the river, incorporating boardwalks and
viewing platforms to allow for passive
observation of water activities,

9. Create nodes of retail activity in the Riverside
Precinct, co locating with recreational
facilities, and

10.  Attract higher density residentia

development into Quay Street to allow for

residents in the City Centre
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City Centre Core

Bundaberg's ‘Main Street’
The City Centre Core Is the Bundaberg CBD's
most significant retail precinct and is the principal
location of retail shop front trade in Bundaberg. It
is a linear street-based precinct characterised by
a consistent low scale environment, based con the
historic development of the CBD. Victorian facades
along Bourbong Street are punctuated by a range
of signature buildings, such as the Schaol of Arts,
Bundaberg Post Office and old bank buildings,
as well as arcades and laneways. This creates a
unigue and distinct built environment

Aside from retail and office space, the City Centre
Core contains a high concentration of cafes and
restaurants as well as a range of entertainment
and cultural activities. These include the Moncrieff
Entertainment Centre and the Bundaberg Regiona
Art Gallery (BRAG).

City Core streets include those streets that have
benefited from previous streetscape works,
including Bourbong Street (between Maryborough
and Tantitha Streets), and the intersecting sections
of Barolin and Targo Streets (between Woongarra
Street and Quay Street). Tantitha Street, Post Office
Lane and Flinders Way have also been included

in this category, due to their proximity to the City
Core and increased pedestrian movements in

these localities. The core block of Bourbong Street
between Barolin Street and Targo Street Is the most

Earls Cout, Bourbang Street

active (for both pedestrian and car moverments)
and currently functions as Bundaherg's ‘Main
Street’

These streets handle high pedestrian volumes
and high levels of activity. Given the intensity
of commercial use and high levels of pedestrian
act 'v’lr.y" these streets require generous [{3()1|:]£J1h!-3,
high levels of pedestrian amenity, and distinctive,
ormal design treatments. Standard improvements
should include marked pedestrian crossings with
kerb ramps, shared zones, footpath plantings,
stormwater control measures, cornel kerb
extensions, pedestrian scale lighting, way finding
signage, street trees and special paving to delineate
street furnishing areas and street furnishings

Measures used to guide the improvement of
Bundaberg's ‘Main Street’ is based on the following
concepts

@ Createa CBD Core that Is more compact,
lively and diverse and has the potentia
to accommaodate future commercial land
use needs and encourage new business
Investment

Consolidate the CBD core as Bundaberg's
key community meeting place and hub for
civic and cultural uses.

@ Reinforce the role of the Bundaberg CBD as
a key entertainment and tourism destination
within the region

Bundaberg CBD Master Plan Executive Summary
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To provide opportunities for urban
consolidation and the efficient and highest
use of land whilst continuing to protect
and enhance the unique character, heritage
buildings and streetscape elements of the
Bundaberg CBD

Actions proposed

1

M

o

=

oo

w

Utilise the Streetscape Guidelines to guide
the redevelopment of the streetscape,

Shared zones — Improve the amenity of
the shared zones
between all modes ¢

Therned streets create an opportunity

for placemaking to occur in the CBD

and strengthen people’s connection to

the CBD and Riverside— Create themed
connections to Quay Street via Barolin Street
(Remembrance theme from the historic
Cenotaph into Anzac Park), Targo Street
(Water fountain and its connection to the
River) and Tantitha Street (Industrial and
entry point into the CBD care),

Kerb bulld outs — connect existing kerbside
garden beds with the footpath and redesign
these areas to allow furniture such as bench
seats and rubbish bins to be relocated off
the footpath;,

CBD pavilion — Upgrade the shared spz
n the vicinity of the CBD pavilion. Relocate
the police beat out of this shared space and
possibly replace with leasable space;

Improved shelter for pedestrians — Create
awnings between the crossing points and
the buildings, creating shaded spaces that
are comfortable for pedestrians;

CBD toilet facilities — CBD toilet facilities
are in ideal locations currently, but need to
be designed for modern standards. Raising
them above ground, providing parent room
facilities and keeping them open past 6pm,
will provide a must needed service in the
Bundaberg CBD. Adding additional facilities
n Barolin Street and Targo Street will also
mprove access to tollet facilities across the
whale CBD

Regular programing of events and activities
n the CBD, improving economic outcomes
for local businesses.

Develop a night time economy strategy, to

ncrease the diversity of trade occurring after

5pm in the Bundaberg CBD.

Bundaberg Regicnal Counci

66 regular programing of events
and activities in the CBD 99
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© CBD Frame - Connections

to and from the CBD Core

Mixed Use Transition Streets

Mixed-use streets in the City Frame serve a variety
of commercial uses including outdoor car sales,
showrooms and low-impact and service industry
uses Aside from localised traffic movement, these
streets provide a significant role in providing on-
street car parking for adjacent premises, as well as
commercial activity in the City Core. These streets
also currently provide for some through traffic and
while there is reasonably high pedestrian activity
within these streets, vehicular traffic is still given
priority

It is envisaged that these streets will continue to
transition to more intensive commercial and mixed
use, patentially including residential activities. Itis
expected that these streets will maintain significant
local traffic movements and on-street car parking,
but will cater for reduced levels of through traffic
To support the transition of land use and activity
zlong these streets, these streets should have
impraoved levels of amenity for pedestrians and
should begin to incorporate measures (e.g. zebra
crassings, shared zones), that enhance and
prioritise pedestrian movement,

Streetscape treatments should include improved
footpath/pavement surfacing, landscaping,
pedestrian safety elements, and other amenities
to complement current and future land uses.
Standard improverments should include marked
pedestrian crossings with kerb ramps, mid-block
crossings, street trees, footpath landscaping, kerb
extensions (particularly at pedestrian crossings),
pedestrian refuge islands and street furniture.
While works would seek to perform a function
similar to the main street, the treatments and finish
would not be as advanced or extensive as those In
the City Core.

Commercial/Service Industry

This category includes streets within the City
Frame that are located at the edge of the CBD
and/or further from the City Core. These streets
typically accommeodate less intensive commercial
premises and/or industrial uses (service and
low-impact industries) that have less active street
frontages due to uses reguiring driveways, off-
street car parking and loading docks. There is
usually greater separation between buildings, and
builldings are typically setback from the street with
only some providing awnings over the footpath

Footpaths and streetscape amenities are often
minimal. Inmost (but not all) cases this reflects the
reduced pedestrian traffic in these areas. Standard
improvements should include ribbon footpaths,
kerb ramps, street trees and line marked angle or
parallel parking. Whilst these areas are not known
for high pedestrian traffic, they should include (as

a minimum) ribben footpaths that connect to the
rest of the pedestrian network across the CBD.
Other standard improvements should include kerb
build outs and pedestrian refuge islands at crossing
points. Pedestrian refuge islands are particularly
helpful as resting areas for seniors, persons with
disabilities, children, and others who may be less
able to cross the street in one stage.

66 improved
pavement surfacing,
landscaping,
pedestrian safety

Actions proposed

1. Utilise the Streetscape Guidelines to create
cohesive connections between the CBD Core
and the surrounding uses in the CBD frame;

2. Protect the amenity of established residential
properties whilst providing opportunities for
new and more diverse housing within the
CBD Frame, in locations with high amenity
and high connectivity and ideally flood free;

3. Additional tree plantings to improve amenity
and shade across the CBD frame, creating a
green spine system linking open space areas
across the CBD and Riverside,

4. Kerb build outs to improve amenity by
including seating and rubbish bins, as well as
landscaping along key routes into the CBD;
and

5. Creating improved shelter for pedestrians
along key routes inta the CBD core. This will
improve walkability with additional shade
trees, as well as constructed shelter for
improved all weather protection, including
pathways that connect into the CBD from the
commercial/service industry fringe

Bundaberg CBD Master Plan Executive Summary 14
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Immediate:
Short Term

Indicative Timing:

6 months to 12 months;
12 months to 3 years,
Medium Term: 3 to 5 years;

Long Term: G+ years;

BUNDABERG CBD MASTERPLAN - IMPLEMENTATION PLAN On-going throughout life of the strategy
ITEM | TYPE INTERVENTION DETAILS/ DISCUSSION JUSTIFICATION PERFORMANCE INDICATOR TIMING LEAD AGENCY | OTHER STAKEHOLDERS
STAGE 1
1 Streetscape Streetscape design guidelines Prepare streetscape design guidelines for the Bundaberg CBD. | The streetscape design guidelines and Tender for and complete the Immediate Major Projects/ Roads & Drainage

works and staging plan for the These guidelines should incorporate a supporting staging plan | staging plan will help ensure future Streetscape design guidelines, Strategic Planning, | Parks & Open Space
Bundaberg CBD Master Plan that identifies how works will be sequenced over time. streetscape works are coordinated and including staging plan for all works external design
The design guidelines should provide sufficient guidance for are consistent with or contribute towards | within the Bundaberg CBD. consultant Department of Transport
each sfreet typology (identified in the master plan) to inform an overall adopted theme and Main Roads
subsequent detailed design for streetscape works, but should
also provide guidance for minor works, particularly in parts of
the City Frame that could benefit from modest improvements
but do not warrant more extensive streetscape works. This
would ensure minor works in these areas ultimately
complement other streetscape works carried out in the CBD.
The design guidelines should include a palette of preferred
materials and colours for pavements and street furniture, and
preferred species for landscaping works
2 Mail R fsation - Design and construction of road and streetscape works inthe | Streetscape works in the City Core are Detailed design completed for the | Immediate Major Projects Roads & Drainage
works Detailed design and construction | City Core. aging and maintenance costs are City Core. to Short Term Parks & Open Space
of read and streetscape works in increasing as pavements, street furniture Strategic Planning
the City Core including Bourbong | Initial reconstruction will be focused within the CBD core, and landscaping require repair and/or Construction works completed.
Street, from Marybarough St to upgrading current dated infrastructure including the CBD replacement Department of Transport
Tantitha Street and Barofin pavilion, seating, landscaping, pavers and public toilets. and Main Roads
Street between Quay St and Additionally the need to respect the role
Woongarra St that Barolin Street plays in remembrance
ceremonies is important and this should
be reflected in the urban environment.
3 Road network | Transport network strategy Undertake Stage 2 investigations on the Bundaberg CBD The rationalisation of Quay Street as a Stage 2 Traffic Planning Study Immediate to Roads & Drainage | Strategic Planning
improvements Traffic Planning Study and subsequently progress concept CBD street, rather than a through route is | completed (with recommendation/s | Short Term
design work for Quay Street. an important element of the overall adopted by Council as Department of Transport
Bundaberg CBD Master Plan appropriate). and Main Roads
Liaise with the Department of Transport and Main Roads in Streetscape and traffic management
relation to the proposed transformation of Quay Street, works in Quay Street will improve Concept design of Quay Street to
including discussion on de-maining and/or transfer of State- walkability across and along Quay Street, | inform discussions with DTMR and
controlled road to alternative route enhance connectivity between the City other stakehalders.
Core and the Riverside, and support
improved local traffic movements. It will,
however, be necessary to improve the
function of any altemative routefs for
through traffic and freight while
maintaining walkability and local access/
traffic movements.
4 Road Network | Transport network strategy/ Following on from (or as part of) the Stage 2 Traffic network There is a need for transparency and Detailed design and costings Short to Roads & Drainage | Strategic Planning
Improvements | CBD Bypass investigations (refer ltem 3 above), undertake detailed design clarity with the end outcome of the 'CBD completed for the CBD Bypass. Medium Term
of the ultimate ‘CBD Bypass'. Bypass' — essentially diverting freight and Department of Transport
through traffic currently coming north to and Main Roads
east via Quay Street to take an alternative
route around the CBD.
5 Road MNetwork | Detailed design and construction | Design and construction of road and streetscape works along Works will provide improved performance | Detailed design of road and Short to Roads & Drainage | Strategic Planning
Improvements | of road and streetscape works Maryborough Street, Woondooma Street and Toonburra Street | of an alternative route for through traffic | streetscape works. Medium Term
along Maryborough Street, to improve efficiency and safety for through traffic (as perroad | and freight, away from Quay Street in the Parks & Open Department of Transport
Woondooma Street and network) given the changes proposed for Quay Street. short to medium term Construction of works as per Space and Main Roads
Toonhurra Street to improve detailed design
efficiency and safety for through
traffic (as per the road network
and informed by Stage 2 of the
Bundaberg CBD Traffic Planning
Study)
6 Streetscape Detailed design and construction | Design and construction of road and streetscape works to start | Works will improve connectivity/ Detailed design for Quay Street Detailed design | Major Projects Roads & Drainage
works of Quay Street Streetscape the transformation of Quay Street consistent with the transport | walkability between the main street and completed Short term Strategic Planning
works (including Quay Street network strategy and streetscape design guidelines. the riverside, will enhance the amenity of Parks & Open Space
Service Road), focusing initially Quay Street and will support Construction
on Stage 1 from Maryborough Design should seek to enhance the amenity and walkability of | redevelopment of adjacent properties Construction of first stages Medium Term Department of Transport
Street to the RSL (indicative Quay Street, including pedestrian connectivity between the (e.g. short-term accommodation) and completed and Main Roads
only). main street and the Riverside, and improving local traffic
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ITEM | TYPE INTERVENTION DETAILS/ DISCUSSION JUSTIFICATION PERFORMANCE INDICATOR TIMING LEAD AGENCY | OTHER STAKEHOLDERS
movements. These works will cause further worsening in the public open space improvements (e.g
performance of Quay Street for through traffic and freight. Anzac Park and water play area).
Works should be designed to integrate with public open space
improvements, existing land uses and new development (where
known).
7 Parks & Open | Anzac Park and Waterplay Develop staged concept plan for Anzac Park from the Burnett | Aquatic leisure centres play an important | Tender for Design to a qualified Detailed design | Major Projects Parks & Open Space
Space Traffic Bridge to the RSL, with the ultimate concept plan to role in providing health benefits to people | external consultant (funding has Short Term Strategic Planning
Anzac Park and Anzac Pool is include the land currently occupied by the Bundaberg Bowls from infancy right through to the older been received for this stage from
refurbished to provide an Club and Anzac Pool years. Maturing the Infrastructure Pipeline | Construction State Government
integrated open space with new Program 2016/2017) Short to
embellishments, crealing a water | Design should acknowledge and continue to reinforce elements | Retaining a swimming pool and/or water Medium Term Bundaberg Services Club
play facility. of the parks role in the remembrance of Anzac. In particular, play facility will help continue to attract Public consultation for detailed and RSL
attention should be given to the relationship to the RSL and activity into the riverside and the CBD. design elements of Anzac Park Bundaberg Bowls Club
cenotaph memorial at the intersection of Bourbong and Barolin and Waterplay with the nominated
Streets. This may also include a stage area and terracing to consultants and any key
create amphitheatre for ceremonies and outdoor performances. stakeholders specifically identified
by the project team
The design should provide for the redevelopment/
refurbishment of Anzac Pool as a water play facility. Where Construction of Anzac Park and
possible, the design should provide for a suitable area of Waterplay (subject to funding)
commercial floor space in order a generate revenue stream
from the leasing and operation of supporting food, drink and
retail outlets or a g i
8 Minor Str Works Continue to carry out minor works within the CBD independent | Minor works including line marking allow | Minor works are consistent with Ongoing Roads & Drainage | Strategic Planning
works of planned streetscape works. These works should either for additional on-street car parking with the streetscape design guidelines Parks & Open Regulatory Services
complement the existing streetscape, or be consistent with a limited cost/ expense (see Item 9). Space
base-level treatment identified in the streetscape design Department of Transport
guidelines referred to above. and Main Roads
Minor works within the City Core should ideally be confined to
maintenance of the existing streetscape, such as repairing
damage to pavements caused by tree roots and maintaining
street furniture. This may also include linemarking for additional
car parking
9 Car Parking Car parking improvements Council should assess areas where additional on-street public | Additional on-street parking in close Increase on-street car parking Short Term Roads & Drainage | Regulatory Services
car parking could be secured with only limited cost/works. For | proximity to the main street would directly | numbers Parks & Open Space
example - address immediate public concerns over a
« closing or rationalising turning areas in Woongarra Street, | lack of car parking Department of Transport
Barolin Street, Targo Street, Tantitha Street and and Main Roads
Maryborough Street; Landscaping of these car parks do not
« minor works on Bourbong Street between Tantitha and necessarily need to occur in the
Walla Streets - reducing Bourbong Street between Tantitha | immediate term, this could be
and Walla Streets to two lanes, increasing the number of | incorporated in Stage 4
centre car parks (these minor works should align with
future streetscape works proposed in Stage 4, where
possible)
10 Car Parking Public Car Parking Management | A parking study should be undertaken to review existing The effective management and Improved usage of available car Short Term Regulatory Strategic Planning
parking across the CBD. maximising usage of existing parking may | parking Services Roads & Drainage

In particular, this study should look at measures to maximise
the use of existing public car parking, both on and off street,
including —

« ensuring time limits appropriately respond to needs, based
on an understanding of occupancy rates and length of
stays, etc. (the additional rollout of smart parking sensors
will assist in data collection in this regard) - this will allow
time limits to be adjusted fo better suit customer needs and
maximise the use existing car parking, especially in areas
of high demand (parking sensars may also assist in future
policing of overstays, etc);

« improving the desirability of existing car parking in non-high
demand areas for customers/visitors and CBD workers by
improving accessibility and walkability to these parking
areas, as well as improving the parking facilities, e.g.
shade/ weather protection, security, etc

* encourage workers to use all-day parking, not shorter term
(2 hour) parking — this could invalve liaising with
businesses to determine what measures could be
implemented to improve use of all-day parking areas.

limit the need for additional car parking
facilities.

Parks & Open Space

Department of Transport
and Main Roads
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ITEM | TYPE INTERVENTION DETAILS/ DISCUSSION JUSTIFICATION PERFORMANCE INDICATOR TIMING LEAD AGENCY | OTHER STAKEHOLDERS
" Car Parking Car parking improvements - Some off-street car parking facilities do not appear to be fully Improving the desirability of parking in Improved usage of available car Short to Regulatory Strategic Planning
including all day car parking for utilised. This could be attributed to a combination of factors other parts of the CBD, including all day parking Medium Term | Services Roads & Drainage
day visitors and CBD employees | including — parking areas, may take pressure off high Parks & Open Space
« walking distance (approx. 400 metres to Bourbong Street); | demand areas (and associated concerns
= walkability (shade, slope, amenity and safety/lighting); over a lack of car parking) Department of Transport
« availability of other more desirable parking, including on- and Main Roads
street parking, or a lack of demand Traffic studies in other regional centres
suggest that all day off street car parking
Measures to improve the desirability of non-high demand must have high amenity (shade cover
parking areas to employees and others (especially all day off- | and/or security) for people to consider
street car parking) include — using the car park due to the increased
» improving walkability between all day car parking areas walking distance (> 300 metres)
and the main street. This includes ensuring good footpath
treatment, improved amenity through shade trees,
improved lighting, and safe and convenient road crossings.
‘Other measures include additional CCTV surveillance,
emergency buttons linked to security or police, and
consideration of shade structuresfrefuges in suitable
locations for all weather protection,
+ making car parking more desirable by improving shade,
including shade structures that would provide protection
from sun‘heat, rain, hail, security (e.g. surveillance), etc.
12 Car Parking Timing and Regulation Review time limits for car parking within the CBD The simplification of parking regulatory Time limits for car parking have Short Term Regulatory Roads & Drainage
hours would improve legibility of parking | been reviewed and changed where Services
Previous Parking Study undertaken in 2005 recommended a across the CBD, allow for a reduction in appropriate.
rationalisation and reduction to parking time limits within the signage and may improve use of longer-
CBD core (currently a mix of 2 hour, 1 hour, 30mins and term parking outside of the CBD.
10mins)
13 Wayfinding Co-ordinated Signage Strategy Access and movement within the Bundaberg CBD is Council's Sport and Recreation team is Installation of wayfinding signage Immediate to Parks and Open Roads & Drainage
Signage rationalised through the development of a coordinated signage | currently undertaking a Way finding in accordance with the sign family | Short Term Space
Active movement and access strategy. Initial priority projects may include: Signage Strategy with funding from the established and adopted for the Department of Transport
throughout the CBD 1s + Riverside pathway - complete the extension of the riverside | Primary Health Network Bundaberg CBD. and Main Roads
rationalised through the pathway west from Alexandra Park under the Tallon Bridge
development and implementation and to Queens Park and carry out general improvements | This signage strategy should be used to
of a coordinated strategy. between Alexandra Park east to Targo Street), develop a sign family for the Bundaberg
«  Quay Street north and service road pathway; CBD
The aim is to develop a cost *  Quay Street south and adjacent path;
effective and continuous active |« Extension of boardwalk from River Cruz Cafe to new visitor
moment network with way finding information centre (subject to relocation of the visitor
signage providing residents and information centre)
visitors ample information to be
aware of key activity nodes and | signage should be consistent with themes and concepts of
movement comdors throughott | pranding for the Bundaberg CBD.
the Bundaberg CBD.

14 Wayfinding Parking Signage Provide additional or improved road signage to help inform All day car parking in the Bundaberg CBD | Way finding, directional and facility | Short Term Regulatory Strategic Planning
Signage/ Car motorists and visitors to the CBD of available car parking areas | is not currently well signed. signs are installed consistent with Services
Parking and time limits. This is to include improved site identification a broader signage strategy

signage for off-street car parks. This signage should, where Improved clarity around car parking (including connectivity to parking Roads & Drainage
appropriate, complement other Council signage including locations with additional site and smart sensors where possible)
pedestrian ‘way finding’ signage. directional signage should improve
parking availability in the CBD.
Install ‘way finding' signage highlighting walking routes to
Bourbong Street and other attractors (e.g. library, art gallery,
post office) from car parking areas outside of the City Core to
educate and assist residents and visitors navigating the CBD
This signage should include walking time and distance.

185 Wayfinding Heritage Trail Heritage has been identified by both the businesses and the A heritage trail can Installation of up to 10 heritage Immediate to Economic Bundaberg North Burnett
Signage/ general community as an important feature of the Bundaberg « increase awareness of the local signs and the development of a Short Term Development Tourism
Governance Heritage trails and plaques are CBD. heritage and stimulate an trail brochure and website.

an increasingly popular means of « interest in conservation; Strategic Planning
promoting an area’s heritage. Council's Economic Development Department af\d . « promote the area’s history to visitors;
. Development Group have collaborated on a Herilage Signage |« publicly acknowledge significant
Heritage trails are established Strategy, which includes a proposed trail for the Bundaberg conservation activity: and
routes linking significant items of | CBD. « provide a ready-made recreational or
an area's heritage. They are educational excursion
usually promoted in tourist The proposed trail includes both audio signs and stationary
pamphlets and are often signs. The CBD trail would likely include up to 10 signs.
supplemented by interpretive
pamphlets or cassette fapes.
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Some frails incorporate plaques | There is the potential for elements of this heritage trail to
or signs on particular structures become digital as part of Council's Smart Cities initiatives.
fo provide additional information.
16 Governance Place Management and The management of the Bundaberg CBD calls for clear There is a need to ensure strong « Establish a leadership Immediate to | Economic Economic Development
Leadership leadership and vision in improving and managing central public | community and government leadership for structure to implement the Short Term Development Strategic Planning
and commercial spaces. Council is a clear stakeholder in this the CBD Master Plan. This plan will be CBD Master Plan, both within | (and ongoing) Parks & Gardens
process and has an opportunity to provide management and implemented over several Council terms, Council and the business Roads & Drainage
leadership in the revitalisation of the Bundaberg CBD community — a public/private
« Establish a leadership structure to implement the CBD The Bundaberg CBD will need more than partnership.
Master Plan just Initial works and interventions. ¢ Employ a 'Place Manager
«  Employ a'Place Manager and/or designated resource with | Resourcing will be required to manage andfor designated resource
clear authority to lead implementation of projects outlined | non-infrastructure items to help activate with clear authority to lead
in the master plan Ci implementation of projects
Previously, a CBD trader organisation was part of the local outlined in the Master Plan
chamber of commerce. However, more modern models have « Establish a public/private
been proven to be successful when local government and partnership (or an altemative
business partner to achieve common goals model/arrangements) to
Place management will include but is not limited to manage the CBD
Coordination of activities and events within the CBD;
+ Coordination of master plan implementation;
* Investment promotion and attraction,
s Advocate for centre funding and grants;
¢ Coordination of marketing and promotion activities.
Consideration should be given to funding mechanisms to
support the establishment of a place manager and CBD trader
group.
17 Governance Development Incentives A Bundaberg CBD incentives package will build on the success | The Bundaberg Regional Council Increased development interest in | Immediate to Strategic Planning | Development Industry
of Bundaberg Open For Development and will serve as a Planning Scheme, in particular permitted | investing in the CBD Short Term
To create an incentive for the catalyst for development across a broad range of uses, uses and levels of assessment, have Economic Relevant State Government
private sector to develop within including: been developed to encourage Increased development Development Departments
the Bundaberg CBD and « apartment buildings, hotels and tourist accommodation development in the Bundaberg CBD applications in the Bundaberg
contribute to the realfsation of the (including where part of mixed-use development) CBD.
Bundaberg CBD Master Plan. = shops, offices and food and drink outlets; There is an opportunity to further
+  community facilities, education and health care incentivise development in priority Increased construction activity in
In the current financial climate, o entertainment venues including hotels, clubs and theatre, | locations, such as the Riverside. In the CBD.
any steps Council can implement elc particular this may involve a reduction in
fo de-risk development will be infrastructure charges for certain types of
attractive to developers and development or in lieu of delivering a
lenders. Economic activity and recommendation item within the Master
new forms of development withirn Plan
the precinct is encouraged and
supported by and efficient Similar incentives have been introduced
regulatory framework and for CBDs across Queensland including
processes. Townsville, Rockhampton and Fraser
Coast
18 Governance Events and Activity Permitting Council has an active program of major events and festivals, Additional resourcing of activity permitting | Increased programing of events Ongoing Community Events | Economic Development
and Programing many of which activate the CBD. While this should be and programing would help generate and activities in CBD. Strategic Events
strengthened over time, additional day to day events and activity within the CBD, with flow-on Regulatory
The Bundaberg CBD activity programing can help create life on the street and benefits to businesses Services
streetscape, open space areas interest in the Bundaberg CBD
and parkland are activated by Activities and events can attract large
introducing new uses and Expanded booking/permit system to allow public space to be numbers of people to the streets who
activities for all ages. This used for temporary events and activities such as food stalls, become potential customers for local
includes the hosting of activities | markets, busking and group fitness classes, etc. This should businesses.
and events within the street and | allow for a safe trial of new enterprises, without prohibitive fees
open space areas such as Anzac | and charges. Larger events and festivals also serve as
Park a tourist attractor and promote Bundaberg
Promotion of booking/permit system and potential curated more broadly.
activity program are supported where they do not detract from
the underlying recreational function of the space or nearby
businesses.

19 Streetscape /| Temporary and low cost Temporary interventions can be undertaken by Counclil, or Temporary installations can provide an Installation of temporary Short to Community Events | Roads & Drainage
Place interventions to improve park/ Council can facilitate and encourage the community or instant and important change. Their interventions to improve Medium Term Strategic Planning
Activation footpath amenity and encourage | businesses to frial different or innovative ways to add interest movable nature also allows for them to be | streetscape amenity and Parks & Open Regulatory Services

activity, including - and increase activity within the CBD. tested in multiple locations before Council | encourage activity, initially as a Space
» Mobile greening commits to more expensive permanent trial Department of Transport
installations/ large planters These installations could be undertaken as part of events in the | works or landscaping solutions and Main Roads
CBD. Additional opportunities to maximise the promotion of the
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(which may also incorporate initiative and the CBD precinct should also be considered (i.e. a
seating) social media competition, tagging in the location and Council).
* Parklels
o Charrs to Share (i.e. making
movable tables and chairs
available in some open space
areas)
20 Place Public Art Program Develop a list of walls or infrastructure that could be painted, Akey element of the CBD master planis | Increased public art, including but | Immediate and | Bundaberg Venues & Facilities;
Activation starting with Council properties and assets. to improve the walkability of the not limited to themed murals, ongoing Regional Art
The Bundaberg CBD has some Bundaberg CBD. Public street art is a temporary and permanent public Gallery (BRAG) Creative Regions;
great examples of public art that | Hold public art forums on the benefits of public art. way to introduce dynamic spaces for art installations and art walks
are valued by the community. people to enjoy and explore Local Businesses;
These inciude, but are not limited | Develop a brief, identifying key local themes or icons to be
fo the Whaling Wall, the “Seven | painted, ensuring some consistent theming of art within the The incorporation of public art into the Arts Queensland - Regional
Artists in 7 days” wall on Flectra | CBD. public realm is one way of activating the Arts Development Fund
Sireet) and the driveway art at street level experience and crealing a (RADF)
Indilge Cafe on Bourbong A "First Coat" festival (or similar) to be undertaken in the sense of place.
Street. Bundaberg CBD. This could be an annualf long term event,
including 'reinvention’ of key sites
A reqular program for installation
of public art is ta be developed
for the Bundaberg CBD,
developing local themes and
ideas to create a sense of place.
STAGE 2
2 Streetscape Targo Street, between Bourbong | Streetscape works along Targo Street, between Bourbong and | These sections of Targo Sireet are in Improved streetscape, including Immediate to Major Projects Roads & Drainage
Works Street and Woongarra Street Woangarra Streets following on from the streetscape works need of improvement, especially seating seating and landscaping, in Short Term Parks & Open Space
undertaken in Stage 1. and landscaping. Targo Street is a hub for | sections of Targo Street, between Strategic Planning
food businesses and entertainment uses | Bourbong Street and Woongarra
and there is a need to improve the Street
amenity of this precinct to foster more
pedestrian activity
2 Streetscape Streetscape works on Quay Continuation of streetscape works in Quay Street started in Works will improve connectivity/ Detailed design for Quay Street Medium Term | Major Projects Roads & Drainage
Works Street from RSL to Tantitha Stage 1 walkability between the main street and completed. Strategic Planning
Streef. the riverside, will enhance the amenity of Parks & Open Space
Design should seek to enhance the amenity and walkability of | Quay Street and will support Construction completed
Quay Street, including pedestrian connectivity between the redevelopment of adjacent properties Department of Transport
main street and the Riverside, and improving local traffic (e.g. short-term accommodation) and and Main Roads
movements. These works will cause further worsening in the public open space improvements (e.g
performance of Quay Street for through traffic and freight. 4BU Park, Riverwalk/ Riverside Park)
Works should be designed to integrate with public open space
improvements, existing land uses and new development (where
known)
23 Streetscape 4BU Park and Targo Street link | 4BU Park upgrade and adjacent Riverwalk improvements, This site has the potential to be a key Improved access to the Burnett Medium Term | Major Projects Strategic Planning
Works/ Parks & | to Riverwalk including — connection to the Burnett River, both as a | River for social and recreational Parks & Open Roads & Drainage
Open Space « improved connection between the park and river, including | vista and physical connection. experiences. Space
possible ‘shared zone' treatment along Targo Street stub
and review RSL car park access arrangements, and
* liaise with the landowner of Midtown Marina land to secure
tenure over land covered by easement Streetscape works
linking from Quay Street to the Riverwalk
24 Streetscape Active Transport Develop a network of CBD cycle routes through the CBD, in | Bundaberg has the perfect climate to Provide services to support Short term to Roads & Drainage | Parks & Gardens
Works/ Parks & partnership with the Department of Transport and Main encourage commuter cycling increased uptake of Active Medium term | Sport & Recreation
Open Space Council needs fo consider Roads Transport across the Bundaberg State Government
incorporating infrastructure for Improve cyclist amenities, to encourage cycle commuting Additionally, cycling is a healthy, low- CBD, such as end of frip faciliies (Department of Transport
active transport that can allow Facilities are to include end of trip facilities (secure bicycle | impact exercise that can be enjoyed by like showers and lockers. and Main Roads)
local people to choose bikes aver storage and change/shower facilities). people of all ages, from young children to
cars, mainly for short trips. They Provide more bicycle parking racks throughout the CBD, older adults. Itis also fun, cheap and
can also help create including undercaver facilities good for the environment.
cormmunities of people that see - Provide drinking fountains, seating and shade in
biking as more convenient, easy appropriate locations
and sociable, and that they can
bike anywhere, anylime.
25 Streetscape CBD Entrances Enhance all key CBD entrance points with site appropriate Creating clear entrance points clearly Entrance statements are provided | Medium Term | Parks & Open Roads & Drainage
Works uses, buildings, landscaping and/or signage. demarcates to both the pedestrian and at the enfrances into the Space Strategic Planning
Ensure signage at north, south, driver that they are entering the 'City Bundaberg CBD. Regulatory Services
east and west entrances
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There Is a need to supply the
visiting public with a readily
accessible tourist information
services

services for the CBD but also provide tourist and visitor
information for the broader region.

the CBD.

CBD.

Venues & Facilities

ITEM | TYPE INTERVENTION DETAILS/ DISCUSSION JUSTIFICATION PERFORMANCE INDICATOR TIMING LEAD AGENCY | OTHER STAKEHOLDERS
welcomes visitors and Improve the southern CBD entrances along Walla Street, Heart' and therefore a slower speed
encourages tourists to visit the Barolin Street and Maryborough Street through new environment
Bundaberg CBD streetscape elements.

These entrance treatments are to include
Investigate options to improve the Railway Station as a CBD signage, streetscape beautification,
entrance (vehicular and Station users) through signage. landscaping and transport improvements.

26 Car Parking Adcditional Off-Street Car Parking | Consider reconfiguring and/or expanding existing all-day car Improving the desirability of parking in Provision of additional off street Medium Term | Regulatory Parks & Open Space
at Targo/ Crofton Street Public parking areas to provide additional car parking, e.g other parts of the CBD, including all day parking in accessible locations Services
Car Park Woondooma Street Car Park (off Targo and Crofton Streets) parking areas, may take pressure off high Roads & Drainage | Department of Transport

demand areas (and associated concerns and Main Roads
Subject to demand, additional off-sireet car parking could also | over a lack of car parking). Traffic studies
be provided on Council owned land at the corner of in other regional centres such as Gympie
Woondooma Street and Tantitha Street, as well as drainage have identified that all day off street car
affected land between Woongarra Street and Woondooma parking must have high amenity (shade
Street east of Centrelink. cover and/or security) for people to
consider using the car park due to the
Any additional car parking areas should be provided with clear | increased walking distance (> 300
pedestrian paths and signage, and could incorporate other metres).
improvements to support use (e.q. security cameras, shade/
weather protection, etc)
27 Streetscape Improve pedestrian paths and Minor works to improve pedestrian paths and road crossings to | These improvements are required to Provision of improved pedestrian Medium Term | Roads & Drainage | Parks & Open Space
Works/ Car road crossings to enhance enhance walkability between the City Core and Council owned | improve the overall walkability of the CBD | paths.
Parking walkability between the City Core | off street car parking areas. For example — and to improve access to and from the Department of Transport
and off streef car parking areas. | (a) Upgrade pedestrian crossing treatments at intersections CBD core and parking areas and Main Roads
(e.g. Woongarra-Targo and Woongarra-Tantitha and
Woondooma-Targo roundabouts).
(b} Improve existing substandard sections of footpath.
(c) Construct missing sections of footpath along Woondooma
Street, particularly between Barolin and Targo Streets.
(d) Install awnings/ shelters to improve shade and weather
protection for pedestrians (e.g. Bourbong-Maryborough
Street intersection)

28 Car Parking On-going review of loading Continue to review the location of loading zones, disabled There is a need to ensure all parking Loading zones, disabled parking Immediate to Regulatory Parks & Open Space
zones, disabled parking and taxi | parking and taxi ranks in the CBD, particularly within the City areas are managed appropriately and taxi ranks are reviewed and Short Term Services Strategic Planning
ranks in the CBD Core to ensure appropriate provision and that they are located changes made where appropriate | (City Core)

in the most appropriate locations to meet community needs Roads & Drainage | Department of Transport
Medium Term and Main Roads
Changes should involve liaison with business owners and (balance of
relevant affected stakeholders (disability sector, CBD)
couriers/delivery drivers, taxi industry). Such areas should be
designed to provide level access onto a footpath or multiple
kerb ramps, to assist deliveries and for disabled access
29 Governance Heritage Encourage the reinstatement of heritage facades and The Bundaberg Region has a diverse Development of a heritage Medium Term | Economic State Government
verandahs on heritage buildings within the CBD, with initial cultural heritage. Improvements to incentives scheme to improve and Ongoing Development/ Department of Environment
Ensure landmark heritage priority to high profile buildings on Bourbong Street.  This may | heritage buildings will support investment | heritage facades and remove Strategic Planning | and Heritage Protection
buildings remain as the dominant | include consideration of incentives or other mechanisms to in adjacent streetscape works. excessive signage
features in the streetscape / assist property owners with restoration of heritage buildings
vistas throughout the Bundaberg
CBD.

30 Governance Strategic Redevelopment Sites — | Under the Advancing our Cities and Regions Strategy, Council | Development needs large blocks to create | Development of key sites within Medium Term | Economic State Government
Private and State and Federal has explored its surplus land as well as under-utilised State viable new developments. New the Bundaberg CBD and Ongoing Development Development Group
Government land in the assels to develop a set of key redevelopment sites that will developments on these large strategic
Bundaberg CBD build on the streetscape and open space works proposed within | sites would ideally be mixed use with Individual property

the Bundaberg CBD. Sites include — active ground level uses such as cafes or owners/
* Civic Precinct retail developers
¢ PCD site and DTMR Offices
* Bundaberg Bowls Club
¢ Riverside Parklands
+ Rowing Club
« CBD Fire Station
+ Central State School
3 Governance Visitor Information Centre AVisitor Information Centre is re-established within the CBD as | There is a need to ensure visitor A visitor services and information Short to Economic Bundaberg North Burnett
a hub for visitors to the region. This centre can provide visitor | information is in an accessible location in | centre is established within the Medium Term | Development Tourism

Page 6

Attachment 2 - Bundaberg CBD Master Plan - Implementation Plan



Attachment 2

Page 186

ITEM | TYPE INTERVENTION DETAILS/ DISCUSSION JUSTIFICATION PERFORMANCE INDICATOR TIMING LEAD AGENCY | OTHER STAKEHOLDERS
32 Governance Night time Economy Develop a night time economy strategy to identify opportunities | Night time activities have the ability to Development of a night time Medium Term | Economic CBD fraders
to- provide a reasonable contribution to the economy strategy and improved Development
The Bundaberg CBD is an active | - Increase activity and the range of dining and entertainment overall local economy, through activity within the CBD after hours. Bundaberg CBD ‘Safe
commercial precinct which is in options in the CBD at night and on weekends, and accessible | employment and retail & hospitality sales, Night Precinct’ Committee
need of an overarching strategy night-time transport, to improve resident amenity and safety. | as well as provide a more interesting
which addresses the - Encourage retailers to review their operating hours to create | place to live and visit.
management of its night time consistent and longer opening hours (later at night and longer
economy. on the weekends). This may be accompanied by a review of
weekend and evening parking restrictions.
This will help address problems - Enhance the liveability of the CBD and encourage residential
like anti-social behaviour and development around existing activity areas and retail hubs
policing services and also such Bourbong Street.
highlight opportunities to expand | - Encourage 24 hour operations such as convenience stores,
the night time economy offer, medical centre and pharmacies in the retail core.
which will diversify and provide
more resilience to the local
econoniy whilst also improving
visitor experience
STAGE 3
33 Streetscape Streetscape Works on Tantitha Streetscape works along Tantitha Street to complement These improvements are required to Improved streetscape works in Medium Term | Major Projects Roads & Drainage
Works Streef revitalisation works undertaken in the City Core (Stages 1 and | improve the overall business environment | Tantitha Street. Parks & Open Space
2) and walkability of Tantitha Street Strategic Planning
34 Streetscape Streetscape works on Streetscape works along Woongarra Street. Waorks could These improvements are required to Improved streetscape works in Medium to Major Projects Roads & Drainage
Works Woongarra Street incorporate — improve the overall walkability of the CBD | Woongarra Street. Long Term Parks & Open Space
« safer pedestrian crossings at Targo and Tantitha Street and to improve access to and from the Strategic Planning
roundabouts (e.g. zebra crossings); CBD core and parking areas
« replacing the signalised intersection at Barolin Street with a
roundabout (and zebra crossings);
« mid-block shared zones;
« reconfiguration of car parking to provide for improved
landscaping and street trees.
35 Streetscape Streetscape works on Quay Continuation of streetscape works in Quay Street. Works Works will improve connectivity/ Detailed design for Quay Street Medium to Major Projects Roads & Drainage
Works Street from Tantitha Street to should consider possible widening of public open space in the | walkability between the CBD and the completed Long Term Parks & Open Space
Kennedy Bridge Riverside Parklands through the reconfiguration of Quay Street | riverside, will enhance the amenity of Strategic Planning
and car parking. Quay Street and will support Construction completed.
redevelopment of adjacent properties Department of Transpart
Design should seek to enhance the amenity and walkability of | (e.g. short-term accommodation) and and Main Roads
Quay Street, including pedestrian connectivity between the public open space improvements (e.g
main street and the Riverside, and improving local traffic Riverwalk/ Riverside Park).
movements. These warks will cause further worsening in the
performance of Quay Street for through traffic and freight.
Works should be designed to integrate with public open space
improvements, existing land uses and new development (where
known)
36 Parks & Open | Improvements to Riverside Improvements Riverside Parklands to support adjacent These improvements are required to Improved amenity along the Medium to Major Projects Roads & Drainage
Space Parklands and Riverwalk streetscape works in Quay Street, and Riverwalk including ensure a safe and efficient use of the Riverwalk, including lighting, Long Term Parks & Open Strategic Planning
improved connections west to Alexandra Park and Queens Riverwalk and its connections to open seating and landscaping. Optional Space
Park consistent with previous works. space corridors, such as Alexandra Park. | extras include public art Department of Transport
and Main Roads
STAGE 4
37 Streetscape Design and construct Improvements to Barolin and Targo Streets south to These improvements are required to Improved streetscape along Medium to Major Projects Strategic Planning
Works improvements to Barolin and Woondooma Street, including - improve the overall amenity and Barolin and Targo Streets south to | Long Term
Targo Streets south to - improved pedestrian crossing facilities at Woondooma/Targo | walkability of Barolin and Targo Streets ‘Woondooma Street. Roads & Drainage
Woondooma Street Street intersection; south to Woondooma Street. These
- street trees, fumiture and street lighting. streets are gateways to the CBD from the Parks & Open
south and also provide important Space
pedestrian links to all day parking areas
38 Streetscape Design and construct Streetscape works along the Bourbong Streeet east of Tantitha | These improvements are required to Improved streetscape works in Medium to Major Projects Roads & Drainage
Works improvements to Street to complement revitalisation works undertaken in the improve the overall business environment | Bourbong Street. Long Term Parks & Open Space
Bourbong Street between City Core (Stages 1 and 2). and walkability of Bourbong Street Strategic Planning
Tantitha and Walla Streets
39 Parks Improvements fo Riverside Improvements and extension of Riverside Parklands and These improvements will improve Improved pedestrian connections Medium to Major Projects Economic Development
Parklands and Riverwalk Riverwalk (e.g. boardwalk) to the east towards Bundaberg pedestrian connectivity to the Burnett to the Burnett River through the: Long Term Parks & Open Space

extension to Bundaberg Creek

Creek, providing for -

= reuse of old Lady Musgrave Tours building

« liaison with Bundaberg Rowing Club re: relocation to the
old slipway.

River.

installation of boardwalks and
lookouts.

Sport & Recreation
Roads & Drainage
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40 Road Network | CBD Bypass Construct the ultimate planned CBD Bypass to Bundaberg There is a need for transparency and Construction of works as per Long Term Major Projects Roads & Drainage
Improvements East. clarity with the end outcome of the 'CBD detailed design
Bypass' — essentially diverting freight and Department of Transport
through fraffic currently coming north to and Main Roads
east via Quay Street to take an alternative
direct route around the CBD
4 Parks & Open | Exercise and Activity Trail There is an opportunity to develop an exercise trail utilising the | Promoting physical activity among the Design and construct an exercise | Medium term | Major Projects Roads & Drainage
Space open space and pathway network to promote health and community is a priority national health and activity trail to create activity (Planning) Sport & Recreation | Strategic Planning
The Bundaberg CBD, and fitness. This should include outdoor exercise equipment, objective. Regular physical activity lowers | with a particular focus on the Parks & Gardens
especially the Riverside Precinct | facilities to provide for fitness classes and signposting at the risk of chronic diseases and is an Riverside. Medium to
provides an environment and regular intervals to provide users details of distances to and important strategy for reversing the Long Term
supporting infrastructure that from key nodes along the network. obesity epidemic (Construction)
supports and promotes an active
and healthy iifestyle, maintain A growing body of evidence shows that
contintious running/walking trail the built environment can positively
along the pathway network and influence physical activity for both
serviced with fitness equipment recreational and transportation purposes.
within park areas as regular
intervals along the running trail.
This may also including hiring
kiosks for bikes and kayaks.
STAGE §
42 Parks & Open | Open Space along Bundaberg Improvements to open space network along Bundaberg Creek | Improvements in this locality will increase | Detailed design of improved green | Long Term Parks & Gardens | Roads & Drainage
Space Creek/ Saltwater Creek and Saltwater Creek south of the CBD, including the likelihood for people to ride or walk spaces along Bundaberg Natural Resource
« improved pedestrian and cycle accessibility into the CBD from neighbouring suburbs into the CBD, | Creek/Saltwater Creek. Management
+ encourage active transport from surrounding medium reducing traffic on the road
density residential areas
43 Car Parking Assessment of the need of Assess the all-day car parking situation based on need/ Assess the need for further investmentin | Planning and design of additional | Long Term Regulatory Strategic Planning
alternalive off site car parking demand once all the previous interventions have been off-street car parking off street car parking to cater for services
arrangements. completed. This may include a multi-storey car parking increased demands (if applicable) Major Projects
structure. This may include an option for a Roads & Drainage
multi-storey parking structure
44 Streetscape Continue to make improvements | Follow the Streetscape Design Guidelines and undertake works | Improve the amenity and function of Detailed design of remaining Long Term Major Projects
Works outside of the CBD core, to and improvements to the remaining CBD streets, especially streets into and around the CBD for all streets and localities around the Roads & Drainage
improve walkability into and entry streets into the CBD users, with a particular focus on improving | CBD to ensure they are consistent
around the CBD. walkability with the Streetscape Design
Guidelines.
45 Parks & Open | Redevelopment of Bowls Club The relocation of the bowls club opens up opportunities to Improve the overall amenity of Anzac Conceptual design to be Long Term Major Projects Economic Development/
Space Site redevelop the current site on Quay Street to further enhance Park with the eventual relocation of the considered as part of design work Parks & Open Property Leasing
Anzac Park as a high quality public park and water play facility. | bowls club to create more open space for | undertaken in Stage 1 Space Sport & Recreation
the general public to access and enjoy.
Once lease has ceased on the Department of Natural
site, detailed design and Resources and Mines
construction should take place to
finalise the Riverside Precinct
46 Governance Redevelopment of Rowers Club | - The Riverside Master Plan identifies the redevelopment of The redevelopment allows for the Detailed design to be undertaken Long Term Economic Development Group
site the Rowers Club site for higher and better use, such as construction of short-term accommodation Development
accommodation or resort use on the river or mixed use development the river. Construction of new rowing club Department of Natural
- Additionally, the Rowing Club is looking to construct a new facilities will be dependent on Resources and Mines
site on Lot 5 on SP172458 creating better access to the river government funding
with more storage for boats
a7 Parks & Open | Equitable Access (o the River Opportunities for additional water based activities are explored, | The community has a strong connection Improve access to the river with Long Term Parks & Gardens | Economic Development
Space including — to the Burnett River. There is a need to walkways and ramps to ensure all Major Projects Community Development
The Burnelt River is an » kayaking and boat hire to co-locate with the rowing club, improve opportunities for the community members of the public can access
accessible and popular enabling residents and visitors to interact and engage with | to use and interact with the river. the waterfront
recreational asset for community the river;
and visitors to enjoy and engage |«  piered build-outs over the riverbank are maintained and
with. constructed in new locations in order to provide
opportunities for informal passive recreation, such as
fishing.
+ moorings within the river are made available where
practical (having regard to flooding concemns) for boats to
moor and come ashore to visit the Riverside for
entertainment, food, drink and shopping
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